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Chairman'’s statement
“Good progress in a tough environment”

Despite difficult market conditions our results for 2016 were in-line with expectations and

the Group continued to deliver against our ambitious strategic objectives. The combination

of necessary management actions to address the current market difficulties and the continued
progress in the execution of our strategy underpin our plans to enhance customer relationships,
grow our market shares and further improve working capital. The Group’s balance sheet is
strong and our operations are inherently cash generative which provides the headroom to
invest in organic development and appropriate acquisition opportunities as they arise.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

Continuing to execute our strategy

During 2016, the considerable work being undertaken to improve our businesses
gained traction as we continued to improve both our operations and our customer
offering. The strategic initiatives behind that work rernain our priority, despite the
market headwinds our industry currently faces. There is no quéstion that IMI is
becoming a stronger, more efficient and more competitive company capable of
delivering long-term sustainable growth.

As our businesses continue to improve, the resulting benefits are becoming
increasingly evident 10 our customers — improved on-time-delivery, faster response
times and reduced scrap rates are the fundamental pre-requisites that will confirm
IMI as a worki-class supplier. We have also improved significantly our product
offering in 2016, having launched many new products and re-vitalised our go-to—
market and sales strategies in several parts of the Group. All of these initiatives are
significantly enhancing our customers’ senvice experience and our competitiveness.
More details about these positive developmenits are set out in the Chief Executive's
review on pages 4 to 43,

Our people

The improvements being made in all parts of the Group are due to our peopls who,
despite the on-going difficult economic and market conditions, are relentiessly driving
our many strategic and operational growth initiatives. | have seen this first hand during
the site visits we undertook during the year. in October, tha Board met in Germany
where we had an opportunity to visit Hydronic Engineering’s plant in Erwitte and
Precision Engineering's Buschjost operations. In both locations the progress has besen
impressive and the hard work and enthusiasm of employees were clearly evident.

Dividend

Reflecting continued confidence in the Group’s prospects, the Board is

a final dividend increase of 1% to 24.7p (2015: 24.5p) making a total dividend for the
year of 38.7p, an increase of 1% over last year's 38.4p.

Looking ahead

This is an exciting time to be part of IMI. Our various strategic growth initiatives are
laying the foundations for long-tenn shareholder value creation. Today our underlying
business is stronger and our ability to compete and win in the marketplace is being
significantly enhanced. We will be very welf placed to defiver accelerated growth

and sustainable and profitable progress as market conditions improve.

Board dateils Corporate Governance
Turn to page 48 Rum to page 40
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Group overview

IMI ple is a specialised engineering company that designs, manufactures and services highly
engineered products that control the precise movement of fluids.

IMI 651

Criticat Engineering Opersting profi
IMI Critical Engineering is a worid-

£81.8m
{eading provider of critical flow control
salutions that enable vital energy and Nurnber of employees

process industries to operate safely,
cleanly, reliably and more efficientty. 3 ’ 700

W) Critica! Engineering aperations! review
Tum |6 page 22

IMI Foen

Precision Engineering Opersting profit
IMI Precision Engineering specialises E1 1 85m

in developing motion and fluid control
technologies for applications where Number of empioyees

precision, speed and refiability
are essential, 5 ’ 300
elm:' islon Enginsering operations! review

Turs 10 page 24

IMI  &eom

Hydronic Engineering Operating profit

IMI Hydronic Engineering is the lsading £51 gm
global supplier of products for hydronic

distribution systems which deliver Number of employses
optimal and energy efficient heating

and cooling systems to the residential 1 ,900

aryl commercial building sectors.

(Wi Hydronic Enginesring operations review
Tum topege 26
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s global footprint

hetp A inniplc comyaboul -mil/our-divisiong/imil-at- 8-plance. aspx.

Group revenue by geography

Group revenue by dvision

Key brands

Mt Bopp & Reuther, M! CCl,

M Fiuid Kinetics, IMI interAtiva,
IMI NH, Wi Orton, IMI Remosa,
IMI SSF, I STI, IMI TH Jarsen,
IMI Truflo Marine, IMI Trufic Rona,
IMI Trufio ttaly, IMI Z&.), IMI Zikesch
Major operational locations
Belgium, Brazi, China, Czech
Republic, Germany, India, italy,
Japan, South Koraz, Swadan,
Switzeriand, UK and USA

)

Powar Oil& Gas Petrochamical Actuation

Wa are the world Wea supply anti-surge We dasign and We focus on the dasign
leading supplier of valve and actuator systems  manufacture integrated and production of complete
engineared to order to the world's largest LNG flow control systems achuation systems to operate
turbine bypass velves compression facifities. Our o critical appiications industrial valves for the most
for critical applications in systams are capable of ulira-  in Fuid Catavtic Cracking demanding applications and
corventionat and nuclear fast responsa to maximise W also SUPDly bespoks processes in terms of forces,
power plants - helping 1o NG production while vaives into the ethylene, speed and accuracy:
provide the safest, most protecting the critical polypropylene and 2016 Reverus: £27m
reliable and efficent process equipment, delayad coldng

power generation. 2016 Revenue: £187m production processes.

2016 Revenus: £280m

Key brands

W Norgren, iIMI Buschjost,
M FAS, IMI Herion, IMI Maxseal

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, Mexico, Switzerand,
UK and USA

Industrial Automation Commercial Vehicle Oll & Gas Life Sclences
We supply high Wa design and We ofler a comprehensive We supply precision
performances products manufacture a renge range of products which fiow coniro! solutions
including valves, valve of cab chassisand deliver precision corntrol used in madical davices,
islands, proportiona powertrain sohutions in even the hershest diagnostic equipment
and pressure monitoring which defiver fuel anvironments, including and bintech and analytical
controls and air preparation  efficiency, emissions siainiess steel vaives and instrumants. Wa help to
prociucts, as well asa reduction and faster reguiators, ruciear class reduce the size of customers'
comprehensive range assambly times for vaives and emengency products, while enhancing
of phaumatic actuators, the worlds leading shutdown controls. accuracy, throughput and
2016 Revarwe. £396m commexcial vehicie 2016 Revenue: £63m fiuid cortrol perfarmance.
menutacturers. 2016 Revenue: £57m

2016 Reverwe: £161m

Key brands
IME TA, IMI Flow Dasign,
IMI Heimeier, I Pneumatesx

Major operational locations
Germany, Poland, Slovenia,
Sweden, Switzerand and USA

e

o

©

0

Balancing & Control Thermostatlc Control Pressurisation Water Quaiity

Our hydronic batancirg We design and Reliabla pressurisation is The single most important
and control salutions manufacture thermostatic & basic requirement for a compaonent in any hydronic
enable buildings to keep control systermns which trouble-free operation of system is the waler itself.
camfort at tha right level guarantee direct or heating, cocling and When compromised, the
whils increasing HVAC automatic control of solar systems. Our effacts can significantly impact
efficiency by up to 30%. racliators and underfloor robust rangs of pressure the efficiency of the system,
Our expertise covers heating systems to malntenance systemswith  Our dirt and air separators
constant and vaniable flow precisely control indivwdual compressorsorpumps and  ardd pressure step degassers
ard both static and room temperatures. expansion vassels maintains  protect the installation
dynamic balancing. 2016 Revenue: £102m the nght pressurainthe by keeping waler free of
2016 Revenus: £145m system at all times. microbubbles and sludge.

2016 Revenue; £31m

2016 Revenue: £12m

Mensy sibneas
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Chief Executive’s review
“Building competitive advantage”

2016 was another year of important progress for IMI. As well as continuing to improve
both our operational performance and our customer gffering, we have acted decisively
to ensure our cost-base continues to support our growth ambitions while also protecting
near-term performance.

Improvement despite headwinds

2016 was a year of significant progress for the Group with results in-ine with market
expectations despite continuing headwinds in a number of our key markets. Qur various
initiatives have further improved operational performance, and on-gaing investrment in
great new products and customer solutions has enhanced our market competitiveness.

Trading conditions in many of our geographies and markets remained difficult
throughout 2016. The cautious industrial investment environment continued to impact
new orcder opportunities as custormners tightened spanding in the face of economic and
political uncertainty.

The O & Gas market, which represents almost a thind of Critical Engineering’s
revenues, continued to be impacted by falling investment, inciuding a significant
reduction in liquid natural gas (LNG) projects. The Power generation sactor was
impacted by lower operational spending reflecting delays, particularly in North America,
where power providers have extended the time between planned outeges.

While European and Asla Pacific truck markets remained resiient, the US heavy truck
market declined significantty which impacted revenues in Precision Engineering.
Industrial Automation markets giobally were broadly flat with some signs of recovery
in Ewope and North America in the final quarter of tha year.

In Hydronic Engineering, European construction markets remained subdued with
warmer weather impacting the heating season. In addition, North America and China
experienced some project delays.

In response to the protracted deterioration in several of our most important markets,
the Group has undertaken a nurnber of restructuring activities that will continue into
2017. These actions include the sale or closure of eight lower growth, higher cost
Critical Engineering sites and the reduction of operating costs across the entire Group.

In Precision Engineering, in-line with our strategy to simplify the business and ensure
that wa have the most efficient platform for future growth, the division undertook an
extensive review of its operational footprint. The review — named Project Janus - is now
being spiit into two phases. The implermentation of Phase 1 has already begun and
involves those projects that can be executed quickly and with the least disruption to
our business. This includes a structured programme of cost reductions, insourcing to

)

Mark Selway
Chief Executive

Strategic timeline

2004 2M5 2018
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increase machining capacity utilisation, simplification of the
organisational structure and further leverage of our low cost
European manufactuning operations. A second phase is

such as Commercial Vehicle, where significant new project
quotation activity exists. All of these actions will help to protect
operating margins and improve our competitive position in
what remains an uncartain market environment.

In Hydronic Engineering, the subdued erwironment in key
European markets, combined with greater efficiencies resulting
from the IT and operational improvements, have provided the
basis to reduce operating costs, which will be evident in the
division's activities in 2017.

Results overview

Reported Group revenues were 6% higher at £1,649m (2015:
£1,557m}. Excluding favourable exchange rate moverments and
disposals, Group revenuas on an organic basis ware 5% lower
due to continuing difficult end markets. Reported segmental
operating profit was 5% lower at £228m (2015: £235m).
Exciuding the impact of favourable exchange rate movements
and disposals, segmental operating profit was 17% lower

on an organic basis reflecting lower volumes and continued
investrients, partially offset by the benefits of restructuring.
The Group's operating margin was 13.8% (2015: 15.4%) and
reported earnings per share were 4% lower at 59.8p (2015:
62.2p). Operating cash flow of £246m (2015: £232m) refiected
the benefits of the Group’s lean initiatives which underpinned
working ¢apital improvements in the year.

Nst Debt of £283m (2015: £237m) was impacted by adverse
currency of £97m and resulted in a Net Debt to EBITDA ratic
of 1.0x against 0.9x at the end of 2015.

M Critical Engineering has world-class cryogenic
testing facilities, for &l claseas of valves. Hore buttarfly

valves are being lowarad into the kiquid itrogen in Switzerianc

The iMI Executive team discover Hydronic Enginearing's
new Zeparo G-Forcs tumable dirt soparators at the plant

Good strategic progress

It is particularly rewarding to report a further year of successful
execution of our strategy. Key achievemnents, including

a significant and positive cultural shift with a passion for
continuous improvement, improved operational performance
and success in our endeavours to add high quality products
across all three divisions, have all contributed to our results

in 2016. We move forward with confidence that we will achieve
waorld-class performance by 2019, as envisaged in our original
2014 plan. Our objective to double operating profit by that point
also remains our gosl, although achieving that will clearly rely
upon a rmore favourable market environment, and will amost
cerlainly be reached beyond the original 2019 timescale.

Improving our operational performance

Improving operational performance is fundamental to our
objective of creating competitive advantage and remains

a key part of our strategic growth plan. During the year the
efficiency of our operations improved significantly.

Qur operational improvements are assessed twice yearly

using an industry recognised lean benchmarking methodology.
During 2016, the Group's average lean score has continued to
improve, and ended the year at 66% against 59% at the same
point in 2015, As a result of more efficient operations, scrap
rates continued to improve, on-time-delivery and inventory
management both made good progress and the benefits were
evident in the Group's waorking capital in the year. This improved
productivity and operational performance provides an important
foundation to underpin our increased competitiveness and
responsiveness to customers.

Mark Selway with Oliver Wehking, Managing Director of
IMI Buschiost, on 8 visit to Precision Engineering's site
in Germany
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Readying our businesses for growth

In the past two years, we have invested heavily in new systems
and processes which are essential to the Group's sustainable
competitive advantage. During 2018 new integrated [T systems,
that make day-to-day operations more cost and time efficient,
were successfully installedi on-time and on-budget in Critical
Engineering's plants in Swaden, Japan, India and Korea, two

of Precision Engineering's US operations, Hydronic Enginesring’s

Polish plant and at its headquarters in Switzerdand. In 2017,
Critical Engineering will roll out an additional six sites in the

US and Asia, Precision Engineering will complete their remaining
sites in the US, and Hydronic Engineering will largely complete
the vast majority of their factories and salss offices.

In addition to much needed IT investment, our focus also
axtends to embedding disciplined and efficient processes,
including New Product Development, competitor product
tear-downs and the appilication of Value Enginesring.
These processes underpin the sustainability of continuous
improvement and ensure that investment ultimately defivers
an earlier and greater return. Much has been achieved to
simpiify the way our businesses operate.

New product portfolios

Our focus on New Product Development gained significant
momentum during the year and as a result we have expanded
our portfolio of great new products which enhance the
competitiveness of the Group. The Group's advanced product
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quality planning process {APQP) and competitor product
tear-downs have resulted in the development of an industry-
leading range of platforrn products in Precision Engineering
which represent the first significant investment for more than
10 years. During the year Hydronic Engineering maintained
its davelopment pipeline and launched 13 new products
while Critical Engineering introduced a significant number

of enhanced products. All three divisions have ambitious
plans to continue their product development strategies

in 2017 and beyond.

Compelling customer solutions

During the year, Critical Engineering developed an aggressive
Value Engineering programme to enhance its competitiveness.
Despite challenging market conditions, Value Engineering
helped to deliver new orders totaliing £80m at historic margin
levels while providing, on average, a 15% cost reduction for
customers. In addition, Value Engineering has opened up

a number of new product markets where we are now able

to offer our world-class vaive technologies, providing an
additional basis for profitable growth.

Revised go-to-market strategies

In our Precision Engineering division, following the work
undertaken in 2015 to identify the markets that offer the
greatest growth potential, the division's US and Eurgpean
operations have been reorganised around key industry verticals
of Industrial Automation, Commercial Vehicle, Life Sciences
and Energy. This new structure deiivers sector marksting
strategies that address distinct customer requirements,
target specific market opportunities and build stronger
customer relationships. In November, Precision Engineering
launched an innovative IMI Norgren Express App which
enables customers, using their smartphones, to identify,
locate and purchase replacement parts quickly and easily.

Business development

Alongside our organic: growth initiatives, targeted acquisitions
that meet our clearly defined and disciplined criteria remain

a core part of our stralegy. While market conditions have
reduced the pipeline of opportunities, we continue to refine
our targets, enhance our integration processes and make
our underlying businesses stronger, all of which will faciitate
the success of any future developments.

Our people

As the Chairman highlights in his statement, the progress

that we continued to make in the year is due to our employees
around the world. | would like to tharnk them for their hard
work and on-going drive and passion to deliver our strategic
ambitions. | am pleased to report the significant cultural
progress which has been achieved across the whole of iMl.
The business today has a passion for continuous improvement
and the ambition to improve competitiveness and deliver
better customer outcomes is firmly embedded throughout

the organisation. | rermain corvinced that these core ambitions
underpin the future success of IML.

Outlook

Basad on current market conditions, we expect organic
revenues in the first half of 2017 to reflect a similar percentage
reduction to the first half of 2016, with margins slightly lower
than the first half of last year. Results for the full year are
expected to include a second half bias reflecting the timing

of restructuring benefits and normal trading seasonality.
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Mark Sadwray Dariel Shook Mazsimo Grasel

Chiad Exacutive Fnanco Direclor Diviaionsl Dwisional Managing
Civactor, I Cotical Directir, (M) Procision
Engimedng Engineastng

Petor Spancer Paud Roberis John O'Shes

i

Oivisianal Menagihg Group Business Group Lages Diractor
Déractor, il Hydronie Developmernt Director Resouces Dimcior Company
Engireering Soceotary
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Our strategic model

Our business model is built around our core strategic priorities of capitalising on growth
opportunities, operational excellence, investment in product development and targeted
acquisitions. Continuous investment in these areas will deliver improved, more innovative
products and services to our customers and help us increase our competitive advantage.
By meeting our customers’ needs and investing in our leading market positions, we are
well placed to grow profitably to the benefit of all stakeholders including our shareholders.

Engineering GREAT
the IMI Way

How we
generate
Oour revenue

Strategic
growth
priorities

Strategic
enablers
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Strategic growth enablers

To deliver our strategic growth objectives while capitalising on the geographic and operational
capabilities of the Group we have outlined the following key strategic enablers.

Working together as

one simplified IMI

To hamess the Group's full potential

we remain determined to channe!

and maximise our scale to act as one

IMI. Establishing core processes has
provided a strong platform that undemins
a framework for creating consistent
Group-wide standards and behaviours.

Criginally daveloped by our Precision
Engineering division, the structured
performance testing, tear-down and
detailed analysis of competitor products
is a key part of our new product
developmant process. This tear-down
procedure, which ensures that our new
products will out run the competition,
has now been adopted within the
divisions’ development processes.

It is one of several disciplines that have
been embraced by all three of the
divisions as they share best practice.

Maintaining
financial
discipline

As we axecute our strategy to deliver
accelerated growth, we will continue to
maintain financial discipline. Capital will
be allocated to drive organic growth,
maintain a progressive dividend policy in
line with earnings and fund acquisitions.
Whilst retaining fiexibility to develop iMI's
full potential, we will continue to fotus on
maintaining an efficient balance sheet
and, in the event of us having cashin
axcess of the Group's curment needs,

wae will return this excess capital to
shareholders. Through the life of our five
year plan we will work to maintain net
debt to EBITDA of no more than two
times through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
2015609x 20161.0x

Investing in Group-wide
IT and infrastructure

The prograrmmme o equip our businesses
with effective IT is well underway with the
first sites either launched or on track to
do 50 across all three of the Group's
operating divisions. This commitment,
alongside selective investment to
upgrade or replace our manufacturing
facilities, and our on-going Initiatives,

is a pre-requisite to achieving our
strategic goals. IT implementations

are being phased on a site by site basis
to minimise risk and deliver an optimal
solution. Overall capital spending is
progressively increasing to closerto

two times depreciation where it will
remain for the first few years of the plan.
Duwring 2016 all three divisions have
progressed their ERP programmes.

In Critical Engineering, implermentation
has taken place in Japan, Sweden, India
and Kerea. In Precision Engineering, it
has been installed in two facilities in the
US and Hydronic Engineering have rolled
it out at their facility in Poland and their
HQ in Switzerland.
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Strateqgic growth priorities

Capitalising on significant organic

growth opportunities
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IMI Critical Enginesnng Field Serace Enginsars ansure
our custorners’ plants run optimally eround the world

Focusing on markets that
offer the greatest growth

The Asian market offers significant growth potential and we have
been expanding our presence in the region. In China, our enlarged
footprint has enabled us to localise the manufacture of a number
of our products for the Chinese market at our manufacturing
plant in the Qingpu Industrial Zone. This development brings us
closer to both our existing customers and a range of potential
new customers, and it alsc enhances our cost competitiveness.

Case studiea on-line
wwwvimipic. comvmedia’imi-in-action

[SENG

Worki-class facilities support our custorners in high
potential markets

In South Korea, home of some of the
world’s largest engineering design houses,
IMI CCI's manufacturing fadility at Paju,

a city to the North West of Seoul, achieved
several significant milestones during the
year. Opened in 2015, the Group's lean
operational processas are now embedded
in all parts of the facility and it is now
recognised as the most efficient plant

in the Critical Engineering division.

The englneoring team at IMi CC! Florence ensure the
highest safety integrity levels on.our High Integity
Pressure Protection Systemns

New product development processes
have been accelerated and, during the
year, an enhanced range of conventional
valves, which significantly expand our
power sector product offering, were
deveioped and launched, In March
2016, following extensive reviews of

its enginesring and quality assurance
systems, its products and facllities,

the business was additionally awarded
approved supplier status for semi-severe
contral velves by Korea Hydro and
Nuclear Power Co. Lid, the largest power
generation company in South Korea
which provides approximatety 30%

of the country's electricity supply.
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The product gavelopment taam in Fellhach, Gemmany

Driving growth with a new
go-to-market strategy

In 2015 we undertook an extensive review of all the

Hactronic testing of new progucts

businesses within our Precision Engineering division to
identify the markets and products that offered the greatest
potential to deliver the best returns. Building on the findings

of this review, during the year we

changed our go-to-market

strategy and put in place a new regional, vertically focused,

organisational structure.

Cass studics on-line
www.imiplc.

Given the diversity of products and
brands in the division, and the
differences in the markets and regions
where we operate, by structuring our
operations by region in accordance with
the key verticals we serve — Industrial
Automation, Commercial Vehicle, Life
Sciences and Energy — we are now able
to provide & bespoke offering tailored to
our customers' specific requirements. In
particular, we can now execute country
and vertical marketing strategies that
address distinct customer requirements,
and target specific market opportunities
focused on building stronger customer
relationships. By organising our
businesses in this clear way, both
visibility and accountabilty across our
operations have been greatly improved.
With a single regional leadership team,
we are all able to drive our lean and
other operational improvement initiatives
more consistently and effectively.

This new organisation structure was
adopted across our US businesses
during the first half of 2016 and in the
second half of the year, following the
merger of our Western Europe and
Continental European operations, it
was implemented in our new singie
European business.

Broadening our
market presence

and customer reach

Our Hydronic Engineeting
division is a market leader

in products for water-based
heating and cooling systems
and room temperature
controls. In 2015 we
capitalised on this leadership
position and strengthened
our over-the-counter sales
channel by securing a
strategic partnership with
one of the largest European
wholesalers of building parts
and materials.

Case studles on-line
www.lmipic.comymediaimi-in-action

Packaging designed to grab attention hits wholesater

This key development extends and
underping our intemational market
presence and enables us 10 penetrate
the European rmarket faster, particularty
in the small residential and renovation
segment. During 2016 much progress
has been made to further enhance this
route to market. In particular, a number
of new agreemenits have been entered
into with major wholesalers such that we
now have a growing disirbutor network
with broad international reach. To capture
the market opportunity that this provides,
wa have redefined our sales team's roles
and responsibifties to ensure that we
have dedicated resource focused on

our distributor custormers.
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Strategic growth priorities
Improving operational
performance

The 10 areas of lean

All sites are benchmarked against these areas of lean every six months

Status as of December 2016:

i

8. Total Productive

= [M| Critical Enginoering
woun - IMI Precision Engineering
soos  IMI Hydronic Engineering
] wond-class > 85%

The operational performance of every site
in the Group is benchmarked every six
months against the ten areas of lean and
significant progress has akeady been
achieved. A world-class operational
performance score is 85% or higher.

At the time of the first benchmark in
2014, none of our facilities came Close
to achisving this, with the average score
baing 31%. At the most recent review,
the average score reached 66%, and
our Hydronic Engineering division now
has two faciities with a workd-class scone.
All of our businesses continue to
implement detailed plans to achieve
world-class performance by 2018.
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First assessment 2014 Year-end

{average 24%) assessment 5Core
{average 38%)

2015 Year-end
assessment scong
{average 569%)

O [
2018 Year-end 217 Year-end
essessment So0ne

target
(average 62%) {average 679%)

10 1 12 3 14 18 1% w "

She key:

1 IMICCI Korea
IMI CCIASM
IMI CCI Bmo
IMI CCI1 SriGity
IMI CC) Japan
IMEST)

18I Critical

Engineering
Houston

14 MI SSF
15 M1 Z&.) Germany

16 Mi Bopp &
Reuther

17 M Trutio Rona
Balgium

18 M1 Tnfio italy

-~ o W’ A W N

8 IMIFiuid Kinetics
9 IMIInterAtiva
10 IMI Trufio Marine

11 IMI Critical
Engineering China

12 IMI Remosa
13 IMI Crton

Modern, laan and efficient plants result in compatitive, highly engmeened procucts

Driving efficiency to offset
market conditions |

As highlighted in the Chief
Executive's Review on page 6, in
many of our markets we are facing
challenging trading conditions.

To ensure that we continue to ba
competitive and remain on the path

to sustainable growth in our Critical
Engineering division, we have undertaken
a number of cost management initiatives
and accelerated some of the improvement
projects which were scheduled for
implementation in the later phases

of our fiva-year strategic plan. As part

of the consalidation of our European
rnanufacturing footprint we have created
an engineering centre of excellence

within IMI Z&J's manufacturing plant

in Diren, Germany. Using the new and
improved R3D facilities within the centre,
IMI Z&J has accelerated its new product
pipetine and developed a number

of lighter, more efficient and cost
effective products.

Continuous improvement is embedded
in our culture and we continue to work
towards achieving world-class
operational performance in all our
businesses. During the year, across the
whole of pur Critical Engineering division,
approxirnately 12,000 improvement
actions have been undertaken.

1M GC designs actuation and conirol systems 10 daliver
the highest safety levels in the world

As a result, cur lean score assassments
have improved year-on-year and we

are continuing to reduce our operating
costs, with an overarching objective of
enhancing our market competitiveness.
During 2016, our operational infrastructure
was further strengthened. New [T systems
wene instafled in more of our factories,
including our plants in Sweden, Japan,
India and Korea, and the Obeya project
management system which significantly
enhances our project management
capabilities, is now operating in Critical
Engineering’s major plants around

the world.
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Establishing

a strong

foundation
for future
accelerated

growth

Testing of prodhucts In India

Historically our Precision Engineering
division had a complex and
fragmented structure which has
impeded Hs growth, Over the last

two years a great deal of work has

besn undertaken to resclve some of

the fundamental issues and today the
division’s structure is simpler and, as

a result, the way it operates is more
efficient and effective. During 2016 our
Fix8 prograrmme, an initiative specifically
focused on reducing complexity and
improving market competitivenass,
defivered material benefits including a
significantly streamiined product offering.
Work continues to further rationalise the
product portfolio with a view to offering
customers better solutions delivered

by fewer products.

In-line with our strategy to simplify the
business and ensure that we have the
most efficient platform for future growth,

the division underiook an extensive review
of its operational footprint. The review —
named Project Janus - is naw being split
into two phases. The implementation of
Phase 1 has already begun and involves
those projects that can be executed
quickly and with the least disruption to
our business. This inciudes a structured
programme of cost reductions, insourcing
to increase machining capacity utilisation,
simplification of the organisational
structure and further leverage of our low
cost Europaan manufacturing operations.
A second phase is contingent on market
conditions and anticipates potentially
substantial and more complex changes,
particularty in areas such as Commercial
Vehicle, where significant new project
quotation activity exists. All of these
actions will help to protect operating
margins and improve our competitive
position in what remains an uncertain
market environment.
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Accelerating operational
excellence, further
enhancing competitiveness
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Lean operating principles are now the year, a new integrated IT system

firmly embedded across the was installed, on time and to budget,

Hydrenic Engineering division and at the Olkusz plant and across a large

the commercial benefits of these part of Hydronic Engineering’s Swiss

activities are becoming increasingly  based business. During the course

apparent. The division’s Olkusz plant of 2017, these new systems willbe - . rovs intear have helped Hycronic Enginsering
was the first of our Group operations introduced across the entire division g6t their products faster onto the shaives of wholesalsrs

to achieve world-class lean status and to further embed common ways of
during the year our Slovenian facility was  working and accurate data collection,
awarded this status with a score of 88%.  all of which will make our businesses
To further enhance competitiveness more efficient and competitive.

we continue to focus on delivering

operational improvements and during
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Strategic growth priorities
Increasing investment in
new product development
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Continuing
to innovate
to secure
leadership
position

To maintain our market leading
positions and repitation for
engineering expertise, our product
offering must respond to changing
market dynamics so that at all times
we provide customers with the best
competitive soliition that meets
their current requirements. As the
leading supplier of valves to the liquefied
natural gas {'LNG") sector, we are well
positioned to identify developing trends
and anticipate likaly changes in customer
dernand. in particular, impacted by the
oil price decline and following a period
of rapid growth when a number of
sizeable LNG plants using large valves
were constructed, it was clear that
customer requirements would change
as they looked to build smaller ard more
cost efficient plants. In response, our
product development teams created

a new lightweight valve which has

a computationaily optimised profile,
replacing the previous valve's heavier
and more expensive body. This new
spherical profile optimises the design of
the valve, reduces its weight and improves
parformance without compromising its
strength or durability,

Case studies online
wWww.Imipic. Comyimediasimi-in-action
o) Assembly of metal on metal seated,
triple offset butterfly valves
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Using the new robust product
development processes now
embedded across the Group, our
product devetopment activities made
great progress in the year. For the first
time in a decade, we arg ready to launch
anew platform Précision kngineering
product offering which will underpin
growth in the years to come. Cumently
the new development pipeline includes
arange of products, that will be launched
in April 2017 at Hannover Messe, the
world leading industrial technology trade
fair. Included in the new product offering
is an enhanced range of compressed air
ar in production processes and help
prevent damage to machines and costly
product range, whike retaining the original
range’s rencwned robust characteristics,
is lighter and smaller, easier to install and
maintain and also offers a number of new
safety features.

Case shudies on-fine
www,

Enhancing our
competitiveness by
offering compelling
solutions

Building a sustainable
competitive advantage

To drive competitive advantage

and market leading positions we
must offer customers cutting edge
products and technologies that solve
their engineering challenges in the
most efficient and environmentally
sustainable way. Hydronic Engineering
was the first of our divisions to bring
new products 1o market with the launch
of 14 new products in 2014 and 15

new products in 2015. During the year,
new product development romentum
has been maintained iargely through

the advanced prockict guality process
which involves the systematic tear-down
of competitor products. During 2016,
Hydronic Engineering further broadienad
its customer offering with the launch of
angther 15 new products. These include
aninnovative dirt separator, G-Force,
dirt from water-based heating systems,
eliminating the risk of darmage or shut
downs, The G-Force incorporates highly
heating and cooling systems up 1o nine
times more efficiently than any other dirt
separator on the market. tis also the only
dirt separator on the market with flexible
installation positions which are of great
benefit to customers if space is a cheallenge
during instaliation. These new product
launches will make animportant
contribution to the division's growth,

Case studies cn-line
o imipic.com/media/irni-in-action
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Strategic growth priorities
Expanding our addressable markets
through targeted acquisitions
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Our process and approach

The M&A function forms an integral part of our stratagic planning process, working
closely with the divisions to support their strategies and evaluate potential acquisitions
and partners for the future, The processes invoived have improved considerably and
are now much more effective at identifying opportunities with regards to geographic,
market, product and cultural suitability as well as commercial logic and financial impact.
Owerall, these enhancements have driven a reduction in the number of opportunities
assessed, whilst significantly increasing their quality. This rmuch more focused approach
has also enabled us to spend more time developing important relationships with
companies, leaving us wall positioned to efficiently execute a transaction, whenever

the time is right.

Our acquisition strategies for the divisions are:

Within Critical Engineering, bolt-on acquisitions to extend both our
product range of semi-severe and configured products and our
geographic footprint in both our existing and adjacent markets remain
our focus. Opportunities with attractive aftermarkets are always
important, but particularly given recent market conditions.

We remain pleased with the acquisition of IMI Bopp & Reuther,
which has helped us address a number of our strategic objectives.
The business is now fully integrated into IMi Critical Engineering and
provided a vital foundation to consofidating Criticat Englneering'’s
global Nuclear Power business into its Mannheim facility.

Precision Engineering continues to simplify its organisation,
implementing robust systems and lsan improvements, while developing
alist of value enhancing potential acquisitions. At the same timae, the
Precision Executive, supported by the IMi Business Development team,
ane building senior ievel relationships in readiness for both large and
small scale acquisitions.

Our product strategy is well underway in Hydronic Engineering, as we
start to focus on high quality well run European acquisition opportunities.
We have developed a well-defined pipeline of opportunities, many of
which are family owned which would fit well with IMI's cutture, whilst
enabiling us to leverage their strong brands and management capabilities.

{ (r."'w'ia".’.' =

CCriterio

Broadening the

acquisition universe

* Potential to double
addressable market

* Leverage existing positions
in attractive end-markets

¢ Non-valve related products
and businesses

Geographies

« North Amarica
. Europe

* Latin America
* Asia

Market dynamics

s Aftermarket >30%

» Growth rate >5% pa
# Customer intimacy

Products

» Barriers to entry

« Criticality of application
* Predictable aftermarket
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Operational review

IMI Critical Engineering

IMI

Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is

a world-leading provider of
flow control solutions that
enable vital energy and process
industries to operate safely,
cleanly, reliably and

more efficiently.

Revenue

£651m

QOperating profit

£81.8mM  bown 24%

organic

Down 7%*

Key achievements

» Value Engineering initiative helped
to secure £60m of new orders

= Introduced 23 new products

+ Rationafisation programme delivered
on-time and on-budget with £12m
profit benefit

+ On-tima and on-budget ERP
implementation at four sites

= Incraased average lean score to 62%

* Successful consolidation of three sites
into new world-class facility in China

* Sale of loss-making ltalian
service business

0 IMI Critical Englnesring Webshe
wwew bni-critical. com

Performance

Full year order intake at £614m (2015:
£619m) was 11% lower on an organic
basis, after adjusting for disposals and
exchange rate movements. In the second
half, order intake was 7% below the same
period in 2015. In the year, as predicted,
new construction Oil & Gas intake was
13% lower resuliing from reduced LNG
orders, following the peak in new project
activity in 2015. Significant improvernents
were evident in both midstream, where

a large Kazakhstan order was booked in
the year, and in HIPPS, where a £15m
order was booked in the second haif.
New construction Fossil Power orders
were 23% lower due to reduced activity
levels, particularly in the Middle East and
Asia, Significant orders were also awarded
in Petrochemical where full year order
input was 2% higher, including a strong
performance in the first half of the year,

Aftermariet orders were 6% lower
when compared to 2015 with a retum
10 2015 levels in the second half of the
year. n the full year, Oil & Gas was 11%
lower reflecting reduced parts activity in
the upstream sector which offset good
growth in our downstream activities.
Lower levels of spend, particularly in North
America, resulted in a 13% reduction in
Fossil Power while Nuclear Aftermarket
increased 36%, reflecting a substantial
Korean order in the fourth quarter.

After adjusting for £77m of exchange rate
benefit and £6m from prior year disposals,
revenues of £651m (2015: £631m) were
7% lower on an organic basis and 3%
higher on a reported basis. Segmental
operating profit of £82m {2015: £93m)
was 12% lower on a reported basis and
24% lower on an organic basis. Reflacting
the impact of lower volumes, margins
were 12.6% against 14.8% in 2015.

The division's Value Engineering initiative
continued to have a significart positive
impact and contributed to £80m of new
bookings in an increasingly competitive
market environment. Value Engineering
and improved project management
activities helped deliver a year-end onder
book of £486m at broadly equivalent
margins to the prior year. Lean scores also
improved significantly to 62%

against 56% at the year-end in 2015.

Outiook

Based on the current order book and
market outlook, we expect first half
organic revenues to reflect a similar
percentage reduction to the first haff
of 2016 with mangins broadly simitar
to the first half of last year. Results for
the full year are expected to include

a second half bias refiecting the timing
of restructuring benefits and normal
trading seasonality.

“During a year when the market was challenging, IMI Critical
Engineering made further important improvements in its
competitiveness and manufacturing footprint. We also accelerated
our Value Engineering and new product programmes, significantly
increasing the value proposition for our customers while improving

our order intake.”

Roy Twite
Divisional Managing Director




During 2016, we significantly
enhanced our Value Engineering
skills and capatyity and won new
ourders totalling £80m as a direct
result of our new improved levels

of competitives

Enhancing our
competitive advantage
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Operational review

IMI Precision Engineering

IMI

Precision Engineering

IMI Precision Engineering is

a world leader in motion and
Jfluid control technologies
wherever precision, speed

and reliability of process are
essential. We deliver integrated
solutions which improve the
productivity and efficiency of
our customners’ equipment.

RE%Bm

Operating profit

£118.5Mm oown 10%

organk

Down 3%"

Key Achievements
* Successfully developed first new
platforn products for launch in 2017

* Improved operational performance
resulted in new Commercial Vehicle
opportunities

* Launched innovative IMI Norgren
Express App

* 22% reduction in scrap costs

* Segven day improvementin
invertory tums

» Janus Phase 1 now being implemented

M) Precision Enginearing Wabalte
Www.imi-precision.com

Performance

After adjusting for £72m of exchange rate
benefit and £1m from prior year disposals,
revenues of £708m (2015: £662m) were 3%
lower on an organic basis and 7% higher on
a reported basis. Industrial Automation
revenues wena 1% lower principally driven
by a smalt decline in Europe which offset
broadly equivalent revenues in the balance
of our core markets. The revenue profile in
the year included a 5% pick-up in the final
quarter providing early indications of

a potential, 5o far unconfirmed,
improverent in the sector.

In the year, Cormmercial Vehicle sales were
9% lower reflecting a 22% decline in North
America due to lower truck production in
that region. European Commercial Vehicle
revenues were broadly consistent with the
prior year whilst Asia improved. Energy
sales continued to be impacted by lower
investment and were 7% lower than 2015
while Lite Sciences and Rail were broadly
equivalent to 2015.

Segmental operating profit of £118m
(2015: £118m) was 1% higher on a
reported basis and, after adjusting for
£13m of exchange rate benefit and
disposais, 10% lower on an organic basis.
Operating margins of 16.7% compared

to 17.8% in 2015 and reflected the impact
of lower overhead recoveries following
weaker market conditions and investment
te support long-term growth,

Cur detalled review of the Industrial
Automation market and its various sub-
sectors confirmed that we have excellent
market positions with a valuable installed
base and high margin aftermarket and
identified those sub-sactors and products
that would provide us with the greatest
opportunity for growth. In response,

the division has embarked on a significant
programme of new product development

with the first of cur great new products
due 1o launch in the first half of 2017.
This review also formed the basis for a
structured programme of reorganisation,
including Janus, to capitalise on the most
significant opportunities.

The successful implementation of lean
throughout the division has continued

to make excellent progress with the
scons increasing to 66% against 59%

at the 2015 year-end. The impact of

Izan was clearly evident in the results
with improved productivity, a 22%
reduction in scrap costs and a seven day
improvement in inventory days in the year.

Outlook

The global industrial cuticok remains
mixed albeit with some leading indicators
and improved fourth quarter sales
providing a rmore positive backdrop

for Industrial Automation in the year
ahead. We remain cautious given the
considerable economic, political and
industry uncertainty that remains across
many markets and geographies. We
expect the European heavy truck and
North American Class 8 volumes to soften
in 2017 which, when combined with
the conclusion of £13m of Commercial
Vehicle contracts, will result in lower
revenues in the year ahead.

Based on cumrent rnarket conditions,
we expect first half organic revenues

to be slightly lower than the first half of
2016, Excluding the £4m benefit from
2016 property disposals, margins will be
comparable to the first half of last year.
While markets remain uncertain, the
benefits of further restructuring activities
and new product launches are expected
to deliver broadly equivalent margins

for the full year.

“At IMI Precision Engineering we made further significant progress

on a number of strategic initiatives in the year, continuing to improve
operational performance through the application of lean, re-organising
the business to be even more customer-focused and preparing for some
important new product launches for 2017 and beyond.”

Massimo Grasgsl
Divisional Managing Director
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The new, unique IMI Norgren Express App
enables maintenance engineers fo find and
buy replacement pnevmatic products fast
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Operational review

IMI Hydronic Engineering

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

IMT Hydronic Engineering is
the leading global provider
and recognised expert in
hydronic distribution systems
and room temperature control,
with experience in more than
100,000 construction projects
world-wide.

REQ‘%Om

Down 1%*

Operating profit

251 9m Down 10%*

organic

Key achievements
= 19% of revenue from products launched
in the last three years

= Two substantiat over-the-counter sales
contracts signed

¢ Successful Product Development
momentum building sustainable
competitive advantage

* Refurbishment of foundry in Germany
significantly reduces scrap

* Lean score increased to 76%

B} Hydronic Englineering Websita
‘www.imi-iydronic.com

Performance

Revenues on a reported basis of £290m
(2015: £264m) were 10% higher than
2015 and after adjusting for £30m of
exchange rate benefit, were 1% lower
on an organic basis. While warmer
weather impacted the heating season

in the division’s [argest European markets,
revenues in that region were marginalty
higher than the previous year. Due to
project delays, sales in China were
significantly reduced in the first haif before
recovering with positive momentum in the
final quarter of the year. North American
sales reflected an overall increase of

6% in the year.

Segmental operating profit of £52m (2015:

£52m) was equivalent on a reported basis
and, after adjusting for £6m of exchange
rate benefit, 10% lower on an organic
basis. As expected, operating margins
showed a second half seasonal
improvement to 19.4% while full year
marging at 17.9% (2015: 19.6%) were
lower than the prior year reflecting the
impact of lower volumes and the on-going
investment in great new products and
operational excellence,

New products launched in the last three
years continued to have an impartant,
positive impact on the results and
generated £55m of sales in the year.
included in the 2016 product launches
were a number of products specifically
targeted at the development of the
division's over-the-counter sales strategy,
which resulted in two significant new
agreements being signed in Europe.

These agreements, while having relatively
modest impact on the 2016 resulis, are
expected to underpin increased trading
in future years. The previously announced
entry into the actuator market, with
TA-Slider, has received an excellent
market reception and 2017 plans

include further product launches.

The division's lean scores continued to
improve and increased to 76% against
72% at year-end 2015. In the year,
Hydronic Enginsering’s Polish operations,
the Group’s highest lean scoring plant,
successfully launched the division’s
standard J D Edwards ERP system.
This system is now providing increased
efficiencies and forms the foundations
for future ERP roli-outs across the
division, Also in 2016, the division’s
largest manufacturing plant, in Germany,
undertook a total refurbishment of its
foundry facilities resulting in a significart
reduction in scrap and work in progress.

Qutlook

While the European construction markets
are forecast to remain subdued, the
succass of new products and over-the-
counter sales are expected to result in
onganic revenue growth in the year, albeit
weighted to the second half. Operating
margins are also expected to show their
normal second half improvement and will
include the benefits of restructuring.

“As well as delivering another great performance in the application of
lean and maintaining strong momentum in new product development,
at IMI Hydronic Engineering we also made good progress with a new
over-the-counter sales strategy, successfully re-opening an important

market segment for the business.”

Poter Spencer
Divisional Managing Director
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Corporate responsibility
Our approach

" “Our ambition is for IMI to become a truly great company that is preferred by all its
stakeholders because of our market leading products and services and the way we operate
all aspects of our business. We achieve this by maintaining a long-term focus, investing

in our future and at all times operating our business in an ethical and responsible way.
This approach is fundamental to delivering sustainable profitable growth.”

Mark Selway
Chief Executive

IMI Criticel Engineers
are world-class, soluing
customers' major challenges




Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Our people

Geoff Tranfield
Group Hurnan
Rosources Dircctor

“We employ some 11,000 people around the world. On a daily basis they are tasked
with delivering our strategy and the progress IMI has made this year is down to
their hard work. To ensure that this progress continues, we must continue to attract
and retain good people, ensure we have relevant skills and leadership capabilities
across the Group and foster a positive working environment which provides our
people with development and engagement opportunities.”

Shaping our culture - The IMI Way

At the heart of making IMI a great company are our values and behaviours - which, in conjunction with
the launch of our new strategy, were refreshed and rolled out across the Group in 2014, These values
and behaviours, which help shape our culture and outline the standards and conduct everyone in the
Group should comply with, are integral to “The IMI Way’ which defines how we do business. Reviewed and
endorsed by the Board our IMI values and behaviours are now embedded in all aspects of our business
including our recruitment and induction processes, our bi-annual management performance assessments

and our succession planning.

As outlined on page 11 of this Strategic Report, connecting and collaborating with colleagues across the Group to share best
practice and establish consistent Group-wide standards and process is one of our key enablers helping us deliver our strategic
plan. This way of working, which is improving our competttiveness and profitability, is becoming cornmon practice across IMI.

Collaborative projects undertaken during the year included:-

* Precision Engineering’s enhanced range of compressed air
preparation units have been devetoped in conjunction with
our Hydronic Engineering division. The range incorporates
one of Hydronic Engineering's new world-class ball vaive
designs, which provides excelient value for money, great
performance and is perfectly matched to the needs of
our Precision Engineering customers. In addition, the
naw product offering is manufactured on a new automated
assembly system, developed, designed and bulit by
Hydmonic's Polish-based assembly system suppler, which
has resulted in reduced costs and lead times. This new
product range enhances Precision Engineering's customer
offering and creates a new market for one of Hydronic
Enginesring's existing products;

= the transfer of specialist value engineering resource and
sidlls from Precision Engineering to Critical Engineering
has enhanced Criticel Engineering's world class capabilities
and has helped the division win new orders in excess of
£80 million at our historic margin levels while still delivering,
onh average, a 20% cost reduction for our customers.

our mindset

:

‘Engineering GREAT together”

Behaviours:
Connect / Q{ §7 \7

rean Deliver Lead
lmprove
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Corporate responsibility
Our people (cont’d)

Our work environment

In addition to minforcing the IM| values
and bshaviours across our business

we are committed to ensuring that all
employees and workers are treated fairly
in an erwironment which is free from any
form of discrimination with regard to the
nine protected characteristics outlined

in the Equality Act 2010, which are age,
religion, race, sex, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage/civil partnership,
pregnancy and matemity and sexual
orientation. Further detail about our
Diversity and Inclusion Policy, which was
revised in 2014, is set out below in the
paragraph fitled 'Diversity and Inclusion’.

The IMi Code

It is essential that we run our business in
an ethical way with the highest standards
of integrity. As part of their induction,
every employee who joins the Group
receives training in relation to our Coda of
Conduct (the ‘Code’}, which covers anti-
bribery, anti-corruption and fair market
competition. Refresher training on the
Code is provided regularly as appropriate
and is reinforced through face-to-face
sessions at the annual IMI Way Day.

During the year Code training was
enhanced by the introduction of a
number of e-leaming programmes
which utilise the Group's global intranet
that employees, regardiess of location,
are abig to access. In April we ran a
Group-wide e-leaming module focused
specifically on anti-bribery and anti-
comuption. The module was completed
across our businesses within six weeks,
in October, as part of our supplier
evaluation process, all our purchasing

Coneagues from Criticel Enginearing and Precision
Engineering colleborate during The IMI Way Day

teams participated in an e-leaming
programme to raise awareness of slavery
and hurnan trafficking to ensure neither
take place in either our own or our
suppliers’ businessas.

We encourage all employees 1o report
10 their manager any incident that

is not in keeping with the IMi values
and behaviours. Wa also operate a
confidential independent compliance .
hotline in move than 20 languages
which employees can use to report
issues anonymously, Hotline activity

is reviewed on a monthly basis by the
Group's Ethics and Compliance
Committee, which | ¢chair, and all reports
are investigated thoroughly and, where
required, appropriate action is taken to
resoive issues quickly, During 2016 48
cases were reported via the hotiine
which compared to 97 in 2015 and
103 in 2014.

Community activities

Consistent with our values we believe we
have a responsibifty to the communities
around the world in which we operata.

In addition to creating jobs and investing
in our focal communities, each year
employees across the Group participate
in what has become known as The IMI
Way Day during which they receive face-
to-face refresher training on both The

M Way and the Code and spend time
supporting a local community charity or
project. As well as being the right thing to
do, these initiatives contribute to the local
community, help build trust and reinforce
our teamn building and collaborative
approach. Some of the local charities

our emplovees supported during the
2016 IMl Way Day included:

Employeas from IM! Buschjost support alocal school for
children and young adults with disabilities at thelr sportsctay

A group of our graduates receive & tour of Hydronic
Enginearing’s tachity in Poland

» a charity that provides food to famiies
on low incomes in and around Selangor,
Malaysia;

+ a home for the terminally ill in Bangalore
and Sai Kripa, a charitable organisation
which provides food, shelter and
education for homelass and orphan
children in India;

* Newlands Bishop Farm near Solihull
that provides opportunities for paople
with leaming disabilities and mental
health problems to learn work-based
skills, in the UK;

* aschool for disabled children in Bag
Oeynhausen, Germany; and

« a rehabilitation centre for recovering
aicoholics in Paju, South Korea.

Code on-ine

Empioyess receive iace-10-fece training on The IMI
Wary Day at Hydronic Engineering’s taciity in Braz|
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Attracting good
people

Recruitment

Our performance and our ablity to
execute our strategy is dependent on
recruiting the best people with the most
relevant skills and experience who are
aligned with our values and behaviours
and our strategic ambition. During

the year we continued to improve our
recruitment processes. In particular

our graduate programme, which was
refrashed at the beginning of 2015,
continued to go from strength 1o strength
as we recruited twice as many graduates
in 2016 (31) compared to 2014 (15).

Diversity and Inclusion

At IMI we believe it is essential that we
employ and retain the very best paople
to serve our global business and our
diverse customer base. In 2015, a
revised Diversity and Inclusion Policy
was embedded in the recruitment and
other human resounce processes and
procedures that we operate across
the Group. By applying this policy,

we aim to recruit the best peopls to
executs our strategic pricrities and to

Gender mix across the Group

Female Female % Male Male%
27% BS57S 3%

Al 3157
employees

Managers 223 20% 9 B80%

Senlor 104 168% 530 84%
managers

Board 2 22% 7 78%
directors

reflact the location of our operations,
customers and markets. Additionally,
when creating shorlists for internal and
extemnal vacancies, we insist that external
reciuiters take account of our poicy
and, as part of our intemal management
performance process, each Divisional
Managing Director is set objectives aimed
at improving diversity in their division.
These objactives include an ambition to
recruit local talent and during 2016 much
progress was made in this area. By way
of example, at the end of Dacember 2014
across the Group, 32 of our management
or senior technical roles were undertaken
by expatriate employees on secondment
from their home country. Today only

11 of these positions are undertaken

by expatriates who have retumned to
rotes in their home countries and have
been replaced by talent developed or
recnited locally.

During 2016 our approach to diversity
and inckusion was further embedded
by the addition of a number of diveraity
awareness training programmes. Our
leadership development programme,
Leading the Way to Engineering
GREAT, includes a session on diversity
and inclusion and we have piloted a
standalone e-learning programme on
diversity, which employees can access
via our global intranet,
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tean audit at Hydronic Engineering’s facility in

A group of 2015 intake groduates undertake a mock
" ©)]
. Poland as part of their development workshop
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Corporate responsibility
Our people (cont’d)

IMTI’s 2016 graduate intake during their
two week induction at HQ

Developing
our people

Development programmes

To achieve our strategy we must
continue to ensure that our employees
have the relevant business and
leadership capabilities.

In 2016 around 100 people participated
in our ‘Leading the way to engineering
Great' programme, which is focused
on our senior management team and
potential future leaders. In addition,
across the Group, 200 pecple joined
our ‘Being a Graat IMI Manager'
development programme which is
targeted at empioyees who have recently
been promoted to a management role.
The programme’s two and a half day
training course was run in China, the
Czech Republic, Germany, the UK and
the US and, in 2017, the programme
will be further extended to inchude italy,
Poland and Sweden,

IMI Learn, our e-learning platform which
is hosted on our global intranet, was
launched in February and during 2016

over 8,000 employees around the
Group participated in e-leaming modules
on a wide range of business speclfic
topics as well as training in refation to
anti-bribery and anti-corruption and
diversity and inclusion, both of which
are highlighted above,

Our Operations Fast Track programme,
which runs for 12 months and covers
both professional and personal
development, was first launched in
our Hydronic Engineering division in
April 2015 and has continued to be
rolled-out across the division during
the year. The programme focuses

on our néxt generation of managers
and its main objective is to accelerate
their development and create intemal
succession candidates.

Filx Bizrmer
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JEur Kim

graduates, one of IMI Precision Engineering’s current graduates

During a week of development activities for our 2015 intake of
)

presents his most recent project to hig peers in the Crech Republic

Succession planning

During the year as part of the talent and
succession process, we again undertook
an axtensive review of our management
succession plans to ensure that we have
strength and depth of leadership talent
across the Group, The performance of
our managers was assessed against

a number of criteria including leadership
skils, values and behaviours and their
business’s performance. The findings

of this process have been used to build
individual development plans and inform
our future planning, thereby ensuring
that we have a pipefine of high calibre
talent throughout the Group.

Engaging
our people

At IMI we also recognise that we
must retain good people. In addition
to the development opportunities
outiined above, providing a positive
working environment which enables
our employees 1o understand the
contribution they make and be fully
engaged is key to our success.

The global intranet has been
instrumental in keeping employees
informed and connected across the
Group and it has also faciitated cross-
business collaboration and the sharing
of best practice. In terms of face-to-face
engagerment our annual Group and
divisional conferences, which invoive
our top 350 managers, serve as a
catalyst to cascade information

across our businesses and all
management who attend are required
1o share conference key messages
with their broader teams. The Group’s
financial results, strategic progress
and important initiatives in areas such
as health and safety are communicated
through a number of mechanisms
including regular town hall meetings.
We also work with our European
Works Councll, covering 11 countries
across Europe, to further encourage
effective employee communication
and engagement.

Twice a year we publish our cross
divisional magazine, the IM! Eye, which
features news stories generated by
our businesses around the world and
is distributed in multiple languages to
employees and key slakeholders.

Wae gather feedback from employees
annually. This takes the form of a survey
that is completed at the end of the IMI
Way Day and covers a number of key
areas. All survey feedback is raviewed
and areas where understanding needs
to be improved or potential concerns are
identified and further investigated via a
pulse survey {a quick and effective real
time survey that gathers further detail)
in the relevant part of the business.

if required, based on the pulse data
information, appropriate actions are

put in place to resolve issues and
clarify understanding.
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Corporate responsibility

Our operations and products

Health & Safety

The health and safety of our
employees and the heailth and
safety of our other stakeholders,
including our customers and
suppliers, is paramount. This
unconditional commitment

to health and safety is also
congistent with our strategy

to significantly improve the
operational performance and
the efficiency of our businesses.
By prioritising health and safety
and reducing the occurrence

of incidents, we will also minimise
the time spent investigating
issues, reduce the amount

of time lost to absence and

sick leave and save on legal,
insurance and medical costs.

Our ambition is to achieve world-class
health and safety performance. To ensure
that we realise this, we have embedded

a proactive continuous improvement
approach to health and safety across our
entire organisation and during the year we
made significant progress. The number of
Lost Time Accidents significantly reduced
in 2016 (15 in 2016 compared 16 31 in
2015) and a number of our faciliies have
recorded significant pericds of zero Lost
Time Accidents, including IMI CCI Korea
in our Critical Engineering division, which
in July 2016 marked 2,000 days without
a Lost Time Accident,

Qur proactive approach to health and
safety, which is aimed at continuously
improving the identification and
remediation of safety weaknesses in
our processes and procedures and the
removal of potential hazards in our
facilitios, covers all operations and all
levels of management and includes:

* a rigorous bi-annual assessment of tha
ten operational and safety areas we
consider most important in order to keep
our employvees free from ham and our
This assessment process, which is
combined with the bi-annual lean
benchmarking reviews ({further details

Earty in 2016, IMI CCl Korea celebrated 2,000 days with no lost tme accidents

The ten attributes of safety - fourth round
assessment average HSE scores by division

Comtractors &

mem (M| Critical Enginsering
men M Precision Engineering
so0o |MI Hydronic Engineering
[ world-class
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of which are set out on pages 14 to 17),
is undertaken by specialist health and
safety experts in each operating unit
which drives greater ownership of the
process and ensures that health and
safety is embedded in each business.
Each local assessment is then
independently reviewed by one of the
Group or Divisional Health and Safety
champicns and a combined Lean-HSE
report is produced which measures
progress since the last assessment,
identtfies potential hazards,
recommends remedial actions and
targets further overall improvernents.
All assessments are posted on the
Group intranet which ensures
performance is visible and facilitates
the sharing of best practice across

all of our businesses. In addition,

the combined Lean-HSE reports

are analysed to identify any commonly
recurming Group-wide hazards which
require specific emedial action. During
the yaar this analysis, combined with
scrutiny of our accident reports,

Product testing at Precigion Englnearing's faciity in
Shanghai, China

confirmed the need to reinforce our
efforts on hand injuries and in
response, a Group-wide campaign
focusing specifically on hand safety
was launched recently;

* real time monitoring of our health and
safety performance: during the year
the Group enhanced our HSE 360
IT system which operates in all our
facilities to track any and every incident
which requires first aid or any ather
medical intervention. In addition, in the
case of an incident requiring more than

uORINPOY

o
-
=
)
<

SIMLAAOD SJRI0d102)

first aid treatment, a report is issued to
the relevant divisional managemenit
team and a remediation plan is agreed
and impiemented; and

regular health and safety training for
all employees: every employee who
joins IMI receives relevant health and
safety training as part of their induction
and where appropriate, participates
in further on-site training focused on
hazard identification, risk assessment
and action planning. In addition,

site management is responsible for
detailed health and safety ‘Gemba
Walks', (a lean manufaciuring term
used to describe the personal
observation of work which involves

a detailed physical review of the
factory to observe and identify real
time potentiai hazards and risks}.
This, in addition to our bi-annual
assessment process described above,
has made a measurable impact on
both our Lean-HSE scores and
accident reduction.
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Corporate responsibility

Our operations and products (cont’d)

Our
operations

We have a responsibility to
minimise the environmental
impact of our day-to-day
operations.

Given the nature of our production
processes, our main focus is on snergy
efficiency. Historically we have regularly
conducted internal reviews of our energy
usage. In 2015, in accordance with the
European Union Energy Directive, we
augmented this process by undertaking
independent energy assessment surveys
across our major European operations.
Data and recommendations from these
surveys were collated and fed into our
Group-wide energy efliciency programme
that was developed and rolled out during
the course of the year. This programme
has delivered a number of efficiency
improvements including:

* Precision Engineering's Fellbach facility
in Gemmany instafled a new boiler for
their heating systern that is estimated
will achieve annual savings of some
300 tonnes of CO2 and £100,000; and

« IMI CCl's Bmao plant in the Czech
Republic and IMI Tnuflo Marine's
operation in Birmingham, Englend,
upgraded lighting and lighting controls
and are anticipating a combined 300
tonne reduction in COz2 emissions each
year, with an investment payback on
thesa improvernents in under two years.

During the year we continued to make
good progress 10 reduce our COz2e
emissions. In 2015 we set our minimum
baseline performance at 61,250 tonnes
and during 2016, we reduced this further
by 2%. It keeping with our continuous
improvermnent cutture, we will look to
deliver further reductions year on year.

Employees at Precision Engineering's fecility in Shanghai,
China, inspect a pneumatic manifold for a customar

As detalled on pages 1410 17, we have
made significant progress in improving
the operational efliciency of our facilities
through the application of lean processes.
A key part of the lean process is the
elimination of waste and during the year,
the improverment in the Group's inventory
turns has freed up £9.6m in cash.
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Our ;
products g
We design and manufacture :
products that help our

customers operate their

systems and processes
safely, cleanly and cost
effectively. We also sell
products that directly help

to tackle some of the biggest
issues facing the world today
including global warming
and resource scarcity.

High Integrity Pressure Protection
Systems (HIPPS), designed by our
Critical Engineering division, and installed
in pipalines and processing plants,
control the build-up of fluid and gas
pressure in the system and ensure

safe operation whilst avoiding harmful
emissions being released into

the atrmosphere.

_ HIPPS unit, designed by IMI OCI,
provides the highest safety levels

and zero emissions

Collapsible handrail, actuated
- @) with preumatic cylinders.
Courtesy of Booth Engintering

Wa continuously look at our products to see how they
can better satisfy customer naeds

The new IMI Maxseal solenoid valve,
designed and produced by our Precision
Engineering division, for-a wide range of
QOil & Gas applications, uses less power
helping customers save energy without
sacrificing reliability or performance.
Eclipse, the thermostatic radiator valve,
designed and manufacturad by our —_—
Hydronic Engineering division, delivers

a constant room temperature which

enhances the efficiency of the heating

system and saves on energy costs.

|
|
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Measurements and targets

Business performance is measured through Group-wide targets and improvement measures.

Each IMI business participates in an annual round of planning meetings with the Executive
Committee, during which performance and future plans for that business are reviewed and
updated. These business plans have all been aligned with the Group’s strategy. The Key
Performance Indicators (‘KPIs’) set out below represent the financial and non-financial
targets which are integral to the delivery of the Group’s strategy.

Organic revenue growth

Segmental operating profit

i

ta

-

&

HLETHTTTHTIRREE

[

'S

[}
I

&

Organic revenue growth excludes the

. impact of acquisitions, disposals and
foreign exchange movements. The
revenues from acquisitions are only
included in the curvent year for the
period during which the revenues were
also included in the prior period. In 20186,
the Group's continuing businesses
experienced a drop in organic

revenue of 5%.

In 2016, Group segmental operating
profit was £228m comparad to £238m
representing a reduction of 5% on a
reported basis. On an organic basis,
after adjusting for the favourable impact
of exchange rates and acquisitions and
disposals, segmental operating profit
was lowar by 179%.
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| ost time accident rate

Lean assessment

Return on capital employed

P

The heaith and safety of all our
employees remains paramount.

We maasure our progress in this area
by tracking our >1 day lost time accident
frequency rate ('LTA rate’). In 2016,
our LTA rate improved relative to 2015.
Our work to reduce workplace hazards
and integrate health and safety audits
with the Group lean audit programme
in 2016 had a very positive impact on
our performance.

Your-ond Year-and

Yaar-end
2014 ms e

During the year we continued to improve
our lean scores and moved closer
towards achieving Group-wide world-
class operational performance. Our
highest score is now 94% and the
average has increased from 31% when
we first benchmarked the business

in 2014 to 66% in the year-end 2016
assessment process.

Retum on capital employed ('ROCE’)

is defined as segmental operating profit
after tax divided by capital employed.

In 2016 ROCE was 12.5% which
compares to 14.3% in 2015 and reflects
the reduced operating profit impacted
by market headwinds.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Our risk management processes were significantly updated in 2015 and are now well
embedded in all our businesses. These processes identify, evaluate and manage the risks
which could impact the performance or reputation of IMI and its ability to implement its

growth strategy.

The Board determines the Group’s risk appetite and reviews

the Group's risks formally throughout the year. Responsibiity for
implementing and monitoring internal controls and other elements
of risk management, is delegated to the Group Chief Executive
and the Executive Cormmittes. The Executive Committee operates
alongside the Audit Committee, which has primary responsibility
for oversight of financial controls, the Nominations Committee,
which has primary responsibility for succession risk, and the
Remuneration Committee which has primary responsibiity

for remuneration and incentive structure risk.

Risk appetite

The Board is responsible for determining the nature and extent of
the principal risks it is prepared to accept to achieve the Group's
strategic objectives. Specific risk exposures and appetites vary
according to the nature of the risk, including the organisation’s
ability to mitigate its impact.

Details on risk appetite are communicated to the Divisional
Managing Directors and the Group's Executive Committee to
ensure that decision making and behaviours across the business
are consistent with the guidance set by the Board.

Risk management

The risk management processes we operate ensure that we
have a commen, Group-wide approach to the identification,
assessment and quantification of risks and the way in which
they are managed, mitigated and rmonitored.

/V assess the risks \
Monitor improvement ldentify existing mitiasting
actions and report actions and comfrols
Assess if further controls dentify monttors to
are required and inftiate _____  confirm controls are
fmprovewment actions operating effectively

Qur risk management processes are embedded in all parts of
our operations and our bottom up risk management framework,
which is described below, ensures that the Board and the senior
leadership team is able to actively assess risks and monitor the
measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such risks.

All of the Group's manufacturing operations are required to
maintain an up-to-date risk profile which identifies the key
risks facing the business, assesses the mitigating processes
and controls in place to manage the risk and monitors

and measures the effectiveness of thoss controls. The risk
profile enables management to identify issues and areas that
require improvement and to efficiently develop remediation
action plans. During the year, the formality and rigour of risk
assessment within our manufacturing businesses was enhanced
principally through incorporating it into each business’ monthly
management reporting procedurss. This monthly review
increases management ownership and accountability,

both of which are crucial to ensuring an effective risk
management framework.

Bi-annually each manufacturing operation uploads its risk profile
to the Group intranst. Each of our three divisions review and
consolidate their most significant site level risks and mitigation
strategies into a summarised divisional risk profile, which
includes any additional divisional level risks as appropriate.
The divisional risk profiles are then consolidated into a single
Group risk profile using the same methodology. Both the
divisional and Group risk profiles are prasented and reviewed
by the Executive Committes twice a year. The Executive
Caommittes’s review, which includes a detailed analysis of the
Group risk profile, the supporting divisional summaries and
actions undertaken to ensure compliance with the enhanced
requirements of the UK Comporate Governance Code, are all
submitted to the Board.

The key strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks
facing the Group, in order of priority, are shown in the table on
the follawing pages. This analysis includes why we think the risk
is important, how we are mitigating the risk, our perception of
whether the risk has increased or not, and the main changes
during 2016.

In addition to strategic, operational and compliance risks, the
Group is also exposed to broader financial market risks, in
particular, currency exchange rate volatility following the Brexit
referandum. A description of these risks and our centralised
approach to managing them is described in Section 4.4 of

the financial statements.
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RISK

MACRO-ECONDMIC
[NSTRBUATY

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OR
POLITICAL INSTABILITY
[MPACTING THE BROUP'S
ABILITY TO ACHIEVE
FORECAST AND MARKET
EXPECTATIONS

RISK DESCRIPTION AND PFOTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION
- ]

The Group operates in global markets and « Divisional managernent montior key customers and respend qQuickly to

demang for our products ts dependent on changes in customer demand.

economic and sector-facing envronments. + Our core forecasting process utlises early incications of reduced demand

A downturn in a global / regional economy aﬂmaammmnmbemmww

orpomwallnstabu;;t‘ydmmpagt%ﬂﬁ- + The Group operates across a range of regional merkets and our stretegy

tlolmamlmitevadmmﬂarkslu roup’s ability ia 1o ensure that wa have & balanced portioBio with no single depandency

expectations. The risks on a single market sector or geography.
associated with Brexit are not considered
&s material to the Group. -Mmmmmmwsommmm

MOvEsENT 1)

CHANGES DURING 2016

reguiar reviews of key market and gector metrics.
-Wm:hmmmnmmm
performance to improve competitiveness.

dwisions have implemented signiicant cost-reduction programmes which will be exaculed in the early part of 2017.

MAJOR PROMECT
IMPLEMENTATION

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJOR

TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS

ON TIME ARD ON BUDGET

o O

CHANGES DURING 2016

Tha Group is undertaking a number of major » Continued management of resources to executs projacts.

change projects o adjuat lo the changing + Detaiad plans with clear and measurable milestonas reviewsd by the
eommnhmlin&m.blﬂ:as Divisional Managing Directors 1o track progress.
WOWWI Sver the desi newl * Regular review of major project prograss by the Exacutive Committes.
abjactives on time and on budgat end fallue » Enhancad risk assesament process including full mitigation action plans
to react quickly enough to changing markat for afl major change projects.

conditions, could have an atdverse financial « Specialiat IT and Group Assurance reviews of major IT projects.
impact on the Group. = Detaded contingency plana.

In response to adverse market developmenta, the Group continues to exacute major change projects ralating to business re-
organisations. The continued ERP investment programme will also 566 a number of complex IT system implementations. All significant
projects during 2016 have mceived substential senior management oversight in the form of bi-wealkdy Exacutive project rniews to
ensura they ane appropriately resourced and remain on track to defiver the objectives thet were approved ot project inftlation.

PRODUCT QUALITY

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING TO

PRODLICT FAILURE, RECALL,
WARRANTY ISSUES, INJURY,
DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION TO
CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

WovemenT )

CHANGES DURING 2016

The Group's nvestment in innovative * Adherence to Group-wide standard for Advanced Product Quality
mmmuloqnﬁutobaa Planning process (APQF).
mmﬁﬂm%ﬂgw * Continued focus on quality managament systems, including audits to
importance and falure to dekiver the quality » Testl om-?medpmmanhustmstgnoummmm
required would result in negative financial ofprungv.m
and reputational impact.
* Targetad lean events to improve quality and appliication of problem
sohving tools.
» Upgrade of talent and focus on excellence in quaiity and
product developmant,

The Group has continued 10 implemant lean manuiacturing mathodology 10 improve how we craate value, reduce weste end
improve performance, Lean assessments continue to show significant improvernents in 2016. In order 10 extend the beneflts of
sharing Group-wide best practice, management have instigated a combined metric which consists of the Isan assessment, the
Heaih, Safety and Erwironment assessment and five key performance Indicators: cost of quality, on time delivery, productivity,
inventory tums and Lost Time Accidents. In addition, the APOP process introduced in 2015 now underping new product
development across all divisions and manulacturing operations.

ACOUISTION RISK
FAILURE T0 INTEGRATE

ACOUISTTIONS SUCCESSFULLY

AND DELIVER THE REGUIRED
SYNEREIES

RISK
MOVEMENT

o

CMANGES DURING 2016

An intagral pan of the Group's sirategy Is = Central MBA, function, sultably resourced, working with dhisions to

to make value enhancing scquisitions that idantify herd and soft synergies within targeted acguisttion

complement our product portiolio. Failum to . i - e

er the post integration Stalegy WWW-MMWMW

Teduce the value of acquired busineases. » Documentad process and tookdt 1o monltor and effectively manage
100 days post-acquisiion integration,

The ravised and formalised integration process used in the acquisition of Bapp & Reuther has been further enhanced,
This process results in a mix of divisional and Group resources being assigned to ensure the right skills and peopls
across all disciplines are svallable to successtully projact manage acquisition integration.
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Principal risks and uncertainties (cont’d)

RISK RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION
)
REGU1 ATORY BREACH M1 has established a framework which + Commitment to good govemance practices which ana embodied In
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH insti;l):tes the highest standards to ethics and the IMI Way.
LEGISLATION 08 A BREACH OF fegulatory compliance across our business. » Continued enhancement of the intemel controls deciaration process
H ST, i
R om0 Srsomehm our o?eu:ttm? rt: a?n?:;vtehasa and continued rigorous fAinancial audits by our Group Assurance team.
standards. Lagislative requiremants around * The annual IMl Way Day was held In June across the Group and
AISK tax, anti-bribery, fraud and competition law Included ethics training for all employses.
MOVEMENT ° require ngorous monitoring and training to » Policios, manuals and guidelines are avaiabte to all empicyess under
awoid financial and reputational damage. the Isgal, compliance and financial sactions of the IMI global intranet.
*+ Group, division and specific territory resources dedicated to legal
and regulatory compiiance.

= Training of employees focusing on how 1o apply the IMI Way in everyday
situations anc) key risk areas such as competition law, fraud and anti-
bribery and comruption. '
* The confidential IMI hotling to repont concems.
* Group standard opereting procedisnes are available on the intranet
and increased rigour around core legal and compliance processes.
» Third party egent due diiggence and approval procedures, standard
agency agreements and terminated non-complient agents.

CHANGES DURING 2018 IM1 has a zero eppetite for compliance rsk and the challenging markel and regutatory environment demands the very highest
standards of conduct. Our processes and procadures have continuad to strengthen and embed throughout the business. During
2016 wo trained over half our workdorce on anti-bribery and a third of our employees on competition law using slearning modules
hosted on our new IM! Learn platform, This systern provides the abiity to target particular employee groups and tracks completion
of equired compgance training. The introduction of stringent New procedures and processas to operata in high sk terftories
ensures compllance when we address future business opportunities in these regions.

SUPPLY CHAIN “The Group has a significant number of . dﬂdmwmmdmmymwnwgmam

FAILURE TO MANAGE gmtrnc:wﬂhabmadbasedappﬂers.h Impact of a supplier fallure or increased prices.

THE SUPPLY CHAIN alure 10 Meet Customerns’ nequiements -mmmwwmmmwmhm
mpeclofqm!ryoru?:l\my.?ldmwa of the divisions.

RISK o material Impact on the Group's esufts, * Adecuate safety stock and/or dusl supply for crtical cormponents.

MOVEMENT - * Supplier sconecard process 1o monitor performance, capablity and resilience.

CHANGES DURING 2016 The implementation of 2 supply scorecand. The supplier risk assessment selection toot and introduction of commodity experts,
has resulted in a reckiction in the likehood of a crdtical, strategic supplier faiure. Prefermed suppliers sts have been producad 1o
concentrate strategic purchasing with certified and approved suppliers. Framework agreements have been introduced to increase

formality in standand purchass agreerments.
]
LYBER SECURITY mmmsmnmmm * [T Security improvement programme underway across the Group,
UNAUTHORISED ALCESS result lectual property, frauduant ;
T0 OUR 1T SYSTEMS actity, theft and business interuption, 'Wu:mmm;gmnwmmmdm
Cybear security awareness iraining for all empkyeas, pariculsly with
X o " rogerd to raud,
OVEMENT

= Disaster recovery plans instigated on all critical IT assats,

CHANGES DURING 2016 Tha Group is in the second year of a three year Group-wide Security improvement Progremme and during 2016, a 24/7 security
operation centre was established 10 monitor and resolve security incidents. The programme includes deployment of consistent
anti-virus, firowalls, intruder detection, device coritrol and encryption software across the Group. Combined with greater cyber risk
ammwmwmmmmmmmmmwmmaw
consigtant with 2015.
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RISK RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT WITIGATION
- |}

COMPETITIVE MARKETS Increased volatiity and siowdown in mejor * Competitor tear-down and value engineering procedures.
INCREASINGLY COMPETITIVE economies could resull in increasad
MARKETS LEADING T0 i g to loss of Rewewoufr:‘lecapadtyaspatdmleanmmmbmﬂum
PRICING PRESSYRES R endvor pricing pressures leading 1o lost fackities and mprove
LOSS DF CUSTOMERS sales and recuced profits. * Standard costings to ansure thorough understanding of product cost.

+ Monitoring of markets 10 ensune cost compatitiveness and market shares.
RISK « Formal market, competitor and reviaws undertaken .
MOVEMENT ° pet ] Quartary
CHANGES DURING 2018 Improvernents in operational capabilities, routine 18ar-cown testing and competitive bmd\rnarldngdoonworpmducum

al three divisions has underpinnad new product development and value engineering initiatives. These procedures have proved
cruclal suceess factors in winning business, particularly in the Critical Engineering division. The APQP process is also producing
tangible benefits across tha Group following its successiul introduction in 2016,

MEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT The Group's stratagy for sustainable » Five ysai technology roadmaps included in divisional strategies.
lbng-terrm growth will ba achieved in part -
by a of new wsmmhmmwwmmm
NOVEMENT ©  products. Fals to deliver market eading ocmmanmmqummmm
products will impact our abiity to grow. Ay '
* New product introduction procedures in placs.

» Tracking of key performance matnics - level of saies from new
products and level of research and development spend ageinst sales,

CHANGES DURING 2016 The APQP process launched in 2015 is now operating affactively across all three divisions. Hydronic Engineering, the division
which pioneered the process, continued to beneft from tha pipeline of new products, generating £30m of sales In 2016
(£30m in 2015). New product development is now an integral componernt of the five year strategic planning cycle and
commercial priorities and development roadmaps for all the Group's principal markets.
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Board of Directors

Lord Smith of Kelvin Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Shook Bob Stack
Chairman Chief Exacutive Executive Director Finance Director Senicr indlependent

non-executive director
Nationality
British Australfian Bditish Armerican Bitish American
Commities membarahip
Norrinations Committee - Chair Executive Committee Executive Commities Expcutive Commities Nomingtions Committee

Remuneration Committee

— Chair
Date of appointment
2015 2013 2007 208 2008
Expertise
Sigrificant UK end international Experienced and proven Proven organisstional and Extensive financial Exparignced non-axacutive
board experience Chial Exacutive engingering expertise managameant expeanence director at public company igvel
Extengive knowledge of both Sofid track recond running Managemant capabilty having Extensve knowladge of complex  Significant International
angingening und manulactuing intemnational engineering nun gl of IMUs divigions process manuiacturing across businese exparience
Strong track racord in private businesses Extensive knowledge of and- & range of industria! sectors Specialist capabilty in human
acuity, mergers and acquisitions In-depth knowladge of relevant rarkets and customer base Strong international resources, organisational
Specialist capabifity in finance end-markeis including ol & gas, perspactive, having worked in changs and corporate affers

energy and automotive 8 number of key geographias
during his time with two leading
giobal businasses

Koy oxternal sppointments
Non-executive Chaimman of Non-axecutive director of Non-axecutive director of
Allance Trust pic Halma plc the Earthwatch Institute
Non-aexecutive Chairman of the Non-gxacutive director of
UK Grean Investmant Bank pic Signet Jewabiars Limited

Board experience
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Carl-Peter Forster Birgit Nergaard Ross Mcinnes Isobel Sharp
Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-axecutive director
Nationakity
German Darish French Australian Briish
Commities mamberahip
Audit Committea Audit Comminties Aucit Cornmities - Chair Aucit Commities
Nominations Committes Nominations Commitiee Nominations Committee Nominations Commities
Remuneration Committee Remuneration Commities
Date of appointment
2012 2012 2014 2015
Experiisn
Experienced internstiona Expenenced non-executive Consicerable financia expertise  Considerable accounting, audtt,
business lsader Held senlor executive positions  Significant knowledga and govemance end transactions
in-clapth knowdadge of the in enginearing consultancy expariance of working in large axperience including tme as
autornative sector intorngtional companies that the Senlor Technical Partner at
Wids ranging sectoral Deloitts i London, President
Expért in operational axcalance experienca including enargy, operate in global markets of the Instituts of Chartered
and lean manufachuing water, infrastructure and
bulding | Agccountants of Scotand
Significant experience in ing Industries and membership of the UK
technology managerent Experience in strategy as well Accounting Standards Board
as finance and accounting and the Financial Review Panel

Koy sxternal appointments
Non-axecutive director of Gealy
Autornobie Haoldings, Hong Kong
Chairman of London

Taxi Compary
Non-executive director of Volvo
Cars Corporation, Gothenburg,
Sweden

Chairman of Chemwing Group pic

Non-exacutive director of

DSV AS

Nor-executive director of WSP
Global inc. and Chaiman of
the Govarnance, Ethics and
Compliance Committen
Non-executive director of
Cobham pic

Non-executive Chairman of
Safran SA

Non-executive direcior

and Chairman of the Audit
Committes at Fauracls SA
Non-executive director

and Chairman of the Audit
Committee af Eutalsat
Communications SA

Non-exacutive director of the
UK Grean Investment Bank pic
Non-exetutive director and
Audit Committes Chair of
winton Group Umited
Honorary Professor at

Edinburgh University
Businass Schoo!

OGO

Find out more sbout the Board on-fne
-ariieadership-

www.imipic.com/about

ang-govenance/board
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Corporate Governance introduction
Chairman’s Governance letter

Lord Smith of Kelvin

Dear Shareholder

Strong governance is of great importance to me and my fellow
direciors. We firmly befieve it makes a real difference to Board
effectiveness, underpins a healthy culture and contribuies to IMI's
sustainable success. In the Corporate Govemance Report on
pages 49 to 54 of this Annual Report, we describe our governance
practices and the workings of the Board and its committess.

Compliance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code

1 am pleased to mport that (Ml compliad with the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Code'} throughout the year.
Furthar details of how we comply with the Code are provided

in the Comporate Govemance Report, In keeping with our
Group-wide focus on continuous improvement, during 2016 the
Company's Comorate Govemance Framework (the ‘Governance
Framework'), which incorporates the vital elements of our Board
Changes to the Governance Framework included updating the
remits of each of the Board's committess and refining the matters
reserved to the Board. The Govemance Framework appears on
the IMI website www.imipic.com.

Leadarship -

During my second year as Chairman, the various changes made
to the Board and the Executive during 2015 have been bedded
in. Our non-executive directors are making a positive contribution
and the dialogue with Management is open and fransparent. As a
result we enjoy a good quality of discussion at mestings. Through
regular contact between formal meetings, | have developed a
strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and Mark
and | enjoy frank, constructive and suitably challenging debates.

Culture

In 2014 the Board adopted a clear set of values which flow
through afl perts of IMI and are reflected in the culture and
behaviours of our people across the Group. These values, which
are key to the delivery of our strategy, inform all cur operational
processes. They are also built into oyr people development
programmes and are assessed bi-Gnnually as part of the staff
performance review process, Further information about our values
and behaviours is detailed in the Comporate Responsibility section
On pages 28 to 37.

Strategy and famiRkarisation

During the year wa dedicated more time as a Board to reviewing
the detailed implementation of our strategy, which we reaffirmed
at our strategy day in September 2016. We visited two of our
major fadilities in Germany and our largest UK manufacturing
operation. In addition, several of the non-executive directors and
| attended the Group management conference and we have all
visited sites on an individual basis. This direct contact with the
Group’s businesses is critically important as it accelerates our
understanding of IMI's operations and helps us get to know the
wider management team. It also alows us to see the great waork
our people do on a daily basis which is dearly evident in the
operational improvements we are sesing across the Group.

Strengthening IMI

As highlighted in my statement on page 1, through effective
exacution of our strategy we continue to see significant
improvements being made across the Group and as a result
IMI is becoming a stronger company.

Progress is being made in all parts of the Group and across all
functions. In particular, our financial controls have been further
strengthiened and | am pleased to report that the level of control
effectiveness acrass the Group remains high. Another ama
where we have sean good progress is in relation to succession
planning, which is key to IMI's long-term success. As described
in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 2810 37,
during the year we undertock an extensive review of management
succession planning which involved an assessment of the
Group’s top 230 leaders. | am pleased with the significant
progress being made towards building a pipeline of high calibre
rnanagement talent.

| enjoy engagement with shareholders and appreciate the support
shown by our institutional shareholders. | look forward to meeting
shareholders again at our Annual General Meeting.

I
Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

23 February 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

Set out below is the Board’s formal report on corporate governance and separate
reports from the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration Committees.

UK Corporate Governance Code -

Compliance statement

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and confimns that throughourt the
year-ending 31 December 20116 the Company has applied

the principles of good governance contained in the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) and complied with its
best practice provisions. Further details appear below, and in
the Directors’ Report and other cross-referancedt sections of this
Annwal Report, all of which are incorporated by reference into
this report. There are no provisions in respect of which an
explanation is nesded under the "comply or explain” requirement,

A dascription of the main featuras of the Company's intemal
control system and disclosures on other regulatory matters
including staterments on going concem and viability can be found
on pages 132 1o 135 in the Directors’ Report. A summary of
our risk management systems and information about the risks
and uncertainties that relate 10 our business is detailed within
the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on pages 40 to

43, Information on corporate responsibility can be found in the
Corporate Responsibility $ection on pages 28 to 37,

The Board

Composition

Throughout 2016 and to date in 2017, the Board comprised ning
directors: the Chairman; the Chief Executive; five independent
non-executive directors; the Finance Director and one
operational executive director.

In line with the Code, al continuing directors submit themsehes
for election or re-election at each Annual General Meeting.

The role of the Board and the clear division of responsibilities
between the Chalmman and the Chief Executive are outined

in the Directors’ Report on pages 132 to 135.

Independence of non-executive directors

The Board considers that all five non-executive directors

are free from any business or other ralationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement and all meet the criteria for independence under
the Code. Isobel Sharp is a co-director with Lond Smith on the
board of the UK Green Investment Bank plc, a governmant
owned financial institution, Cross-directorships are recognised
in the Code as a petential consideration in relation to the
assessment of independence. The Board has considered the
circumstances and regards Isobe! and all of the other non-

executive directors as independent. The Chairman was also
regarded as independent at the date of his appointment to
the Board. )

Board diversity

The non-executive directors are a diverse group from different
backgrounds and nationalities and bring with them a wide range
of skills and experience in commerce, finance and industry in
various parts of the world. There are six nationalities on the
Board and two of the nine directors are femele {.e. 22%).

QOur approach to diversity is set out in mon detail in the
Corporate Responsibility section on pages 28 to 37 and

in the Nominations Committee Report on page 58.

Under tha Code, the Cheimman Is exchaded

whan considering the incepenciert non-
exacutivg composition of the Board,
5 3
3 Exsoxtive direcions
§ Indep or o i
Dates of appointment
Name Date of sppointment  Cate of curvent lotter  Anticipated sxpiry of
of appeintmem CUMSRT M
Cari-Peter Forster + October 2012 3 Jarwmry 2017 30 September 2018
Ross Mcinnes 1 October 2014 3 January 2017 30 September 2017
Birgit Nargaard B Novemnber 2012 3 Jenuary 2017 5 November 2018
Isobe! Shap 1 Septernber 2015 3 January 2017 31 August 2018
Lord Robert Smith 7 May 2015 3 Janumry 2017 € May 2018
Bob Stack 13 June 2008 3 January 2017 12 June 2017

Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met an six occasions during the year including

two results reporting meetings, a day dedicated fo strategy
discussions and regular review meetings. (n addition, there were
several days spent on group site visits to three operating units.
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Board activity
Highlights of Board activity in the year were: :
» Bedding in the Board and Executive membership following
various changes during 2015
* Reaffiming the commitment 1o the strategy
» Overseeing progress with growth and process investments
- Continuing growth investments made in new products and
business IT systems
- Driving core process disciplines including lean, risk,
compliance, advanced product quality planning and
policy deployment
* Approval and review of strategy implementation inciuding
- Manufacturing transfers in IMI Critical Engineering
- Adopting a new organisation structure in IMI Precision
Engineering
- Reviewing the "go to market” strategy in IMI Precision
Engineering
- New product introductions in IMI Hydronic Engineering
* Overseeing risk and the continuing actions to strengthen
the interal contral environment
* Reviewing talent and succession management and the

continued embedding of our people development processes
including succession plans, talent prograrmmes and

improverments in management capability

Board attendance

Director Board meatings 9% attended where
eligible

Carl-Peter Forstar 6/6 100
Roas Mcinnea 6/6 100
Birgit Nergaard 6/6 100
Isobel Sharp 6/6 100
Lord Smith 6/6 100
Bob Steck 6/8 100
Mark Selway &6 100
Daniel Shook &/6 100
Roy Twite® 4/6 B7

# Roy Twite did not participate in two meetings due 1 attendance at 8 leadership
and strategic development programme at the Company’s request.

In 2017 to date the Board has met once with all members
in attendance.

Board roles and reserved matters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included
in the Governance Framework and summarised in the Directors’
Report on pages 132 to 135.

induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for new non-execitive directors is well
established and is the responsibility of the Chaiman with support
from the Chief Executive and Company Secretary.

Business famitiarisation is at the core of induction and continuing
development for non-executive directors at IMI and is based
around gaining an understanding of the business and gatting

to know the wider management team. In addition all non-executive
directors attend a corporate induction day for senior managers
held at head office. There is also a comwmnittee induction process
designed to brief new committeés members on the relevant
committee's activity and the issues it faces.

Non-executive directors are required to visit business units
around the Group and to meet face-to-face with senior operating
managernent and key corporate staff, Non-executive directors
continue to become familiar with the businesses after induction
and there is reqular contact between management and non-
executive directors during site visits, formal meetings and events.
During 2016 all of the non-executive directors made site visits
and the whole Board spent several days in Germany, whera they
vistted sites in both IMI Precision Engineering and IMI Hydronic
Engineering. There was also a visit to the Group's largest

UK operation.

Appropriate coaching and access to training and other continuing
professional development is available to all non-executive directors
and appropriate updates are given during the year at Board and
committee meetings. Special governance and regulatory refresher |
sessions were held during the year and were attended by all of the
non-executive dinectors. In 20186, these included update sessions
for all three of the standing committees and governance updates
for the Board which covered the EU Market Abuse Regulation

and other developrments,
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Board visits to IMI Buschjost and IMI Heimeler in Germany
IM| has a substantial presence in Germany which is home to
business units in all three divisions and IMI's largest Eurppean
market. In October the Board visited Germany where it held
meetings and visited two outstanding manufacturing sites,

one in Precision Engineering, IMI Buschijost, and the other

in Hydronic Engineering, IMI Heimeier.

IMt Buschiost is a key brand for Precision Engineering and offers
a comprehensive range of valves ideally suited to the process
industry including solenoid valves, angle-seal valves, motorised
valves and systems for dust filtars. IMI Heimeter is a key brand
for Mydronic Engineering and offers thermostatic radiator valves,
actuators and roomn thermostats.

During the factory tours, the engineers and machine operators
had the opportunity to showcase new product development and
rmacie business presentations and after the site visits they enjoyed
dinner with the Board.

The Boarg commended the investment in lean improvernent,
new products and innovation and the high standards of
operational management. IMI's core processes were seen to
be well embedded at sach site. The Board was very impressed
with both businesses and congratulated local management for
the progress being made.

Site visits are an important, reguiar feature of the Board calendar.
Such visits provide an excellent opportunity for the Board to
meet a wider group of employees and gain a more in-depth
understanding of the business.

The Board with members of IMI Buschjost's management team

Board evaluation

In 2016 an internal evaluation exercise was carried out through
questionnaires and canvassing comments from directors. The
Board received the findings of the internal evalkuation in December
2016 and relevant elements were shared with the committees.
While the findings of the intemal evaluation were overwhelmingly
positive, in kegping with the Group’s commitment 10 continuous
improvernent, the Board agreed that some areas should be further
developed over the coming year, including changes to the order
of mestings.

Action taken in responsa to the intemal evaluation undertaken

in 2015 included the appointrnertt of all non-executive directors
to the Nominations Committes and subsequent training on best
practice for the expanded Norninations Committes.

The Board reviewed effectiveness, taking account of the
Financial Reporting Council's best practice guidance on board
effectiveness, and the directors confirmed that the Board is
fulfiling its responsibilities appropriately and that the Board

and its committees were effective. Evaluations of individual
Board directors were also undertaken to assess whether each
continuing director has demonstrated an effective contribution
and commitment 10 the role. The Chaimman fed back to individual
directors the relevant findings.

As senior independent director, Bob Stack conductad a review
of the Chairman with the other non-executive directors and
shared the results with the Chairman. During the year the
Chairmman also met with the non-executive directors to review
the performance of the Chief Executive. The Chairman passed
on to the Chief Executive appropriate feedback from the review
of his performance.

In line with the Code, the Board has agreed that the Chairman
will arrange an externally faciktated evaluation process every
three years and the next such process will be conducted in
2017 facilitated by Egon Zehnder.

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Commitiea,
the Nominations Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Each of these committees operates under written terms of
referance which clearly set out their respective delegatad
responsibiiiies and authorities. The full terms of reference

of these committees are part of the Governance Framework.
The committees report to the Board on their work, nomally
through their respective chair, following each meeting.

Separate reports from the committees appear in this Annual
Report as follows: Audit Committee Report on pages 55 to 57:
Norminations Committes Report on page 58 and Remuneration
Committee Report on pages 59 to 71.
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Audit Committee Nominations Committee Remuneration Committee
Ross Mcinnes Lond Smith of Kelvin Bob Stack
Chaiman Chabman Chairman
Mambarship: Membeorship; Mambership:
+ Carl-Peter Forster » Cert-Peter Forster » Cerl-Pater Forster
*» Birgit Nergaard * Ross Melnnes * Birgit Nergaard
* sobel Sharp * Birgit Nergaard
» isobe! Shamp
» Bob Stack
Main reaponsibitities: Main responsibilities; Main responsibilities:
Fnancial reporting » Board and committes compaosition + Define and recommend the remunaration policy

= Oversight role in relation to financial statements

* Rgviewing significant areas of judgement and
aocounting policies

* Reviewing the proposed statements on
going concem and viabilty 1o appear in the
Annwal Report

* Advising the Board on whether the draft Annua
Report Is fair, balanced and understandabie

» Monitoring announcements in respect of
financial performance

Financial control and risk

* Reviewing the effectiveness of internal
financial controls

+ Reviewing financial risk inchuding fraud rsk

» Ovarsight of internal audit

= Managing the external audit process, its chiaciivity,
effectiveneas end cosat

= Appointment of the auditor and responsibility
for the audit fee

» Reviswing the system for confidential
whistieblowing and the treatment of
reparts recelvad

= Succession plans for the Board and for sanior
management and corporats roles

» Search for and recommenciation of candidates
for appointment as non-executive directors, Chief
Executive and other executive director positions

» Diversity policy and monitoring of progress

* Review and recommendation of proposals for
the assignment of major executive responsibilitios
and the appointmant and removal of divisiong!
business lsaders

*» Detenine the individual mmuneration packages
for the most senior executives and the Chalman
within tha policy epproved by shareholders .

* Sat annual and long-term incentive metrics and
awards and delenine the gutcomes

* Report on remuneration matters and constructively
engage with shareholders

* As5ass risk in respect of remuneration and
incentive structures in particular
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive and
the other members are shown on page 9. Regular attendees
include the Head of Group Finance, Director of Risk and
Compliance, and the Head of Investor Relations. Other senior
executives and fine managers from around the Group are regularly
called upon to atiend meetings of the Executive Committee. The
Committee meets monthly and more often as may be required.

The Executive Committes is the senior Management body and
as part of the broad remit set by the Chief Executive it monitors
and manages business performance, reviews progress against
strategic objectives and considers divisional management issues.
It also formulates budgets and proposals on strategy, policy and
resource allocation for consideration by the Board. The Executive
Committee is a Management committee which takes its authority
from the Chief Executive and is not a committee of the Board.

The Executive Committes plays a key part in risk assesament,
risk management and monitoring processes and receives
regular reports on health and safety, compliance, legal and
corporate affairs.

Investor relations

The Board as a whole seeks to maintain a balanced
understanding of the issues and concemns of major shareholders
and to assist them in the stewardship of their investments.

The Chief Executive and Finance Director have primary
responsibility at Board level for investor relations and they,

and the Head of Investor Relations, report to the Board

on shareholder issues at every Board meeting during the

year. Financial analysts’ notes are circulated to the directors

and the Board receives regular feedback reports from the
Company'’s brokers and public relations advisers as well as from
Management, Dialogue is maintained with shareholders and the
executive directors meet regularly with institutional investors:
during 2016 there were aver 130 such meetings with institutional
sharsholders. The Chairnan and the senior independent director
also are available to shareholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors during the year.

The 2016 Annual General Mesting was presided over by the
Chairman and attended by all of the directors. The Chairman
encouraged debate and questions at the formal meeting and
the directors met sharehclders informally afterwards. Each
substantively separate issue was put to the Annual General
Meeting as an individual motion. A resolution for the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report was also put to the
mesting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting was issued
more than twenty working days in advance and the level of
votes iodged for and against each resolution, together with
details of abstentions are shown on the IMI website. The Board
values the support of shareholders and the poll results for all

* nesokutions proposed at the Annual General Mesting were well
above 90% in favour in each case.’

In addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues
preliminary results and interim results announcements, as

well as two interim management slatements between results
announcements. The IMl website includes recordings of certain
key presentations made by senior Management, recent annual
and interim reports, interim management statements, other
corporate announcements and inks to the websites of the
Group'’s businesses.

The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenience
of shareholders with Equiniti (details are shown on page 156).

A sponsored Level 1 American Depositary Receipt programme
has been established for which Citibank, N.A. acts as depositary
{details can be found on page 156).

JohnQ’'Shea
Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
23 February 2017
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Audit Committee Report

Ross Mcinnes
Chalrrman of the Audit Commitiee

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present my third report as Chairman of the
Audit Committee. This report is intended to give an account

of the Committee and its activity in support of the Board.

The core responsibility of the Committee is oversight in refation
to financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
provided by internal and external audit.

Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Pater Forstar, Isobel Sharp and | were
members of the Audit Committee throughaut the year. Al of the
Committes mernbers are regarded by the Board as independent
non-executive directors. | have chaired the Audit Commitiee
since 1 January 2015 and became a mamber on 1 October
2014, | was a career finance director untit my retirement from
executive office with Safran in 2015 and | have significant
recent and refevant financial experience. | also chair the audit
committees at two French public companies, Faurecia SA and
Eutelsat Communications SA. My colleagues on the Committee
have experience at audit committee level and Isobel Sharp

is a Chartered Accountant with a strong financial assurance
background through her career in audit practice. Together
the Committee members have the skills, experience and
objectivity to be an effective audit commitiee and constructively
chalienge Management.

The Committee generally asks the following to join its meetings:
the Chairman, the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the
Head of Group Finance, the Director of Risk and Compliance,
the Group Assurance Director and the external auditor, EY.

| consult with the Finance Director and other key staff and with
the external auditor ahead of meetings to ensure issues are
well understood and the meeting papers are appropriate.

The Committee holds at lsast part of several meetings each year
alone with the extemnal auditor and with the Director of Risk and
Compliance and the Group Assurance Director. The Committee
has the powers to call on any empioyees 1o come before it.

The Secretary to the Commitiee is the Company Secretary,

who is also the Group Legal Director,

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2016, including

two resuits reporting meetings and two planning and

Financial controls continued to be a key focus area for the
Committee and Management has continued 1o make significant
progress in strengthening intemal financial controls and risk
management procasses. Based on its review of selected key
controls, EY agreed with Management's assessment that the
lavel of control effectiveness at fufl and specific scope locations
remains high at 98%. The IT investment and infrastructure
programme will further strengthen the control emvironment in the
years ahead and facilitate efficiency improvements in the audit.

The Committee has received reporis on the six-monthly
Intermal Control Declarations which are submitted by each
business unit and cover internal controls in relation to financial
affairs, [T, human resources and other key areas. The process
is managed by Group Assurance, which routinely audits and
folows up declarations to review scores and appropriate
Improvement actions.

The Committee's work also included reviewing the financial
statements, the effectiveness of internal financial controls and
assurance processes and the significant issues of judgement
described below.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to the
Board the statermnents on going concern and viability, which
appear in the Directors’ Report on pages 132 to 135.

The Committee remit calls upon it to advige the Board in
relation to the fair, balanced and understandable requirements
in respect of the Annual Report and the Committee has

made a positive report 10 the Board in this connection. This

is also an area for review by the auditor in relation to which

it did not report any exceptions. The statement of Directors’
responsibilities on page 136 includes confirmation by the
Board that it considers the report and accounts, taken as

a whole, {o be fair, balanced and understandable.

During the year, the Committee received a technical and
governance update covering changes in accounting standards,
developments in audit reform and other key 10pics.

Mooy Bajang I vononpogu|

0

A0y Ayeund o

SULNING |ourUlY



56 M1 plc

Audit Committee Report (cont’d)

Attendance
Director Audit Committee % attended where
meetings eligible
Carl-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Ross Mcinnes 4a/4 100
Birgit Nergaard 474 100
|lsobel Sharp 4/4 100

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role in respect of the
Annual Report and announcements with financial content all of
which are prepared by Management. The Committee received
reports on the annual and intenm financial statements from
Management and the external auditor who presented to its
meetings. The auditor's report including a summary of key
areas of audit focus is set out on pages 137 to 143. ’

Significant judgements related to the financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are a number of areas requiring
the exercise by Management of judgement and estimation.

The Committee reviews the most significant accounting areas
involving such judgements and estimates and these are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising from
acquisitions

We considered the level of goodwill held on the Group’s balance
sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions and whether,
given the future prospects of these businesses, the value of
goodwil in sach case remains appropriate.

The Committee reviewed the assumptions and calculations
used by Management in the assessment of any impairment of
goodwilt and intangible assets and agreed that no impainment
charges were required save for a £5m charge in respect of
Stainless Steel Fasteners Limited. Impairment was aiso a
focus area for EY which reportad its findings to the Committes.
Section 3.2 to the financial statements on page 97 provides
details regarding the Group’s intangible assets and goodwill
and the impaiment charge mentioned above.

Revenue recognition

The Gommittee discussed the timing of revenue recognition
on some of the Group's larger contracts. In addition, this is an
area of audit focus on which EY reported to the Committee.
Having reviewed Management’s process and EY's report,

the Committee concluded that revenues were appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. Section S note G to the
financial statements on page 127 provides further information.

The Committee also reviewed Management's assessment of the
impact of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
which is discussed further in Section 1 on page 84.

Pensions accounting

The Committee reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment in respect of pension scheme liabilities, including the
actuarial assumptions used and the impact of one-off special
pension events. The Committes also reviewed reporting from
the external auditor, which concurred with the accounting

for pensions as proposed by Management. The Committee
supported Managerent’s on-going effort 1o de-risk its pension
obligations. Further details can be found in Section 4.5 on
page 114.

Inventory valuation

The Committee reviewed the judgements applied to standard
costing valuations and provisions against excess and obsolete
inventory and concurred with Management'’s assessment.
This was another focus area for EY, in respect of which it
reported to the Committee that inventory valuation across the
Group is considered appropriate. Note 3.1.1 to the financial
statements on page 96 provides details of inventory valuation.

Other judgement areas

In addition the Committes reviewed the appropriateness of
restructuring costs disclosed as exceptional, property sales and
the adequacy of taxation provisions. Further details on thesa
matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively.

External audit independence and performance review

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach
and its scope based on the size and level of risk of the entities
concemned. The Committee takes a risk based approach to
audit and other assurance activity. The key audit risks identified
by EY are et out in its report on page 137 and were reviewed
by the Committee in approving the audit scope and plan.

The Committee considered the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor. In assessing auditor independence the
Committes had regard to the Financial Reporting Council’s
latest best practice guidance for audit commitiees. In addition,
the auditor confirmed that its ethics and independence policies
complied with the requirements of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

The policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit work was
reviewad and updated by the Committee in 2016 to take
account of developments in regulatory requirements and ethical
guidelines for the audit profession. The policy requires approval
by the Committee for any non-audit engagement which is

rmore than trivial. The Finance Director monitors any proposed
non-audit engagement of EY and refers to the Committee

for approval as appropriate. The policy does not allow work

to be placed with the auditor if it could compromise auditor
independence, such as, functioning in the role of management
or auditing its own work. Non-audit fees paid to the auditor were
£0.2m (2015: £0.2m}, which represents 8% of the audit fee and
demonstrates the tight control which is maintained in this area.
No non-audit engagemants involved fees above £30,000 and
the main areas of activity were tax compiiance and the interim
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resuits review. We are of the view that the level and nature of
non-audit work does not compromise the independence of
the external auditor.

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted to ensure that
it is approprate and competitive and the Committee approved
the proposed audit fee payable to EY.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit
process. A questionnaire was usad to review the external
auditor and was completed by each member of the Committea
and by the Finance Director. Feedback was also received from
the Chief Exacutive, the Head of Group Finance, Group and
Divisional Management. The output from this process was
considered by the Cornmitiee and was provided to the external
auditor. As a resuit of this exercise the Commitiee believes

the external auditor’s performance has been satisfactory and
the external auditor is considered to be effective. To further
enhance the external audit process, certain improvement
actions were identified in the effectiveness review and plans
have besn put in place by EY to address these. These included
a focus on improving continuity of staff and eartier completion
of certain locations statutory accounts.

Auditor choice, tenure and tendering

The Commiittee recommended and the Board approved

the proposal to re-appoint EY as the external auditor at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. EY was first appointed
as auditor for the year-ending 31 Dacember 2008, following
a competitive tendering process, after which it replaced the
pravious auditor. The temm of appointment is annual and there
ara no contractual restrictions on the Committee’s choice

of auditor,

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the external
audit partner responsibie for the Group is rotated within EY
at least every five years and the curment Senior Statutory
Auditor, Andrew Walton, has now been in place for four
years and will change following completion of the 2017 audit,
Succession planning has been caried out and a new audit
partner designate has been approved by the Committee.
New regulations for audit tendering and rotation of audit firms
have been introduced which require mandatory tendering
after ten years (i.e. ahead of the 31 Dacember 2019 audit)
and a change of audit firm after 20 years {i.e. ahead of the

31 Decermber 2029 audit). The Committee does nat currently
intend to do s0 but reserves the right to run a tender for the
audit role at an earlier date if that is right for the Company and
otherwisa, will conduct a tender by the regulatory deadline.

Internal audit

The Committee also receives reports from and monitors the
werk of the internal audit function, known as Group Assurance.
Group Assurance reports through the Director of Risk and
Compliance to the Chief Executive. Group Assurance also has

a direct reporting line to the Committee. Assurance work is
primarily directed towards financial control audits but has been
broadened into other areas including major business change

project planning and implementation and internal control
declarations. The principal projects reviewed in 2016 were
major computer systems implementations in each of the

three divisions.

Group Assurance is working closely with the divisions to
develop improved monitoring and revisw processes 1o
complement the internal and external audit coverage. The
annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by
the Committee and take account of the enhanced monitoring
and review activity planned within the divisions.

The Committes reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance
with Management and received input from the external auditor.
The Committee was pleased to nole the contribution that
Group Assurance had made to the further strengthening of
internal financial controls during the year.

Compliance hotline

The Committes reviews the operation of the independent
compliance hotline for reporting concerns, oversees the

more significant reports received and considers how these

are investigated and followed up. We believe that the hotline
process and investigations are effective and that proportionate
action is taken by Management in response.

Committee evaluation

The Audit Committee reviewed its own performance and terms
of refarence and received positive feedback from the evaluation
exercise carmied out in relation to the Board and each of its
standing committees.

The Committee approved the foregoing report on its work,

—

Chairmnan of the Aulit Committee
23 February 2017

Yours faithfully
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Nominations Committee Report

-

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman of the Nominations Commitiee

Dear Sh_areholder

Compaosition

Carl-Peter Forster, Ross Mcinnes, Birgit Nergaard, Iscbef Sharp,

Bob Stack and | were members of the Committee throughout
the year. All of the other members of the Commitiee are
regarded as independent non-executive directors.

Attendance
Director Nominations % attended where
Committee meetings oligible
Carl-Peter Forster 3 100
. Ross Mcinnes a3 100
Birgit Nergaard a3 100
Isobel Sharp 33 100
Lovd Smith a3 100
Bob Stack a3 100

Main areas of activity in 2016

No new directors have been appointed during the year. All of
the directors are recommended for re-election at the 2017
Annual General Meeting. The Board approved all of the
recommendations made by the Committee for the renewals
of appointment for continuing directors. Other key areas of
activity are described below.

Succession planning
The Commiittee reviews Board composition and has formulated
a structured, medium-term plan for Board succession. During
the year we noviewed talent development and succession
planning for the top 230 roles in the Group with the support
of the Chief Executive and Group Hurman Resources Director.
We were encouraged to see that significant progress continues
to be made in terms of cuitivating a pipeline of high-calibre
talent. Further details of the Management succession planning
process are set out in the Corporate Resporsibility section on
pages 28 to 37. The Committes noted the Financial Reporting
Council's 2016 feedback statement on UK Board succession
planning as a useful point of reference.

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chairmnan and non-executive directors
are made on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including
a stated minimum time commitmant judged appropriate by the
Committee. The Commitiee considers that the time given to IMI
by each non-executive director is sufficient. The Board is satisfied
that | have the necessary time to davote to my role as Chalrman.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can
bring to a boardroom and remains cormmitted to increasing
diversity in the businesses by voluntary measures. We will
continue to review the composition of our management teams
and the Board 1o ensure that we have the right mix of skills and
experience while maintaining our effectiveness and execution
capabilities. At Board leve!, there are six nationalities, two of the
five non-executive dinectors are female and there is a broad mix
of backgrounds and experience. Further information on diversity
matters is given in the Corporate Responsibility section on
pages 28 to 37.

Committee evaluation

The Nominations Committee reviewed its own performance

and terms of reference and received positive feedback from the
evaluation exercise camied out in respect of the Board and each
of its committees. Following the Board evaluation in 2015, the
Committee membership during 2016 has included ali of the non-
executive directors and an update on Nominations Committee
best practice was provided for the expanded Committee,

The Committee approved the foregoing report on its work,

Lord Smith of Kelvin

Chaiman of the Nominations Committee
23 February 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Statement from the
Chairman of the Committee

Bob Stack
Chairman of the Rermuneration Comimittee

Dear Shareholder

2016 was the second year under our remuneration policy
following its approval by shareholders in 2015. In line with

last year's approach and 10 simplify this year's report, our
approved remuneration policy can be found in the 2014 Annual
Report on the IM! website. Our focus this year has been
twofold: 10 ensure congistent application of our policy and to
ensure remuneration arrangements remain appropriate in light
of the continuing tough economic and market conditions.

2016 has bean a challenging year for IMI with continued
difficult economic and markat conditions putting pressure
on the Group's ability to deliver progress in many of the

key finangial measures. It is pleasing to report that many of
the longer term actions have been executed well and the
new product pipeline, operational improvements and ERP
implementation have all made excellent progress in the year.

Group profit before tax has decreased by 5% to £208m while
organic revenue was lower by 5% to £1,649m. EPS was also
lower by 4% in 2016 and sharsholders rsceived a dividend of
38.7p - an increase of 1% from last year.

Despite the challenges encountered, we remain focused

on executing our strategy, investing in the business and
capitalising on long-term growth opportunities. In particular,
the investments made over the course of 2015 and 2016 give
us improved potential to grow shareholder value in the long-
term and we rmain ¢confident that we are well positioned to
capitalise on future market recovery. The Committee believes
that the romuneration arrangements in place will continue to
support the strategic business plan and ensure a strong focus
on growth and efficiency.

How were pay outcomes linked to performance in 20187

Remuneration for the executive directors is closely tied

to business performance, with a high proportion of total
remuneration delivered through variable pay linked to our
strategic plan. At IMI we remain committed to a pay-for-
performance philosophy and as a result of the performance
challenges | have outlined, the outcomes under our variable
pay schemes are below the on-target level,

Annual incentive awands to axecutive directors for 2016 were
based on a combination of Group profit before tax (40%),
organic revenue growth (20%)}, cash conversion (20%) and
stratagic and personal objectives {20%). Although only
threshold levels were achieved in respect of Group profit before
tax and organic revenues, above target levels were achieved
for cash convarsion-which together with achievement against
strategic and personal objectives resulied in the annual
incentive bonus payrments, and consequently the single total
figure, being marginally higher than last year. The Committes
is confident that this represents a fair reflection of performance
in the context of the aforementioned challenges faced by the
business. Summary outcomes against financial targets are
presented in the chart below:

Target Maximum
Group profit
befors tax 16%
Ornganic revenus
growth 35%
Cash conversion 2%

Additional to the annual incentive awards is the IMI Incentive
Plan, which is further explained on page 66. This plan was only
implermented in 2015, the first vesting of the award will be in
2018. M W Seiway and R M Twite were granted a matching
share award and performance award in 2014 and the awards
vested at 0% and 0% respectively. -
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Committee (cont’d)

" "~ ]
What decisions were made in 20167

The Commiittee reviewed remuneration arrangements for

the executive directors during the yaar and decided that no

change to remuneration policy or to structure in 2016 or 2017

is appropriate or necessary.

The Committee reviewed the base salary levels for executive

directors in light of 2016 business performance and concluded

that an increase of 2%, effective 1 January 2017, was

appropriate and in line with the wider employee workforce.

The Chairman and non-executive director fees were also
reviewed and were increased by 2%, effective 1 January 2017.

Looking forward

The Committee wil keep the existing remuneration policy under
review to ensure it continues to support IMI’'s strategic
objectives. With this is mind, it is noted that the remuneration
poficy was last approved by sharsholders in 2015 and is due to
be reviewed before a policy is put to the 2018 Annual General
Meating. This policy review will be a key area of focus for the
Committee ahead of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Yours faitEJﬂy

Bob c

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
23 February 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report

introduction

The Committee presents the Directors’ Remuneration Report, which will be put to shareholders for an
advisory (non-binding) vote at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 4 May 2017. The report includes
details of the Committee, the pay received by our executive directors during the year in accordance with
our current remuneration policy {approved on 7 May 2015) and comparative internal and external data.

The Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee'}

C tion

The members of the Committee throughout the year were
Bob Stack (Chairman), Carl-Peter Forster and Birgit Nergaard.
In accordance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance
Code, all of the non-executive directors were regarded by

the Board as independent.

Responsibility

The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards
for the executive directors and, in his absence, the Chairman.
The Committee aiso reviews the remuneration packages

of those at the next most senior level of management and

has considered the levels of pay across the broader Group.

A copy of the Committes's terms of reference, which are
reviewed annually, is included in the IMI Corporate Govemance
Framework and available in the Corporate Governance section
of the IMI| website.

internal advisors to the Committee

During the year, the Committes consulted the Chief Executive,
regarding the packages of the other executive directors and
senior managers. It also received support from the Finance
Director, the Group Human Resources Director, the Head

of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, who is also
secretary to the Committee. None of these individuals were
involved in determining their own remuneration.

External advisers to the Committee

independent remuneration consultant, Wilis Towers Watson,

is formally appointed by the Committee and provided advice
on directors’ remuneration to the Committee in 2016. The
Committee noted that the firm are actuaries and administrators
for the IMI Pension Fund. The Committee is comfortable that
these activities do not represent a conflict of interest and that
objective and independent advice continues to be received

by the Committee from the dedicated team servicing it at

Willis Towers Watson.

During 2016, Willis Towers Watson has also supported
management on some broader reward and human resource
matters. The fees charged by Willis Towers Watson in respect
of advice and services to the Committee totalled £50,000
and for support to management totalled £17,000 in 2016.
wilis Towers Watson are signatories to the Remuneration
Consultants' Code of Conduct in the UK.

A summary of the Committee activities during 2016

The Committee had three formal meetings during the year,
and each was attended by all members. The principal agenda
items were as follows:

* a review of total compensation packages of the executive
directors and the most senior managament of the Group
to ensure alignment with IMI's strategic growth plan;

= approval of achisverments and outcomes under the
incentive plans; |

= consiclaration of the fees for the Chaiman;

* setting the framework and target levels for the 2016 incentive
cycle including review of the performance targets attaching
to the 2017 long-term incentive plan awards;

* approval of the granting of share awards 10 executive
directors and certain other levels of management;

* a review of the UK corporate governance environment
relative to remuneration;

* a risk review of the remuneration frarework;

= a review of the engagement of the independent remuneration
consultants to the Committee; and

= a review of the Commitiee’s own performance, constitution
and terms of reference.

Attendance
Director Remuneration % sttended
Comniites mestings  whare aliglble
A J Stack a 100%
C-P Foreter 100%
B Nergaxrd 100%

Voting outcome at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

The following table summarises the dstails of votes cast for
and against the remuneration report resolution including those
votes withheld. The Committes was pleased with the level

of support shown by shareholders and will continue

to consider the views of, and feedback from, shareholders
when setting and reporting on remunaration arrangements.

Directors’ Remuneration Votes for Votes against  Votes withheid
Report

Annual Remuneration Policy 98.73%

1.27% 2,406,779
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Remuneration Report (cont’d)

|
Executive single figure table {audited)

Annual Other hams In the nature
Fixad pay varigble pay Long-tesrm variable pay of remunerstion
£000) 2000
Share Subtotel
Annial Matching  Periormance long-term All- Dividend
Taxable incantive Plan Share equivelent Total
Direttor Base salyy Penslon banefits bonus ('SMP} Ptan (PSP pay | sham plans payments
- Peges Pages
Sae page Pege 64 Page 64 Page 65 85t 66 Page 87 67 1o 68 Page 69 Page 69
2018 785 238 42 781 - 38 28 4 - 1,888
M W Selway
2015 7 29 50 811 - . - -3 - 1,887
2018 454 150 19 an - - - 4 . 84T
R M Twite
2018 445 158 19 104 135 - 136 4 - 453
2016 410 82 ) 252 . - 4 - 782
D J Shook
ans 400 80 100 103 - - - 7

R M Twite served on the Board of Halma pic during the year and received feea of £51,000 in respect of this appointment which he retained.

Thase figures have been calculated as fotlows:

Base salary:
Pension:
Taxable benefits:

Annual incentive bonus:

Sharé Matching Plan:

Performance Shara Plan:

the actual salary receivable for the year.
the cash aflowance paid in lieu of pension.

the gross value of all taxabta benefits (or bensfits
that would be taxable in the UK) mceived in tha year

the value of tha annual incentive payable for
performance in respect of the relevant financial
year (half of this Is automatically defivered in shares
whan the executive does not meet the share
ownership requirement).

ths valua on vesting of the matching shares that
wore subject to perforrnance over the thrse-year
perod anding on 31 December in the relevant financia
year (see share price assumptions adjacent).

the valua on vasting of shanes that were subject

to perfomance over the three-year period ending

on 31 Dacember in the relevant financial year

[see shara price assumptions adjacent).

Share price assumptions’

. All-employee shars plans:

for shares vesting in 2017, that refated to performance
in the three years to 31 December 2016, the average
share price over the final thres months of 2016
1,007.51 pence is used to estimate the valug of shares
on vesting. For shares vested in 20186, relating to
performance In the three years to 31 Decamber 2015,
praviously reported figures' are updated to reflact the
actual sham price on the date of vesting (825 50 pence
for the Share Matching Plan and §38.00 pence for the
Performance Share Flan).

the value of free shares at award and dividends under
the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the refevant
financial yaar and the intrinsk: value of Save as You
Earn share options on the date of grant in the relevant
financial year {applying a 10% discount as permitted
under the Save as You Earmn Share Plan).

the value of dividend equivalent shares on vested but
unexercised awards under the share plans, valued at
the price on the dividend payment date.

' The everage share price over the final three months of 2015 (940,93 pence)
was used.
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Comparative data of pay spend
The following information is intended to provide additional context
regarding the total remuneration for executive directors.

Relative importance of pay spend
2016 2015  Change
(€m) {£m)
Acquisitions . - 106.2 -100%
Dividends To1042 102.5 2%
Total employment costs for Group 566.6 508.2 "%
{see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 88)

in 20186, the total dividend for the year of 38.7 pence represented
an increase of 1% over last year's 38.4 pence.

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Committee actively considers any increases in base
pay for the Chief Executive relative to the broader employee

Historical performance and remuneration

In addition to considering executive remuneration in the
context of intemal comparisons, the Committee reviews
historical outcomes under the variable pay plans.

The graph below compares IMI's total shareholder return
(TSR} to the FTSE100 over the last eight years. We compare
performance to the FTSE100 as IMI has been included in the
index in the past and it is a position where IMI aspires to be. .
TSR rmaasures the returns that a company has provided for
its sharsholders, reflacting share price movements and
assuming reinvestmenit of dividends (source: DataStream),
with data averaged over the final 30 days of each financial year.

As the graph below #llustrates, IMI's absolute and relative TSR
performance has been strong over the last eight years. This is
reflected in the outcomes under our variable pay plans, which
are largely driven by the financial performance of the Group
and IMI's share price.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment

population. However, benefits and bonus payments are not o=
typically compared given they are driven by a far broader oo
range of factors, such as local practices, eligibility, individual £e00 / \
circumstances and role. .
£so0 I ~—
400
Chiof Executive Employees' o0 S~
Base salary 2% 2% / "
£200 Y w =¥
Benefits -16% 5% coo %-----'"""""
Annual bonus 28% r% 0
2008 2008 20 201 2012 2013 2034 2015 2018

1 All UK head office employess. This comparison excludes our international
workdorce which we feel would not provide a true comparison given differing
local market faciors.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report (cont'd)

]
The following table surmmarises the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over the last eight years, and the outcomes of short

and long-term incentive plans as a % of maximum.

Financial year-ended 31 December 2009" 2010 2011 2012 ny 2014 2015 2016
Total remuneration 2,547 4,439 12,2689 7.954 6,668 1,567 1,667 1,886
(single figure, £000)

Annual variable pay 91% 95% 85% 47% 62% 36% 40% 50% .
(% of maximum}

Long-term variable pay B84% 7% 95% 100% 100% - - -
(% of maximum} -

Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay 45% 1009% 160% 100% 82.6% - - 3.5%
(% of maximum) - .

Performance Share Plan

! Represents rermuneration for M J Lamb who was Chiel Executive from before 2008 untll 31 December 2013,
2 Represents rernunaration for M W Selway who was appointed Chief Executive on 1 January 2014.

Executive remuneration raceived in respect of 2016

Base salary

Salaries effective January 2016 were agreed taking into account
a range of factors including the prevailing economic conditions,
the financial performance of the Group and salary increases

for other employees. The average increass for employees

was 2.7%, compared to 2.1% for the executive directors.

M W Selway's, R M Twite's and D J Shook’s salaries were
increased by 1.9%, 2.0%, and 2.5% to £785,000, £454,000
and £410,000 respectively.

Pension

Executive directors are entitied to receive a taxable cash
allowance instead of pension benefits. With the Committee’s
approval the executiva directors may, at their discretion,
redirect part or all of their allowance into any defined
contribution pension arrangerment in the country in which they
are contracted. M W Selway receives a cash allowance of 30%
of salary and D J Shook receives a cash allowance of 20% of
salary. R M Twite receives a cash attowance of 35% of salary
as a legacy obligation from his appointment as an executive
diractor which continues 10 be honoured.

Pension benelits for past service

R M Twite was previously an active mermber of the defined
benefit IMI Pension Fund. He opted out with effect from

1 February 2007, before he became an executive director
and as a result, he retains past pensionable service up

to that date in the IMI 2014 Deferred Fund ('the Fund').

The key elements of the benefits in the Fung are
summarised below:

+ the nomnal retirerment age under the Fund is 62 and
R M Twite may retire from employment with i} any
time after age 60 without actuarial discount;

= on death after retirerent, a dependant's pension is
provided equal to 50% of the member's pension;

= should he die within the first five years of retirement,
the dependant’s pension is increased to 100% of the
member's pension for the remainder of the five year period; and

= pensions in payment, in excess of any guaranteed minimum
pension, are increased each year in line with price inflation
up to a maximum of 5% in respect of pension buit up before
1 January 2006, and 2.5% in respect of pansion built up
after 1 January 2006,

Accrued pension Accrued pension

in the Fund as al in the Fund as at

31 December 2016 3t Decomber 2015

R M Twite 70 69
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Benefits Annuegl incentive bonus

During the year the executive directors received a number of The 2016 bonus plan focused on the financial performance of
benefits. These are summanised below and amounits less than IMI during the year, considering Group profit before tax (40%),

£10,000 p.a. are combined. organic revenue growth (20%}, cash conversion (20%) and
strategic and personal objectives (20%). Health and safety —
M W Saway R M Twite D J Shook will serve as an underpin to ensure bonuses are only paid
e 016 2016 2016 preyy e out when minimum standards are achieved. g
Non-cash benefits (£000} 2016 was a challenging year for IMI with difficuit economic and s
. ) ’ 2 2 " » market conditions contributing to weaker than targeted financial i
resufts when compared to 2015: ; ]
Civsh birwlits nd taxabie allowances [EO) * Group profit before tax decreased to £208m in 2016 from
Compairy 20 20 7 7 14 14 £219m in 2015, representing a 5% decrease;
Cor and ol « Group revenue decreased by 5% on an organic basis
compared to 2015;
Retocation ' . ' . . ™« cash conversion was 95%, compared with 97% in 2015;
Other n » : - s .= the total dividend for the year increased by 1% compared
Totat 4 s0 19 ] M4 10 2015; and o
» gtrong performance for health and safety with leading g
In addition to the above benefits and aowances that are measures showing benefits from lean and HSE integration
induded in the single figure (refer to table on page 62), in the year. :

the executive directors are also beneficiaries of company policies
that have no taxable value, including directors’ and officers’
insurance, death In service cover, travel insurance, the use

of a company driver and personal accident cover.

Summarised in the table below is the achieverent against Group targets set at the beginning of the year alongside the resulting
contribution to bonus payout.

Annual bonus metrics* 2018 Actual Payoutas a Welghtingesa Contribution
performance performance® percentage of  percentage of total to payout as a
required maximum banus opportunity percentage of
maximum bonus -
opportunity g
Group profit before tax ~ Threshold £172.5m £180.4m 18% 40% &%
Target £197.2m
Maodmum £216.9m
Group organic Threshoid £1,454m £1,486m 39% 20% 8%
revenue growth Target £1.494m
Maximum £1,534m
Group cash conversion  Threshold 76.0% 5% 82% 20% 18% e
{FY figures shown} Torget 89.0%
Maximum 98.0%

'R M Twite's annual bonus opportunity ks dependant on 8 combination of Group (35%) and Critical Engineering {45%) financial objectivas in ine with his role's
responsibiities. The Cornmittes balleves that the divisional targets are commercially sensitive and these are tharefore not disclosed in the table above.

2 Actugl performance s siated at the exchange rates used in the tangets,
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tn addition, @ach executive director has a number of personal objectives agreed with the individual during the first quarter of

the financial year, and which pertain to areas directly within thelr remit. The Committee seeks to set personal obiectives that are
demanding and measurabie, and in all cases they are subject to a robust and rigorous validation exercise at both the half and

full year which take into account multiple points of reference. These personal objectives and the Committee's assessment of

each executive director's performance against them is described below.

Individual perfarmance metrics 2016 performance required Payout as a Weighting as Contribution 10 payout
percentage of a percentage a3 a percentage of

maximum of tolal bonus . maximum bonus

opportunity opportunity

Individual performance objectives MW Selway: 89.2% 20.0% 17.8%

are robustiy set and are customised  Opjactivas included areas such as onganisation,

for each individual. All objectives sirategy, fnancial integrity and specific projects.
are measurable and are objectively

determined. Individual objectives for g p Twite: 96.6% 20.0% 19.3%
2016 built d the G 's
ey p:':rm:;mﬂ:?cmfs. UPS  Objectives included areas such as diversity,

strategy, cone process and specific projects.

D J Shook: 86.0% 20.0% 17.2%

In aggregate this resulted in the following annual incentive bonus outcomes:

2016 maximum Total bonus Total bonus Achievemant of share Bonus delivered Bonus delivered

bonus opportunity awarded (£000) awarded ownership guidelines in form of cash in form of shares

(% of salary) (% of salary) at 31 Dec 2016' (2000} (£000)

M W Selway 200% 781 100 21% 200 301
A M Twite 150% 3 69 141% 3N -
D J $hook 125% 252 61 16% 126 126

' Executive directors ane subject 1o guideiines which requine them to buikf a shareholding in IMI worth at least 250% of salary for M W Selway, 150% 0f salary for O J Shook and
200% of salary for R M Twite. When assessing compiiance with this guideline the Commitiee reviews both the levet of beneficidl share ownership and vested but unexercised
share incentive awands on a post-tax basis. Aithough M W Selway and D J Shook continue 1o make prograss towards this guideline, and have a material interest in the
Company's shares (as can be noted in the table on page 70), es a consequencs of awarda not having vested the Commities has determined that half of the annusal borus
payable to M W Seiway and D J Shook shall be defivered In shares which must ba held for a period of Bt least three years and until the sharsholding guidaline has been met.

Share interests granted to executive directors during 2016 (audited)

Grants made under the iM! incentive Plan ('IiP’) The following grants were approved and made in 2016:
Grants under the lIP were made on 9 March 2016 in the form

of nil-cost options, Awards are due to vest on 9 March 2019, I ey Value on dule ot Award 33 &
subject to performance in three core areas aligned to our arded w0 ealary
longer-term strategic priorities: return on capital employed M W Seiway 219,007 1002 p—
(25%), relative Total Shareholder Return (25%6) and Group . .
profit befora tax growth (50%). R M Twite $8.563 008 200%
The performanca targsts that apply to the 2016 IP ewards are D J Shaok g . 618 150%
ag follows: ¥ The three day average mic-market price on the date of award was 921.33 pence.
ROCE Relative  Group profit Lovel of
TSR before tax vesting  The IIP ig also used to grant defermed bonus awards exercisable
g after three years to satisfy annual bonuses delivered in the fom
Threshold 0% Median 25% 5%  of shares. Detalls of these additional IIP awards mads in 2016
Meximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100% are shown in the table on page 70 under the “without
quartie performance conditions’ column.

Waeighting 25% 25% 50% -
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Awards vesting under legacy share plans

The Share Matching Plan ("SMP') - the fast grant made unider
this plan was in 2014 and it will vest in April 2017. :

M W Seiway and R M Twite received an award under the SMP
in April 2014,

Vesting was subject to the achieverment of an Economic Value
Added ('EVA) performance cordition, measured over the three
years ending 31 Dacember 2016. The calculation of EVA is

based on segmental operating profit after tax with appropriate

Awards lapse for negative compound growth. However,
for positive growth between 0% and 6%, 10% fo 25% of

adjustments, less a capital charge on the invested capital
in the business reflecting IMI's cost of capital.

The performance measure considered compound annual
" growth in EVA over the three financial years from 2014 to

2016 compared to EVA in the preceding three financial years.

matching shares vest; and for growth between €% and 17%,
25% to 100% of matching shares vest. Within each range,
vesting is calculated on a straight-line basis.

mapey spereng '

Cwer the period IMI defivered compound annual EVA growth of -5.6% based on threa-year EVA from 2014 1o 2016 of £479.7m
compared to three-year EVA from 2011 to 2013 of £570.3m. The resultant vesting outcome in April 2017 is nil:

Shares Initial  Value on date Number of Additional Totalmatching  Value of matching

invested bythe . matching of award' matching shares dividend shares vesting  shares on vesting®

executive award (£000) vasting aquivalent (E000)
shares O
M W Selway 8,528 26,148 380 - ';
R M Twite 17,256 85,494 o768 - - - =
[

' The mid-market price on the date of awand was 1,490.00 pence.

* Awards will lapse in full on 1 April 2017 as a result of the EVA performance threshold not having been met.

The Performance Share Plan (‘PSP’) - the last grant made
under this plan was in 2014 and will vest in March 2017,

In March 2014, awards were made to MW Selway and R M
Twite with vesting of the awards subject to the achisvement
of three independent perfonmance conditions: EPS growth
(50%), relative TSR (25%) and organic revenue growth
(25%), measured over the three-year period ending

31 December 2016.

On appointment {1 October 2013) M W Selway was made
an award under the PSP worth 200% of salary subject to
four independent performance conditions: TSR (209%)
measured over the period 1 October 2013 to 30 September
2016, organic revenue growth (20%), EVA (20%) and EPS
{40%) each measured over the period 1 January 2013 to

31 December 2015. The award vested in October 2016,

* EPS growth
Under the PSP, EPS is defined as adjusted basic eamings
per share before the post-tax impact of any reported
exceptional items, which may include impairment losses,
profit/ loss on disposal of a subsidiary, rationalisation costs,
acquired intangible amortisation and IAS 39 charges or
credits for changes in the fair value of financial instruments.
EPS was chosen as an appropriate measure because it
rewards absolute growth in undertying earmnings and because
the Committee beligved it worked well in combination with
TSR which is an external, relative measure of performance.

Growth of 6% per annum would trigger the minimum level of
vesting (25% of the EPS element), increasing on a straight-
line basis such that the EPS element of the awards were
eligible to vest in full for EPS growth of 15% per annum.
Owver the three year period ending 31 December 2016 IM)
delivered EPS growth of -10.9% per annum, decreasing
EPS frormn 72.6 pence in 2013 to & comparable 51.4 pence *
at the end of 20162. Over the three year period ending 31
December 2015 IMi delivered EPS growth of -5.7% per
annum, decreasing EPS from 64.7 pence in 20124 to a
comparable 54.2 pance at the end of 2015,

SewSNS PURLLY

2 Adjusted for 2014 share consolidation and the acquisition of Bopp & Rauther.
4 Adjusted for 1AS 19.

* Relative TSR

TSR is defined as the movernent in share price during

the performance period, measured in local currency, with
adjustments to take account of changes in capital structure
and dividends, which are assumed t0 be reinvested in shares
on the ex-dividend date. TSR was chosen as a measure as it
is an external, relative benchmark for performance that aligns
executives’ rewards with the creation of shareholder value.

The October 2013 and March 2014 peer groups sach
comgprised of the companies shown on page 68, adjusted
to take account of merger and acquisition activity during
the perforrance period in line with the Committee’s
established guidelines.
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At the end of the three-year parformance periods ending
30 September 2016 and 31 December 2016, the Company

us

ranked 34 and 35 respectively In the peer groups. The BEHA Aviation Borgwamer
Committee was in agreement that the outcomes under Bodycote Eston
the TSR measure was reflective of the general underlying Cobham Emerson Electric
fi i . '
nancial performance of the Company. pwe rve Gorp

» Organic revenue growth Halma Honeywell
Organic growth is calculated as an average annual growth Johneon Matthey IDEX
rate, to encourage continued focus on organic growth. Megpitt Ingersol-Rand
Revenue is defined as segmental revenues before exceptional p————
iterns adjusted, at the Committee's discretion, to exclude the Rotork Vinois Tool Weorks
impact of material acquisitions and disposals by the Company Spectris Johnson Controls’
pornpletad during the performance period and to remove the Spirax-Sarco Enginsering Manitowoe
impact of exchange rate movermnents. ™~ 5 p——
Qrganic revenue growth of 2.7% per annum would trigger the ‘Weir Grovp Pentair
rminimurn level of vesting (25% of the organic revenue element)
increasing on a straight-kne basis such that this element of
the awards were eligible to vest in full for growth of 8% per Japan Continental Europe
annum. Cver the three year period ending 31 Decemnber 2016 Pa— Al C
IMi dedivered growth of -2.5%. Over the three year period s
ending 31 December 2015 iMI deivered growth of -0.7%. Fanuc Heidelberg Druckmaschinen

NSK Metso Corporation

+ Economic Value Added {'EVA’} SMC Sarrchik
Vesting in respect of the 2013 PSP award made to THK SKFB
M W Selway was subject to the achievement of an EVA

Yaskawa Electric Sulzer AG

ending 31 December 2015. The caiculation of EVA is based
on segmental operating profit after tax with appropriate
adjustments, less a capital charge on the invested capital in
the business reflecting IMI's cost of capital. The performance
measure considered compound annual growth in EVA over the
three financial years from 2013 to 2015 compared to EVA in
the preceding three financial years. Awards lapse for negative
compound growth. However, for positive growth between 0%
and 6%, 10% to 25% of shares vest; and for growth between

' Johnsecn Controls acquirad Tyco International in Seplember 2016,

6% and 17%, 25% to 100% of the shares vest. Within

each range, vesting is calculated on a straight-ine basis,

As disdlosed in last year's report, over the period ending 31
December 2015, IMi deliverad compound annual EVA growth of
2.9% based on three-year EVA from 2013 to 2015 of £557.4m
compared to three-year EVA from 2010 to 2012 of £511.5m.

The 2013 PSP award in respect of M W Selway will vest only in relation to the EVA target having been met to an extent and
consequently will vest at 3.46%. The 2014 PSP award in respect of M W Selway and R M Twite will lapse in fufl as a result of the
performance thresholds not being met.

Initial award Value on date of Number of Additional dividend Total shares Value of shares on
awardt shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting
{£000) (€000}
M W Selway 98,792 1,500 - 3,418 339 . 3,757 a8
2013 .
M W Selway 75.850 1,114 . - - -
2004 .
R M Twite 29,300 430 - - - -
2014°

2 Tha three day average mid-market prica on the date of the 2013 and 2014 awands was 1,518.33 pence and 1,467.00 pence respectivety.
3 awards will lapse in full on 11 March 2017 as a msult of the performance thresholds not having been met.
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Al-ermpioyee share plans

Executive directors are eligible to participate in the all-employee share plans on the same terms as other eligible employees at IMI,
In 2016, M W Selway, R M Twite and D J Shook received free share awards under the All Employee Share Ownership Plan.
D J Shook received Save As You Eam awards in 2016 of 2,129 shares.

Al Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Dividend Total vaiue under
Number of shares Value of free Number of options Value of SAYE the all-employee
ewanded share awarg' gwarded . options? {£000) share plans {(£000)
£000) {£000)
2018 383 4 4
M W Selway
2016 289 4 836 1 - 5
2016 363 4 - - . 4
A M Twite
: 2015 289 4 - - - 4
2016 242 2 2,129 2 - 4
D J Shook

g
th
.

'In 2018 Wee shanes wera awarded at a shave price of 980.71 pence (1,245.00 pence in 2015).
2 In 2016 SAYE awards wens made at a 10% discount and the velue shown Is the intrinsic Galn at the date of the grant, calculated in accondance with the

single figure requiremeants {on page 62). See Section 4.7,1 on page 122.

Dividend payments

Under the SMP and PSP, dividend equivalent payments are
made on vested but unexercised share awards, which take the
forrn of nil-cost options. Dividend eguivalents, while notionally
tracked by IMI from grant to exercise, are not paid or transferred
to the participant until the point of exercise. These have been
inciuded in the single figure (the table on page 62) based on
the number of dividend equivalents notionally accrued in the
financial year, valued at the price on the dividend payment date.
Any residual cash is rolled over and applied 1o the subsequert
dividend equivalent purchase.

Payments to past directors (audited)

It is the Commiittee’s intention 1o disclose any payments to past
directors, including the vesting of share-based awards post
departure on a basis consistent with the executive directors.

As all of the subsisting SMP and PSP awards made to D M Hurt
in 2014 {who retired from the Board on 7 May 2015} have lapsed
in full due to the minimum performance thresholds outlined
above not being met, there were no payments to past directors .
during the year,

Dividend equivalent payments for vested but unexercised
nil-cost option awards will continue to be made to past
directors under the terms of the original grant,

mepey nBnens | uonINpOnL)
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Chairman's and non-executive directors’ single figure table {(audited)

The following table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chairman and non-executive dwectors in respect of the
financial years ending 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Director . 2016 [£000) 2015 (£000)

Base fees Additional fees Total Base feas Ackiitional fees Total
Lord Smith of Kelvin 306 - 306 195 - 186
C-P Forster 1] 61 60 . 60
B Nergaard 61 - 61 60 - 60
R J Stack 61 28 87 60 22 82
R Mcinnes 61 16 7 80 15 75
1 Sharp 61 - 61 20" 20

'Jolned the IM) Board in 2015 and bacame the Chairman at the 2015 AGM. Annualised fee lor the Chelrman in 2015 was £300,000.
2Includes fees for being Chalman of the Rermumaration Committee and Senior independent Director.

n¢ludes fees for beling Chaimnan of the Audit Commitiee.

*Joined the IM] Board on 1 Septembar 2015 and is a member of the Audlt Commitiaa.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

The following table summarises the share interests of any director who served during the year as at 31 December 2016 or at the date
of retirement from the Board.

During the period 31 December 2016 to 23 February 2017 there were no changes in the interests of any curent director from those
shown save for purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Plan on 10 January 2017 of 12 shares on behalf of MW
Salway, R M Twite and D J Shook at 1,067p per share and 14 February 2017 of 10 shares on behalf of each of M W Selway,

R M Twite and D J Shock at 1,216.75p per share.

Director Yotal Beneficial Scheme interests
Interests interasts Ni-cost options Al-employes
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans
Unvested Vested but Unvested Vested but
unexercised unexercised
M W Selway 567,785 8,335 486,087 3,757 57.457 . 1,148
R M Twits 408,925 120,354 281,751 - - - 6,820
D J Shook 135,426 4,000 120,014 - 10,914 - 4588
Lovd Smith of Keivin 8,300 8,300 - - - - -
C-P Forster 2,525 2,625 - - - - -
B Norgaard 2,625 2,625 - - - ’ - -
R J Stack 13,125 13,125 - - - - -
R Mcinnes 3,000 3,000 - - - - -
| Sharp 3,000 3,000 . - - - -

From 2015, the Committee requires M W Selway to buiid up a shareholding of at least 250% of salary, 200% of salary in the case
of R M Twite and 150% of salary for D J Shook, 1o mimor the IMI Incentive Plan award. At the end of the year R M Twite significantly
exceeged the share ownership guideline.
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Application of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy in 2017

Service contracts

The unexpired terms of the non-executive directors’

service contracts can be reviewed in the Board's Corporate
Governance Report on page 49.

Exscutive director fixed pay .
Salaries effective January 2017 were agreed taking into
account a range of factors including the prevailing economic
conditions, the financial performance of the Group and salary
increases for other employees.

The average increase for employees was 2.6%, compared
10 2.0% for the executive directors. M W Selway's, RM
Twite's and D J Shook’s salaries were all increased by 2% to
£801,000, £463,000 and £418,000 respectively.

Other elerments of fixed pay (benefits and pension) will remain
unchanged.

incentive pay
Annual bonus

In accordance with the approved remuneration policy, the
annual bonus plan will be operated as follows in 2017:

* as in 2016, the 2017 maximum bonus opportunity is set
at 200% of salary for M W Seiway, 150% for R M Twite
and 125% for D J Shook;

* as in 2016, the annual bonus for M W Selway and D J Shook
will be subject to performance in Group profit before tax
(40%), organic revenue (20%), cash conversion (20%) and -
strategic and personal objectives (20%). Health and safety
will serve as an underpin to ensure bonuses are
only paid out when minimum standards are achieved;

* ag in 2016, the annual bonus for R M Twite in 2017 will
be subject to performance in Group profit before tax
{35%), Critical Engineering operating profit {159}, Critical
Engineering organic revenue {15%), Critical Engineering
cash corversion (15%) and strategic and personal
objectives (20%); and

+ the Commiittee has determined that the targets
associated with the performance measures will be disclosed
retrospectively on the same basis and to the same extent
as for 2016 targets (see annual bonus metrics table on
page €5).

Ml Incentive Plan ('IP")

In accordance with the approved remuneration policy,

the IIP will be operated as follows in 2017:

= 2017 awards are set at 250% of salary for M W Selway,
200% for R M Twite and 150% for D J Shook; and

= awards will vest subject to performance in three core areas
aligned to our longer-term strategic priorities: return on
capital employed (25%), relative Total Shareholder Retum
{25%) and Group profit before tax growth (50%).

The performance targets that will apply to the 2017 lIP awards
are as follows:

ROCE Relative  Group profit Lavet of
TSR before tax vesting
growth
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25%
Maximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100%
quartile
Weighting 25% 25% 50% -

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors’ remuneration
increased by 2%, effective 1 January 2017. This is in line with
the executive directors and the wider employes workforce.

Share ownership for the Chairman and non-executive directors
The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to
hold some shares in IMI within 2 reasonable period after their
appointment. As at 23 February 2017, the Chairman and
non-executive directors hold IMI shares as set out in the

table on paga 70.

v sk 5 AL 2L

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
for and on behalf of the Board

23 February 2017
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Financial statements
Finance Director’s Introduction

Introduction from Daniel Shook
Dear Shareholder
Welcome to the financial statements section of cur Annual Report.

My financial review commentary is set out in this section alongside the primary statements. Thess financial statements are presented
with the primary statements first, followed by five sactions: ‘Basis of preparation’, ‘Results for the year', 'Operating assets and
liabilities', ‘Capital structure and financing costs' and 'Other notes'.

M inues to enhance its overall contral environment and financial risk management. Operational improvements in the year have
0 further working capital reductions and the Group's pension position remains strong despite adverse discount rate and

Finance Director
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2008 2015
Exceptional Exceptional
Reported items Statutory Reportad tems Statutory
Notes m fm £m £m m £m
Revenue 2.1 1,640 8 1,657 1,557 10 1,567
Segmenta! operating profit 21 221.7 221.7 230.4 2394
Reversal of net economic hedge contract losses 2.2 58 5.6 7.8 7.8
Restructuring costs 22.2 {3.5) {18.8) {22.3) 2.1) {£7.1) (29.2)
Gains on special pension events 223 2.8 2.8 9.1 8.1
Impairment j0sses 2.24 (5.0) {5.0) - -
Acquired intangible amortisation 224 {20.5) {20.5) {32.2) (32.2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 225 - - 04) {8.4) (8.5,
Operating profit 224.2 {35.9) 188.3 236.9 (51.0) 185.9
Financial incomae 4.3 4.5 12.8 171 3.2 209 241
Financial expense 43 {21.8) {19.4) {41.2). {21.6) (25.9) (47.5)
Net financial income relaling 1o defined benefit pension schemes 4533 1.1 1.1 0.2 0.2
Neat financial expense (18.2) ©.8) (23.0) (18.2) 5.0} 23.2)
Profit before tax 208.0 427 1653 218.7 (56.0) 162.7
 Taxation 245 (43.7) 116 (32.1) (48.1) a.7 {39.4)
Profit from continuing operations afler tax 164.3 (31.1) 133.2 170.6 {47.3) 123.3
Profit from discontinuad operations after tax 25 - - 6.7 6.7
Total profit for the yoar 164.3 (31.1) 133.2 170.6 {40.6) 130.0
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 161.9 130.8 168.2 1276
Non-controling interasts 4.8 24 24 2.4 2.4
Profit for the year 164.3 133.2 1706 130.0
Eamings per share 23
Basic - from profit for the year 50.8p 48.3p 62.2p 47.2p
Diuted - from_profit for the year 59.4p 48.0p 61.7p 46.8p
Basic - from continuing operations 59.8p 48.3p £2.2p 44.7p
Diuted - from continuing operations 59.4p 48.0p €1.7p 44.4p
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Commentary on the consolidated income statement

Results summary

Reported revenus increased by 8% to £1,649m (2015:; £1,557m). After
adjusting for a favourable exchange rate impact of £179m and the contribution
from acquisitions and disposals, organic revenus decreased by 5% reflecting
difficult market conditions, particuarty in Critical Engineering which continues
10 be impacted by the tow ofl price.

Segmenial operating profil of £228m (2015: £239m) fell by 5% on & reporied
basis and by 17% at constant exchange rates and excluding ecquisitions and
disposats. The segmental opserating margin was 13.8% (2015: 15.4%). Further
information on the each of the division's segrmental results is included within
the performance review saction on pages 22 to 27. Statulory operating profit
was £188m (2015: £186m) after the deduction of exceptional itarns which
are discussed in more detail below.

Reportad net interest costs on net borrowings were £17m {2015: £18m),
reflecting the repayment of US$75m of bomrowings in July 2018. These ware
covered 16 times {2015: 15 times) by continuing sarnings before interest,
tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairment and exceptional items of £273m
{2015: £275m), The nst pansion financing income under IAS 19 was £1.1m
{2015: £0.2m).

Profit before taxation and exceptional iterns was £208m (2015: £219m),
a decraase on the previous year of 5%.

The effective tax rate for the Group before exceptional iterns reduced 1o 21%
(2015: 229%). The total reported tax charge for the yesr on continuing operations
was £44m (2015: £48m) and continuing reported profit after tax was £164m
(2015: £171m). The Group seeks 1o manage its tax affairs within its core tax
principles of compliance, fairness, value and transparency, in accordance with
the Group's Tax Policy which Is explainad further in Section 2.4,

Exceptional tems
Operating profit was £188m (2015: 2186m)aﬂerme deduction of exceptional
iterns which are discussad below:

FReversal of net economic hedge contract losses

For segmental reporting purposes, changes in the fair value of economic
hedgas which are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, together
with the gains and losses on their settlemanits, are included in the segmantal
mvenues and operaling profit of the relevant business segmert. The axcaptional
itern at the operating level reverses this treatment and the loss of £6m (2015:
£8m) and records a charge within interast (see Section 2.2.1),

Rastructuring costs

The restructuring costs treated as exceptional in 2016 of £18m 2015: £27m)
are as a result of a number of significant rastructuring projects across tha
Group, in particular within Critical Engineering and Precigion Engineering.
This restructuring is explained in more detall in Section 2.2.2 on page 90.
Restructuning costs of £4m (2015; £2m) that arose from normal recuming
cost reguction exercises have not been treated as exceptional.

Pensions

During 20186, following the convarsion to a non-inflation linked pension for
certain members of our UK Funds, an exceptional net gain of £6.1m was
raalised. In addition, following further restructuring exercises in Switzertand,
& curtaiment gain of £1.4m was recognised. These exceptional gains were
partiatly offset by an exceptional loss of £4.7m relating to the distribution of
pansion assets 10 members from our previcusly overfundad Swiss schemas.

Impaiment and acquired intangible amortisation

The Group recorded an exceptional impairment charge of £5m (2015: nil)
against the goodwill associated with the Stainless Steel Fasteners ['SSF)
CGL in the IMI Critical Engineering division. Acquired intangible amortisation
decreasad to £21m (2015: £32m) following the full amortisation in 2015 of
the order book acquired from Bopp & Reuther.

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

There were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2016.

Financing costs

A net charge arose on the revaluation of financial instruments and derivatives
under LAS 39 of £7m (2015: £5m} principaly reflecting movements in exchange
rates during the year on forward foreign exchange contracts.

Taxation
An exceptional tax credit of £12m (2015: £9m) arose in connection with
business restructuring and other exceptional items.

Profit from continuing operations after tax and excaptional items
Profit afler 1axation and exceptional ems was £133m (2015: £123m).

Earnings per share {'EPS")

The Board considers that a more meaninghy! indication of the underlying
performance of the Group is provided by reported earnings per share. Details
of this calculation are given in Section 2.3 to the Group financial statements
on page 91. Reported EPS was 50.8p, a decreass of 4% on last years 62.2p.
Statutory basic EPS was up 2% 1o 48.3p {2015: 47.2p) and statutory dikted
EPS was up 3% to 48.0p {2015: 48.8p).

Exchange rates

Tha most important foreign cumencias for the Group remain the euro and the
US doliar and the relevant averags rates of sxchange for the consolidated
income statement were:

2016 2015
Euro 1.22 1.38
US dollar 1.36 1.53

The movement in average exchange rates between 2015 and 2016 resulted in
our reportad 2016 novenue being 11% higher and segmeniel operating profit
being 13% higher as the average euro and LS dollar rates against steriing
wene 12% and 11% stronger, respactively.

If the exchange rates as at 6th February 2017 of US$1.25 and €1.16 wer
projected for the full year and appliad to our 2016 results, it is estimated that
reportad revenua would have been 8% higher and segmental operating profit
would have been approximatety 7% higher.




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2016

206 2015

Profit for the year

hems raclassifiad to profit and loss in the yoar

Foreign exchange loss reclassifiad to income statement on disposal of operations

Hems that may be reclassified to profit and loss

Change in fair value of effectiva nat invegtment hedge derivatives

(2.8 110

Exchange diffarences on translation of foreign operations net of hadge settiernants and funding revaluations 30.4 29

Fair value loss on available for sale financial assets

- (.7

Related tax effect on iterns that may subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss

0.6 (1.6)

37.2 1.4

tams that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans

(78.2) 278

Related taxation effect

153 {5.6)

Taxation in relation to restructure of UK Pension Fund

Effect of taxation rate change on previously recognised items

(2.5) {5.1)

{565.4) 17.8

Other comprehenaive (expense)income for the year, net of taxation

128.2) 8.2

Total comprehensive incoma for the year, not of taxation

105.0

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent

102.6

Non-controfling interests

2.4 2.4

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation

105.0

Commentary on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity

Movements In sharsholders' equity
Shareholders’ equity at the end of 2016 was £543m {2015: £546m). Movements
In sharehoiders’ equity can be spiit into three categories:

* the profit for the year attributable ta the equity shareholders of £131m (2015;
£128m). This is discussed on the page opposite the incame statement.

* gther comprehenaive INCOMB movernents in the year decreasad sharsholders’
equity by £28m (2015: £8m increase). These are discussed below,

* movements teken directly 10 equity in the year reduced shereholders’ equity
by £106m (2015: £99m). Thess are discussad overleaf.

Other comprehensive income

When the Group makes urvealised gains or lossas on assets and liabiilies,
instead of being recarded in the income statement, they ane credited or
charged to reserves and recorded in the statermend of comprehensive income.
In accordance with the amendment to IAS 1, thesa items are allocated betwean
those itemns that have been reclassified to the income statement, thoss that
may be reclassified to the income staterment and those items that will not
subsaequantly be reclassified to the income statement.

Any net investment hedge darivatives which have not settied by the year-end
are marked 10 market on the balance sheet at the year-end and the movements
are recordad in the hedging reserve, THis movernen is also incudad in other
comprehensive income and in 2016, amourted 10 a loss of £2m (2015; £10m
loss) inctuding the retated taxstion affect.

The Group's forsign denominated net assets are translated into steriing using
exchange rates prevaiing at the year-end. To the axtent that these differ from the
rates used at the previous year-end to transiate net assets at that date and from
the average exchange rate used to translate foreign denominated income during
the year, a difference on reserves arises, which Is included in other comprehensive
income, along with the settiement of net investment hedge derivatives and
revaluations of foreign dabt, which are used o protect the Group from this
exposum. These itams (including the relatad taxation effect} amounted to a
gain of £38m in 2016 (2015 loss of nil).

Movements in avalable-for-sale assats, which are principally used to fund defined
benefit obligations in the US, are also recordad in othar comprehensive incorme and
amounted to a gain of nit (2015: loss of £1m) including the related taxation effect.
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Consolidated statement of changes in eqmty
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Share Capital Total Non-
Sheme prermium  redemption Hedging  Transiation Retained perent controling Total
capital account resenve resernve resarve eamings squtty Interasts equity
&m &m £m m £m £m Em on om
As at 1 January 2015 81.7 10.8 1744 10.7 {0.4) 232.1 508.3 448 554.1
Profit for the year 127.6 127.6 24 130.0
Other comprehensive income/{expensa) (10.1) 1.8 16.5 8.2 8.2
Total comprehensive income/fexpense) {10.1) 1.8 1441 1358 24 138.2
Igsue of share capitel 0.1 1.0 i 1.1 1.1
Dividends paid {102.5) (102.5) - '(102.5)
Share-based payments (net of tax} 0.1 0.1 0.1
Shares issued by:
smployee share scheme trust 2.3 23 23
Income eamad by partnership {4.4) {4.4)
As gt 31 December 2015 81.8 18 174.4 0.8 1.4 276.1 548.1 428 588.9
Changes in equity in 2016
Profit for the year 130.8 130.8 24 133.2
Other comprehensive income/{expense) {2.2) 9.4 {65.4) (28.2) - {28.2)
Tota! comprehensive income/(expense) 2.2) 394 654 102.6 24 105.0
Issue of share capital - 0.3 0.3 0.3
Dividends paid (104.2) (104.2) (0.8} {105.0)
Share-based payments (net of tax) 58 58 5.8
Shares acquired for:
employee share scheme trust 7.4) (7.4) (7.4)
Income eamed by partnership . {4.4) 4.4)
As at 31 Dscember 2018 8.8 121 174.4 {1.6) 40.8 235.7 543.2 40.0 583.2

Actuarial movements in the Group's defined benefit pension obligations are also
recorded in other comprehensive income. The Group completad a bulk insurance
buy-in exercisa in relation to certain members of the UK Funds during the year
and the difference between the value of the liabiitias insured and the cost of the
premium to insure tham has been recognised in other comprehensive income.
These movements are explained in detal! in Section 4.5 on page 114. Togeather
with the taxation effect, the loss in the year was £63m (2015: £22m gair).

Hems recognised directly in equity

Movements in reserves which represent transactions with the shareholders of
the Group ane recogrisadt directly in equity rather than in the income statement
or through othar comprehensive income.

0.1m {2015: 0.2m) shares were issued during the vear, reakising £0.3m {2015:
£1.0m) in the share capital and share premium account,

The 2015 final dividend of 24.5p per share and the 2016 interim dividend of 14.0p
per share wers paid during the year (2015 2014 final dividend of 24.0p and 2015
interim dividend of 13.9p)}, which reduced equity by £104m (2015: £103m).

Tha credit for share-based payments, which reverses the £6m (2015: £1m)
charged through the income statement in the year, theneby deferring the reduction
in reserves untl such tima as the options are axarcised, is also recognised here,
together with the reversal of the associated nil tex credit (2015: £1m).

The charge 10 reserves relating 1o the purchase of shares by the employes trust to
satisfy share options, nei of amounts received from employees mpresenting the
price on exercise for those oplions was £7m (2015: £2m credit), refer 10 Section
4.6 for more information.
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2016

216 205

Notes £m £
Assats
Intangible assels 3.2 521.2 457.2
Property, plant and equipment 3.3 266.2 2308
Employee benefit assets 45 57.8 B8.7
Deferred tax assets 24.7 228 19.8
Other raceivables - 5.7 4.6
Total non-current assets 873.7 801.1
Irnantorios 311 255.2 233.3
Trade and other receivables 312 400.5 351.4
Other current financial assels 446 2.9 28
Current tax 71 10.4
investments 446 29.9 27.0
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 79.7 114.2
Total current assets 7753 739.1
Yotal assets 16450 15402
Liabilities
Bank overdraft 4.3 (12.2) 6.4)
interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4.2 16.8)| (54.1)
Provisions 36 (19.9) 95.1)
Current 1ax 62.8) (44.6)
Trade and other payables 3.1.3 a07.9) (3421
Other current financial liabilities 4.4.5 (13.5) {8.9)
Total curent liabliltias (523.1) (481.2)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 42 (343.3) {200.6)
Employee benefil obsgations 4.5 (137.6} (B4.3)
Provisions 3.6 a9.1) 17.5)
Deferrad tax fiabilities 24.7 (32,0} 83.5)
Other payables {10.7) 242
Total non-current Sabilities (5427 (a70.1)
Total liabilitias {1,085.8) @51.3)
Not assets 583.2 588.9
Equity
Share capital 461 88 81.8
Share premium 121 1.8
Other reserves 2136 176.4
Retained eamnings 235.7 276.1
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 5432 546.1
Non-controliing interests 48 40.0 2.8
Total equity 583.2 588.9

Approvad by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kalvin
Chairman
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Commentary on the consolidated balance sheet

Net debt

Net debt at the year-end was £283m compared to £237m at the end of the
previous year, larpely reflecting the impact of steriing depreciation on the Group's
oo and US dolar denominated debil. The net debt is composed of a cash
balance of £80m {2015: £114m), a bank overdraft of £12m (2015: £6m) and
interast-bearing loans and bomowings of £350m (2015: £345m).

The year-and nel debt 10 EBITDA ratio was 1.0 times {2015: 0.9 times) basad on
contiruing EBITDA befors exceptional items. Following tha repayment of US$75m
durirg the year, at the end of 2016 the loan notes totalled £343m (2015; £341m),
with a weightad average maturity of 4.3 years (2015: 4.8 years) and other loans
including bank overdrafts totalled £20m (2015: £10m), Total committed bank loan
faciities avafiable 10 the Group at the year-end were £301m {2015: £294m),

of which nil {2015: Cnil) was drawn.

Intangible assets

The value of the Group's intangible assats increased to £521m at 31 December
2018 (2015: £457m) This increase was due o exchanga gains of £75m (2015:
£9rn loss) and additions 1o intangible assats of £24m (2015; £20m), partially offset
by the amortisation charge for the year of £20m (2015. £38m) and impairment of
£6m (2015: £ni)).

Propsity, plant and equipment (PPE’}

The net book value of the Group’s PPE at 31 Decamber 2016 was £268m {2015:
£231m). Capital expenditure on PPE amounted to £47m (2015: £51m), with
significant capital expenditure on expanding our existing manufecturing faciities
in Germany and China within Mt Critical Engineering and a revamped factory
layout which promotes oparational axcellence in the Czech Republic in Precision
Englneering. Inchuding capitaiised intangible assets, total capital expenditure was
E71m {2015: £71m) and was 1.5 times (2015: 1.8 1imes} the depreciation and
amortisation charge {excluding acauired intangible amortisation) for the year of
£46m (2015; £38m).

Working capital
The increase in the Group's trade and other eceivables of £49m is due to foreign
exchange movements of £56m, partially offsst by favourable cash movements
of £7m.

The Group's inventory increasad by £22m during the year due to foreign
exchange moverments of £40m, partially offsst by favourable cash movernants
of £18m.

The Group's trade and other payables increased by £52rm due to foreign
exchange movements of £47m and favourable cash movements of £8m.

The warking capital cagh rmovements during the year are discussed in more
detait in the namrative opposite the consolidated cash flow stetement.

Taxation

The cument tax asset reduced 10 £7m (2015: £10m) as the Group recovered
tax prepayments from prior years. The cumant tax kabiity increased by £17m to
£82m (2015: £45m) due 10 cumency movenenis and limitations on UK double
tax relief against overseas tax kabilies. Deferred tex assats increased by E3m
10 £23m (2015: £20m} and defermed tax kabilties decreasad by £22m during
the year to £32m (2015: £54m), The significant movements, net of the effect of
foreign exchange movements, relate to the defered tax recognised in respect
of the pension funds, the effect of the amortisation of intangible assets and the
raduction of the provision for the tax effect of unremitted earnings of overseas
subsidlaries. More analysis of the defermed tax moverment in the year is shown
in Saction 2.4.7.

Ponsions

The Group has 63 (2015: 63) defined benefit obligations in existence as at

31 Dacember 2018. The Group recognises there is a funding and irvestrnent
risk inherent within defined benefit arrangements and seeks to continue its
programme of closing cverseas defined benefk plans where possibis and
providing in thelr place appropriate defined contribution arangements.

The net deficit for definad benefit obligations at 31 December 2016 was £80m
{2015: £4m surplus). The UK funds sumius was £24m as et 31 December 2016
{2015: £89m) and constituted 88% (2015 88%) of the total defined benalt
liabitites and 94% (2015: 95%) of the tolal defined benefit assets. The reduction
in the UK surplus in 2016 principally arosa from actuarial losses of £76m ralated
to movements in the discount rate and activities during the year to further de-risk
the position.

The deficit in the overseas funds as at 31 Decernier 2016 was £103m {2015:
£84m). The increase in the overseas deficit is predominantly as a result of adverse
exchangs movements of £15m during the year.

Detalls of moverments in actuarial assumptions am discussed in Section 4.5.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Further information on how the Group maneges its exposure to these fingncial
risks is shown in Section 4.4 of the financial staternents on page 105. The most
important foneigrn cumencies for the Group nemain the euro and the US dollgr
and the relevant closing rates of exchange for the balance sheet were:

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Euro 1147 1.36
US dollar 1.23 1.47
Return on capital smployed

Post tax return on capital employed {'ROCE’} from continuing operations was
12.5% compared to 14.3% in 2015. Conlinued investment in the business
in the year and the underlying performance in 2016 has impacted the ROCE
metric alongside an adverse iImpact from the weakening in sterling.

Dividend .

The Board has recommended a final dividend in respect of 20186 of 24.7p
{2015: 24.5p) per shae, an increase of 1% over the 2015 finat dividend.

This makes the tatal dividend for 2016 38.7p {2015: 38.4p). The cost of the
final dividend is expected to be £67m (2015: £86m), leading to a total dividend
cost of £105m 2015: £104m) in respect of the year ended 31 Decembar 2016.
Dividend cover basad on reported eamings for the continuing businesses is
1.5 times (2015: 1.6 times). As detailed in note C9 of the Company financial
statemants on page 148, all of the retained earmings at both 31 Decembar 2018
and 31 December 2015 ars considered 1o be distributable reserves.

Whilst the Group does nat have a formal dividend policy or payout ratio, the
Group's 8im is 10 continue with progressive dividands, which typically increasa
at a steady rate for both the interim and final dividend payments, with an
alm that the dividend should, through the cycie, be covered by a least two
times reported sarnings. in making its dividend recommendations, the Board
considers the levels of cash and debt within the Group, forecasted operating
and capltal cash flow requiremants and the avaiability of distributable reserves.
Tha Board also monitors the Group's dividend cover based on reported
eamings for the continuing business. For more datads refer 10 Section 4.4.4.4.

Share price and shareholkder return

The share price at 31 December 2016 was £10.40 (2015: £8.62) and the
avaraga for the year was £9.69 {2015: £11.34) rapresenting an increase of 21%
and decrease of 15% respectively. Based on the 2016 average share price,
the proposed total dividend of 38.7p represents a yield of 4.0%.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2018 2015
em om
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating proftt 1or the year from continuing operations 188.3 185.9
Operating profit for the year from discontinued operations - 09
Adiustments for:
Depraciation and amortisation 668.3 704
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible agsets 8.0 89
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 8.8
Gain on special pension evants {2.9) 8.1
Profit on sale of property, plant and equiprnent (1.6) (6.9)
Equity-settied share-based payment expense 5.8 1.1
Decreasa/{increase) In invertories 175 3.5)
Deacraase In trade and other receivables 6.8 29.2
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 5.5 7.3)
{Decreaseyincreass in provisions and emploves benefits {8.6) 56
Cash generated from the operations 285.2 282.0
Income taxes paid (81.7) {36.2)
Cash genarated from the operations after tax 253.5 245.8
Additional pension scheme funding - UK and overseas 1.9 2.9}
Net cash from operating activities 2518 2429
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 4.5 32
Proceods from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.8 120
Purchase of investiments {0.4) {0.8)
Settiament of transactional derivatives 2.4) {5.0)
Settlement of currency derivatives hedging balance shest {41.8) 20.0
Acquisitions of subsidiaries net of cash - {106.2)
Agcquisition of property, plant and equipmant and non-acquired intangibles {70.9) {70.6}
Proceeds from disposat of subsidiaries net of cash - 08
Net cash from Investing activities (104.2) {137.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (21.8) (21.6)
Payment to non-controfing interest {4.4) {4.4)
Shares {acquired forvissued by employee share scheme trust 7.4) 23
Proceeds from the issue of share capital for amployee share schermes 0.3 13
Nat (repaymanty/drawdown of borrowings (54.8) 1079
Dividends paid to equity sharsholders and non-controling intevest (105.0) {102.5)
Net cash from financing activities 192.9) {17.2)
Net (decreasa)increase in cash and cash equivalents (45.5) 879
Cash and cash equivalents at the stert of the year 1078 208
Effact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash heid 5.2 (0.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar 67.5 107.8

* Net of bank overdrafts of £12.2m [2015: £6.4m).

Notes to tha cash flow appear in Section 4.1,
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Commentary on the consolidated cash flow statement

2016 2015
Movement in net debt £m £m
EBITDA" from continuing operations 273.0 2751
Working capital movements 208 18.4
Capital and development expancditung {70.9) (70.6)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 0.4
Provisions and employee benefit movements™ 2.2} {4.1)
Other 16.2 130
Operating cash flow (pro-exceptional itams)™* 245.9 232.2
Excaptional items™** {25.2} {9.6)
Operating cash flow (post-exceptional items) 220.7 2226
Tax paid 817 (368-2)
Interest and derivatives {61.5) 5.6
Cash generation 127.5 192.0
Additional pension schema funding {1.9) 2.9)
Free cash flow before corporate activity 125.6 188.1
Acquisitions (bafore net cash acquired) - {109.2)
Dividends paid 10 aquity sharsholders and
non-controfling interest {105.0) (102.5)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries - 14
Payment 1o non-controlling interest 4.9) {4.4)
Net {purchase)issue of own shares 71) 34
Net cash flow {excluding dabt movements) 8.1 (22.2)
Opening net debt (236.9) {200.0)
Net cash disposad - {0.8)
Net debt acquied - {5.6)
Foreign exchange translation {54.8) {8.3)
Closing net debt (282.6) {236.9)

* Reported earnings before interest (£16.2m), 1ax (£43.7m), depmaciation
{£37.8m), amortisation {£8.0m) and impairment (£3.0m).

* Moverment in provisions and employee bensfits as per the statement of
cash fiows {£8.6m), adjusted for the decrease in exceptional restructuning
provisions (£3.1m} and the decrease In provisions relating to discontinued

*** Operating cash flow {pre-axceptional items) is the cash generated from

the operations shown in the statement of cash flows less cash spent

acquiring property, plant and equipment, non-actuired intangible assets
and investments; plus cash received from the sale of property, plant and
aquipment and the sale of investments, after adjusting for the cash impact
of exceptional items. This measure best reflects the underlying operating

cash flows of the Group.

**** Cash impact of exceptional lams, including an outflow relating 1o

restructuring costs of £21,9m and a cash outflow of £3.3m in relation

to discontinued operations.

Reconciliation of EBITDA to movement in net debt

The Group's consolidated statement of cash flows is shown on the opposite
page, which reconciles the operating profit for the year to the change in cash
and overdrafts in the balance sheet as requéired for inancial reporting purposes.

However, becauss the Group's debt financing also includes othar interest-
bearing fiabliities, it is more insightiul to consider the effact of the transactions
in the year on the net debt in the balance sheet. Accondingly, a reconcifiation
between EBITDA (pre-exceptional itams) and net debt is shawn in the table to
the left, upon which this section provides commentary.

Operating cash flow

The operating cash flow (pre-axceptional items) was £246m (2015: £232m),
After the £25m (2015: £10m) cash outflow from exceptionsl items, the
operating cash flow (post-exceptionat tems) was £221m (2015: £223m).
This represents a cormersion rate of 1otad Group segmental operating profit
after restructuring costs into operating cash flow of 107% (2015: 106%).

Nat working capita! balances decreased by £30m (2015: £18m) during the year.
Inventory decreased by £18m (2015: £4m increass) due to decreases In inventory
within Critical Engineering and Precision Engineering. The Group's receivables
decreased by £7m (2015: £29m) as a resutt of both a reduction in revenue and
increased efforts across the Group to improve the collection of receivables,
Payabies increased by £6m (2015: £7m decreasse) due to payment timing

and proactive supplier term management across each of the divisions.

Cash spent on property, plant and equipment and other non-acquined
intangibles in the year was £71m (2015: £71m) which was equivalent to

1.5 times (2015: 1.9 times) depraciation and amortisation therson. Continuing
resaarch and development spend including capitatised intangible development
costs of £8m (2015: £5m) totaied £57m (2015: £52m).

In 2016 the Group paid tax of £32m (2015: £36m) which was 73% (2015: 75%)
of the reported tax charge for the year. This reflects the timing of estimated tax
payments on account and is discussed in more detall In Saction 2.4,

In 2016 there was a £62m cash outflow (2015: £6m inflow) from interest and
derivatives, including a £42m outflow (2015: £29m inflow) from the settierent
of curmency derivatives hadging the balance sheet.

After payment of interest and tax, thafraacashﬁowgemedfromopemtions
was £128m (2015: £192m).

Freo cash flow before corporate activity

As noted in Section 4.5, following the special pension events in Switzerland,
£2m of additional pension contributions wem made. Free cash flow before
corporate activity was £126m (2015: £189m).

Nest cash outfiow (excluding debt

Dwidends peaid 10 shareholders totalled £104m (2015: £103m) and there was
a cash outflow of £7m (2015: £3m inflow) for net share purchases 1o satisty
empioyee share options.

Tha total net cash inflow {(exciuding debt movements) was £5m (2015: outfiow
af £22m).

Closing net debt

The opening net debt was £237m (2015: £E200m). There were exchange rate
losses of £55m (2015; £8m), principally an US dollar and suro denominated
borrowings. After the net cash inflow in the year of £9m 2015: £22m outflow),
closing net debt was £283m {2015: £237m).
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
Introduction

IMI pic (the ‘Compary’) is a company domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The consolidatad financial statements of the Company comprise the Compary
and its subsidiaries {together refermed to as the ‘Group’). The Comparny financial
statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and
not about the Group. The consofidated financial statements have been prepared
in accondance with intemational Financial Reporting Standands as adopted by
the EU and appiicable iaw (‘'FFRSs"). The Company has elected 1o prepare its
Parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with FRS 101 and these
are presented on pages 144 to 148. The financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017,

1.2
Basis of accounting

The financial stataments are presented in Pounds Sterling (which is the
Company’s functional curmency), rounded to the nearest hundred thousand,
excepl revenues, which are rourided to the nearest whole milion. Thery are
prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and
liabilities ane stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments; avaiable-
for-sale financial assets; financlal assats and abiities identified as hedged
items; and assets and lisbillies acquinsd through business combinations.
Non-cument assets and liabilties held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and their fair values less costs to sefl,
The policies described in this section and in the accompanying sections have
been appled consistently throughout the Group for the purposes of these
consobdated financial statements except as discussed below. Refer 1o Section
5.4 for the Group's significant accounting policies.
il New or amended EU Endorsed Accounting Standards sdopted

by the Group during 2018
The following amended standards were adopted in these financial statements
during 2016, none of which had any impeact,
» |FRS 5 ‘Non Cusrent Assets Hald for Sale and Discontinued Operations’
s IFAS 7 ‘FAnancial instruments: Disclosures’
s IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’
* IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in Other Entities’
* |AS 1 ‘Presentation of Fnancigl Statements’
» 1AS 18 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’
* IAS 19 ‘Employee Benelits'
+ {AS 34 ‘interim Financial Raporting’
* IAS 38 ‘intangible Assets’

li) Issuod Accounting Standards which are not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2018

Tha IASB and IFRIC have issued a number of new accounting standards and
amendments with an effective date after the dale of these fnancial statements.

¢ IFRS 9. Fnancial instruments’ (2014)

A finalised version of IFRS @ was issued in July 2014, incorporating
requirements for classiication and measurement, impairmerd, general hedge
accounting and de-recognition. The Group hes completed an initial impact
assessment of IFRS 9 and noted that several of the Group's equity investrments,
cumently held at historic cost, will need to be recognised at fair value under
IFRS 2. In addition, the Group intends to reassess tha effectivenass of its

cash flow hedging. The standard will be adopted from 1 January 2018,

¢ [FRS 15 ‘Aevenua from Contracts with Customers' (2015)

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to

all contracts wilh custormaers. Guidance is provided on topics such as the point
at which revanue is recognised, accounting for variable consideration, costs of
futiiling and obtalning a contract and various related matters. New disclosures
about revenus are also introduced. The Group has completed an assessment
of IFRS 15 and concluded that the adoption of this standard on 1 Jaruary 2018
will not have a significant impact on the financial statements. In the vas! majority
of cases, the contracts within tha Group do not meet the cntena under IFBS 15
for recognising revenus over fime and therefore we will continue 1o recognise
revenue at a point in time when control passes to the customer. Cumently there
are certaln 1solated contracts within IMI Critical Engingering which would mest
the criteria for racegnising revenuse over time under IFRS 15. Howewver, the
financial impact of changing the revenue recognition for these contracts is

not expected 1o be significant.

» IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (2015)

iFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and Labilities for all leases unless the lease termis 12 months
or less or the underlying asset has a low value. The Group has complated an
initial impact assessment of IFRS 16 and noted that a sigrificant portion of
leases cumertly accounted for as operating leases {therefore off balance shest)
would be recognised as assets with a comesponding liabiity under IFRS 16.
The standard will be adogpted from 1 Januery 2019.
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group's results for the year, including segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and earnings * -
per share. You will also find a summary of the Group’s alternative performance measures, including the definition of

each and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information

&mkmmwmmemm-lmmpmnmwGwmwmmummﬂmmewaythepemnngnoeofme'
Group is managed and monitored by the Executive Committes. In this section the key constituerts of thesa two KPI's, being the Group's reported revenues
and segmental operating profits, are analysed by reference 1o the performance and activities of the Group'’s segments and therr operating costs.

211
Segmental information

Segmental information is presented in the consolidated financial staternents for sach of the Group's operating sagments. The operaling segment reporting format
reflocts the Group’s management and internal reporting structunes and represents the informetion that was presented to the chief operating decision-maker,

being the Executive Commiitee. As described on page 2, each of the Group's three divisions has a number of key brands across its main markats and operational
locations. For the purposas of repartable segmental information, operating segments are aggregated inte the Group's three divisions, as the nature of the products,
production procasses and types of customer ana similar within each division. Inter-segment revenue is insignificant,

IM} Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering Is a worki-leading provider of critical flow control
solutions that enable vital energy and process industries 10 operate safely,
cleanly, reliably and more efficiently.

IM1 Precision Engineering
IMI Pracision Enginearing specialises in developing moticn and fiid control
technologies for applications where precision, speed and relability are essential.

MI Hydronic Engineering

M| Hydronic Engineering designs and manufactures technologies which deliver
optimal and energy efficient heating and cooling systems to the residential and
commercial building seciors.

Performance is measured based on reported segmental operating profit which
is defined in the table opposite.

Businassas anter into forward cumency and metal contracts to provide economic
hedges against the impact on profitability of swings in rates and values in
accordance with the Group's policy 1o minimise the risk of volatiity in revanues,
costs and marging. Segmental operating profits are therefore charged/credited
with the impact of these contracts. in accordance with IAS 36, these contracts do
not meet the requirements for hedge acoounting and gains and losses are reversed
out of reported revenua and operating profit and are recorded in net financial
income and expense for the purposes of the consoiidated income statement.

Alternative Performance Measures

To taciitate a more maaningful review of perkarmance, certain afternative
performance maeasures ('APMs') have been included within this Annual Report.
These APMs are used by the Executive Committee 1o monitor and manage the
parformance of the Group in order to ansure that decisions taken align with

its Iong-term interests. These APMs exclude exceptional and other items in
order o best reflect the underlying performance of the Group. Movements in
reported reverwe and segmental operating profit are given on an organic basis
(see definition opposita) so that performancs Is not distorted by acquisitions,
disposais snd movements in exchange rates. For each aliernative performance
measure, the table opposite details the definition and a referance to where it
can be reconciled to the equivalant statutory measure.

Reconciltation to
APM Definition statutory measure
Reported These measures all exclude Sea income
revenue exceptional tems. statement on
Reported profit page 76.
before tax
Reported garnings
per share
Reported These measures exclude See income
segmental excaptional tems, underlying staternent on page
operating profit restructuring costs and undetlying | 76 and segmental
and margin gains and losses on disposal of | reporting nota in
subsidiarias. Section 2.1.1.
COrganic Movements are after adjusting for | See segmentat
growth exceptional items and the impact | raporting note in
of acquisitions, disposals and Section 2,1.1.
movements in exchange rates.
Operating Operating cash flow is cash See cash flow
cash flow generated from the operations as | commentary on
shown in the statement of cash | page 83.

flows {ess cash spent acquiring
property, plant and eguipment,
non-acquired intangible assets
and investments; plus cash
raceived from the sale of
property, plant and equipment
and ths sale of investments,
after adjusting for the cash
impact of exceptional items.
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Section 2 - results for the year
{(cont’d)

The following table ustrates how the results for the segments reconcile to the overal results reported in the income stetement.

Reverua Oparating profit’ Operating mangin
2016 215 2018 2018 200 2015
£m £m £m 2] % %
Continuing operations
IMI Critical Enginesring 651 631 B1.8 83.1 12.6% 14.8%
MI Pracision Engineering 708 B&2 138.5 117.7 16.7% 17.8%
iMI Hydronic Engineering 250 264 51.9 51.8 17.0% 19.6%
Comordate costs (24.5) (23.2)
Total reported revenue/segmental operating profit and margin 1,849 1,567 227.7 239.4 13.8% 15.4%
Restructuring cosis {non-exceptional) 3.5 2.1
Loss on disposal of subsidieries {(non-exceptionsl) - 0.4)
Total reported revenue/operating profit and margin 1,848 1,557 224.2 236.9 13.6% 15.2%
Raversal of net aconamic hedge contract losses 8 10 5.6 76
Reastructuring costs {18.8) 27.1)
Gains on spacial pension events 2.8 9.1
Impairment losses (5.0) -
Acquired intangitle amortisation {20.5) (32.2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 8.4
Statutory revenue/operating profit 1,657 1,567 188.3 1859
Net financial expense (23.0) {23.2}
Statutory profit before tax from continuing operations 165.3 162.7

The following table Bustrates how revenus and operating profit have been impacied by movements in foreign exchange, acquisitions and disposals.

‘Year ended 31 December 2015 Yeour enciwd 31 December 2018
Movemnent
A3 intormign As Reportsd  Organk
reporied  exchangs  Disposels Organic reported Organic  growth (%) growth (%)
Reported revenue
Wi Critica) Engineering 631 77 5) 702 861 651 3% T%
IMI Pracision Engineering 662 72 1) 733 708 708 % 3%
IMI Hydronic Engineering 264 30 204 280 250 10% 1%
Tolal 1,557 179 [id] 1,729 1,649 1,640 8% 5%
Segmental operating profit
MI Critical Engineering 93.1 14.4 0.1 107.6 81.8 81.8 2% ~24%
M| Precision Engineering 117.7 12.6 K] 131.4 118.5 1185 1% 10%
IMI Hydronic Engineering 518 56 574 519 51.9 0% 10%
Corporate costs (23.2) (23.2) (24.5) (24.5)
Total 230.4 3z6 1.2 2732 2277 2277 5% 7%

Segmental operating profit margin (%) 15.4% 15.8% 13.8% 13.8%
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The following table iustrates how the segmental assels and fabifities reconcile to the overall total assets and liabikties reported in the balance sheet.

Asoets Liablites

2018 205 2018 x5

m £ (2] £m

IMI Critical Engineering 752.6 682.1 230.9 196.9
IMI Precision Engineering 482.0 419.2 103.2 90.7
IM| Hydronic Engineering 204.1 165.6 83.2 53.7
Total segmental asseta/liabilities 1,438.7 1,268.9 397.3 341.3
Corporate items 1.5 9.1 55.8 61.5
Employee banefits 57.8 89.7 137.6 1843
Investments 209 2.0 . -
Net debt ilems 8.7 114.2 362.3 351.1
Net taxation and others 314 34.3 112.8 113.1
Total assets and liabilities in Group balance sheet 1,646.0 1,540.2 1,065.8 851.3

The following table includes other informetion 10 show how certain costs are aflocated between the sagments of the Group.

Restructuring Cepitat
2016 2015 2018 2018 218 2015 2018 2015
£m fm &m m £m om £m £m
Wi Critica? Enginesring 19.7 13.4 252 224 240] - 232 133 1.7
M1 Precision Engineering 28 136 274 304 25 3.0 16.7 14.1
i Hydronic Engineering - 2.2 75 172 1.8 13 72 6.3
223 202 70.1 70.0 28.1 ars 37.2 32.1
Corporale costs - - 08 06 0.4 - 0.6 08
Total 223 202 70.9 706 28.5 375 7.8 328

* Restructuring costs include both exceptional and non-exceptional.
** The amortisation figures above include the amortisation of acquired intangibles. £19.9m {2015: £30.8m) is included in respect of Critical Enginaering, £0.5m
{2015: £1.2m} is included in respect of Precision Engineering and £0.1m (2015: £0.2m) is included in respect of Hydronic Engineering.
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Section 2 - results for the year
(cont'd)

The following table shows a geographical analysis of how the Group's revenue is derived by destination.

2016 2015
Revenus Revenue
£m £m
UK 75 90
Germany 240 219
Other Westemn Europe . 350 344
Westemn Europe : 830 563
USA ) 327 311
Canada 17 22
North America 344 334
Emerging Markets 520 505
Rest of World 80 65
Total reported ravenue 1,649 1,557
Reversal of economic hedge contract losses 8 10
Total statutory revenue 1,657 1,567
Reported revenue by destination (2016) Reported revenue by dastination (2015)
Rest of the UK  Restofthe UK
World 5% World 8%
5% 4%
Emerging Westem Ewope  Emerging Western Europe
Markets 38%  Markats 36%
31% 32%
North America North Amenca
21% 22%
The following table shows 8 gaographical analysis of the location of the Group's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
2018 2015
£m £m
UK n7 77.5
Germany ) 251.5 223.2
Rast of Ewrope N 238.2 205.3
USA 1521 120.4
Asia Pacific 51.1 39.0
Rest of World  : 16.8 13.8
Total 787.4 888.0
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212
Operating costs by function

The following tatie is included to show how much of the operating costs
deducted from revenue to amive at the Group's post-exceptional operating
profit, refate 10 ¢cost of sales, seling and distribution costs, administrative
expenses and excaptional items.

The aggregate gains made by directors on the exercise of shane options was
£0.2m {2015: £2.9m). The remuneration, as defned in the Companies Act 2006
Schedule 5, for the executive directors comprises fixed and annual variable

pay as set out in the table on page B2 of the Remuneration Report. For details
of the non-executive direciors' remuneration please refer {0 page 70 of the
Remuneration Report.

2.1.3.2 Operating leasa charges and opsrating laase commitments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment assets when

doing so repragents a more cost-effective or lower risk option than purchasing
2016 2015 them. This leads to an income staternent charge for the year and future
fm £m commitments for the Group in respect of these lgases.
Reported revenue 1,649.0 1.957.0
Cost of sales (923.8)] (866.7) Conliming operating costs include a charge of £14.7m (2015: £14.7m)
Segmental gross profit 725.2 | 6903 releting to the lease of properties and a charge of 976"1 (2015: €7.7m)
Sefling and distribution cost 223.6) (199.9) relating to the lease of plant and machinery, The cortinuing commitments
- -‘ - In respect of non-canceliable operating leases in place are shown in the
Loss on disposal - 0.4}
Restructuing costs 3.5) 2.1
06 2005
Reported operating profit 224.2 | 236.9 Lo and Lond ared
Exceptional tems” {35-9!| {51.0) buildings Others|  buikings Others
Statutory operating profit 188.3 185.9 £m m m fm
N . N Within one year 15.9 71 13.7 - 66
The exceptional costs are analysed in detailin Section 2.2. In the second fo Tifh year 39.3 10.0 304 8.6
Aftar five yoars 17.6 - 20.7 -
2.1.3 72.7 174 73.8 5.2

.Specific elements of operating costs

Certain specific items of operating expenses are disclosed to provide the
reader of financial statements with more information regarding thess costs,
This saction provides this analysia.

2.1.3.1 Employes information
The average number of paople employed by the Group during the year was:

ane 2015
IMI Critical Engingering 3,836 4,236
M PrecisionEngineering | ... 5284| 5482
M Hydonic Engneering | _ . _1.843 = 1862
Corporate 118 1N
Total Group 11,081 11,711

The aggregate smployment cost charged to operating profit for the year was:

2.1.3.3 Research and dovelopment expendhiure

The continuing cost of research and development expenditure charged directly
to the income statemant was £48.4m {2015: £48.7m). (n addition, amortisation
of capitalised iftangible developmaent costs amourted to £3.1m {2015: £2.5m)
and across the Group a further £8.1m {2015: £5.3m) was capitaksed.

2.1.3.4 Exchange impact on opersting activities net of
hedging srrangaments

The transactional foreign axchange lkesses in the Group were £1.5m
(2015: losses of £1.3m).

21.3.5 Audit Fees

The Group engages its auditor, EY, 1o perform assignments in addition to their
statutory audit duties where thelr expertise, experience and knowledge of the
Group should enable them to perform these assignments more efficiently than
Tha Group's policy on such assignments is set out in the Audit Committee
Report on page 56. Feas earmext by EY and its associates during the year
ans set out below: i

2016| . 2016

Em £m 2016 015
m om

Wages and salaries e .. .. 9859) 4279 oy eamed by the Company's auditor for the audit
Share based payments - ———— D8] 11 ofthe Company’s annua! accounts e e ... B2 02

Social security costs 82.6 770  The audit of the Company's subsidiaries,

Pension costs* 123 2.2 pursuant to legislation e e —— e 24| 25
Total 568.8 508.2 Texcomplanceserices . 011 01
Other assurance sarvices 0.1 0.1
* in 2016, pension costs include the £2.8m gains on special pension Total 28 2.9

events which are disclosed as exceptional items, see Saction 4.5.3.3.
The 2015 comparatives include a curteilment gain of £4.2m in relation
1o our restructuring exercise in Switzerand and seltiement gaing of
£4.9m relating to other exercises in Switzerland and the US,
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Section 2 - resulits for the year

(cont’d)

2.2
Exceptional items

The Group uses the axceptional kems category in the income statement o
classify separately ilems of both income and expense which are sufficiently
large, volatile or one-off in nature to assist the reader of the financlal statements
10 gain a better understanding of the undarlying performance of the Group.

The following items are considered 10 be exceptional in these financial staternents.

2.2.1
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gains

For segmental reporting purposes, changes in the fair value of economic
hedges which are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, together
with tha gains and losses on their settlement, are included in the reported
revenues and operating profit of the relevant business segment. The exceptionral
ttems at the operating level reverse this treatment. The financing exceptionsl
items reflect the change in value or settlement of these contracts with the
financial institutions with whom they were transacted. The former comprised
a revarsal of a loss of £5.8m (2015: reversal of a loss of £7.6m) and the latter
amounted to a loss of £6.8m (2015: loss of £5.0m).

2.2.2
Restructuring costs

The restructuring costs treated as exceptional in 2016 of £18.8m (2015: £27.1m)
are as a result of a number of significant restructuring projects across the Group,
predominantly i Critical Engineering. These include £7.6m ralating fo the dosure
of one our Critical Engineering sites in Germany, £1.7m from the closura of

one of our Critical Engineering sites in Haly, £3.2m for the continuing European
restructuring exercise caommeanced in 2015 and £5.6m from tha restructuring

of our Swedish business.

Exceptional restructuring costs in 2015 included £9.6m relating to a large
European restructuring exercise across each of the divisions and £9.3m in refation
10 the restructuring of our Switzerand business. £3.6m was also ingurred in relation
10 the ciosure of two of cur Petrochemical sites in italy and Gemany, £1.7min
relation to the closure of our Canadian Nuclear business and £1.1m as part of
Criticat Engineering's localisation ptan in China.

Other restructuring costs of £3.5m (2015: £2.1m) are not included in thes measura
of segmental operating frofit reperied 1o the Executive Committee. These costs
have been charged below segmental operating profit and includied in reported
operating profit as, based on their quantum, they do not meet our definition of
exceptional tems.

2.2.3
Gains on special pension events

During 2018, following the conversion to 2 non-indlation linked pension for cartain
members ¢f our UK Funds, an exceptional net gain of £6.1m was realised. In
addition, following further restructuring exercises in Switzerland, a curtailment
gain of £1.4m was recognised. These exceptional gains were partiafly offset

by an exceptional loss of £4.7m, relating to the distribution of pension assets
0 members from our previously overfunded Swiss schemes. Gaing on special
pensicn events in the UK, US and Switzeriand of £2.1m were recognised In 2015,

224

Acquired intangible amortisation

and impairment losses

As reportad on paga 98, following compiletion of tha Group's annual impairment
review, an exceptional impairment charge of £5m (2015: nil) was recorded
against the goodwill assoclated with the Stainless Steel Fasteners ('SSF°) CGU
In the IMI Critical Engineering division. As described in 2.2.2, an impairment

charge of £2.2m (2015: £6.9m) was recognised against property, plant and
equipment directly resulting from a number of significant restructuring projects.

Acquired intangible amortisation decreased to £21m (2015: £32m) following
the full amortisation in 2015 of the order book acquired rom Bopp & Reuther.
An analysis by segment of acquired intangibie amortisation is included in
Section 2.1.1.

2.2.5
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries

No subsidiaries were disposed of during the year. Losses on the disposal of Scott,
Z5.J SA and part of our NPSL business in 2015 are discussed in Section 3.5,

2.2.6
Taxation

The tax effacts of the above items are included in the exceptonal coiumn
of the income statement.
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Earnings per ordinary share

Eamings per share ('EPS’} is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share {excluding those haid in the Employee Benefit Trust or by the Company).
Bask: EPS measures are cakadated as the Group profit for the year attribulable to equity shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year. Diluted EPS takas into accourd the dilutive effect of alf outstanding share options priced balow the market price, in arriving a1 the nimber
of shares used in its calcutation.

Both of these measures ane aiso presented on a reported basis, 10 remove the aflects of exceptional items, being items of both income and expense which

are sufficiently large, volatile or one-off in nature 1o assist the reader of the financial statements 10 get a better understanding of the underlying performance
of the Group. The note below demonsirates how this calculation has been parformed.

2086 2015
Kay milllion mion
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share A 2708 2706
Dilutive effect of employee share options 1.8 18
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of diluted sarnings per share . B 272.6 2725
Koy £m £m
Statutory profit for the year 133.2 130.0
Non-controling interests {2.4) {2.4)
Statutory prafit for the year attributable to owners of the parent C 130.8 127.6
Statutory profit from discontinued operations, net of 1ax - 6.7}
Continuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent ' D 130.8 1209
Total exceptional charges included in profit before tax 42.7 568.0
Total axceptional credits Included in taxation {11.6) 8.7}
Earnings for reported EPS E 161.9 168.2
Key 2018 2015
Statutory EPS measures
Statutory basic EPS C/A 48.3p 47.2p
Statutory diluted EPS C/B 48.0p 46.8p
Statutory basic continuing EPS D/A 48.3p 44.7p
Statutory diluted continuing EPS o8 48.0p 44.4p
Reported EPS measures
Reported basic EPS E/A £9.8p 82.2p
Reported diluted EPS E/B 59.4p 61.7p
Discontinued earmings per share

Statutory basic discontinued eamings per share were n (2015; 2.5p). Statutory dilted discontinued samings per share were nil (2015: 2.4p).
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Section 2 - results for the year

(cont’d)

2.4
Taxation

IMI operates through subsidiary companies all around the world that pay many
differant taxes such as corporate income taxes, VAT, payrol withholdings, sociel
sacurity contributions, customs import and axcise duties. This note aggregates
only those corporate income taxes that are or will be levied on the individual
profits of IMI plc and its subsidiary companies for periods leading up to and
includling the balance sheet date. The profits of each company are subject to
certain adjustments as specified by applicable tax laws in each country to armive
at the tax liability that is expected to result on their tax returns. Where these
adustments have future tax impact then defermad taxes may also be recorded.

2.4.1
Tax governance, risk and strategy

IMI recognises its corporate responsibiiity to ensure that ak businesses within the

IMI Group follow responsible tax practices. Accondingly, the IMI Tax Policy sets the
core principles of complianoce, fairness, value and transparency for the managerment
of the Group's tax affairs.

This Policy has been approvexdt by the Board, fully communicated 1o subsidiary
businesses and Is reviewed to ensure responsible business practices across
the Group are malntained. A robust tax governance framework has also been
estabished under which the Executive Committes and the IMI Board are appraised
on & reguiar basls of ary material or significant tax matters, so that appropriate
action can be effectad. Through the iV Globel infranet the Group communicates
policies, procedures, guidance and best practices to improve the management of
taxation across its subsidiary companias worddwide.

Complinnce: IM sselcs 10 manags its texation obligations wordwide in complance
with all applicable tax lews and reguiations, as well as fully in fine with the Group's
Coda of Conduct. Accordingly, the tax contribution by the individual businessas
is monitorad and standeard processas installed such that af coporate tax retums
shouid be accurately and timely fled with the tax authorities around the world and
the declared taxes paid on time. Furthermore, the preparation and fiing of the
corporate income tax rstums for IMI subsidiary companies woridwide have been
largely cutsourced to one tax advisory fiam,

Tax laws ane often complax, which can lead to inconsisten interpretations by
different stakeholders. Whera this occurs, IMI may reduce uncertainty and
authorities to obtaln sarly reschution and securing exdemal tax advice to ensure the
robust imerpratation of tax laws and practices.

Faimess: Ml seeks to record its profits across the subsidiary companies around

the world on an am's iength basis in accordance with intemationally accapied

best practices, recognising the relative contributions of people, assets, intelectual
property ard risks borne by the various businesses. The resulling allocation of profits
is regularly tested for compliance with this standard. M| is preparad io mest the
enhanced transfer pricing disclosures and documentation recommanded by the
Base Erasion & Profit Shiling (commonly refamed to as BEPS) niiative by the OECD.,

Value: IM| manages the impact of taxation on its businesses in 8 responsible
manner by only adopting legiimate, commercial and generelly acceptable positions.
In particular, IMI seeks to follow not only the law itself but the intention of the local
laws where this can reasonably be ascertained. As a UK Headguarterad group,
IMI's profits are ultimately subject to UK taxation, although as the Group pays
significant taxes overseas, the overall effective tax rate for the Group is marginally
above the UK stahulory tex rate.

Transparency: MI aims to buikd positive working relationships with tax authorities
by co-opevating in & constructive, open and timely manner. IMI seeks to disclose its
tau affairs in its published accounts and taxation mtums fully in accordance with the
appiicable standards and, whare appropriate, will supplement iis tax disclosures with
further information to better inform, and to be transparent 1o, its stakeholders.

IMI engages external support 10 manage tax risks and achisve the strategic
objectives outined above. Tax risks are regularly assessad for el companiss within
the Group, promptly addressad and reported so that they may be appropriately
proviced and disciosed in the relevant accounts and tax retums. To the exient that
identified tax risks are material they will be reportad to the Executive Committes
through the Group's process for strategic risk management as described at page 40.

2.4.2
UK corporation tax

The average weighted rate of corporation tex in the UK for the 2016 calendar
yaar was 20% (2015: 20.25%). Changes to the rate of UK corporation tax
were substantively enacted in 2015 to reduce the rate to 18% from 1 Aprl 2017
and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The budget of 16 March 2016 then proposad
to further reduce the rate to 17% from 1 Aprl 2020. This additional change weas
subgtantively enacted on 6 September 2016. UK deferred tax assets and kabililes
have thergiore predominantly been calculated using a rate of 17% {2015: 18%).

2.4.3
Tax payments

During the year, the Group made payments of corporate income tax of £31.7m
(2015: £36.2m), principalty arising as follows:

Jurisdiction of companles making corporate income tax payments:

UK £1.1m

Switzerland £4.7m

Japan £0.4m
taly £3.7m

There is normally an element of volatility in the annual payments of corporate
income taxes due to the timing of assessmerts, acquisition and disposals,
excaplional items and payments on account in the many countries in which the
Group operates. Changes in the jurisdictions in which profits are earned can
also have an impact which may take time to be reflected in the tax cashlow.
The level of payments made during 2016 reduced from 2015 as the Group
recovered certaln tax prepeyments, principally in the US.

The Group makes substantial other tax payments relating to employment,
consumption, procurement and investment to local authorities around the world.
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244 The income tax charge is apportioned between continuing and discontinued
. R . operations in the incoms statement as follows:
Recognised in the income statement
This saction sels out the curmart and deferred tax charges, which together 2018 2015
comprise the total tax charge in the incoms statement. £m £m
' Current tax charge .
2016 2015 Continuing operations 48.0 393
£m £m  Discontinued operations - {1.4)
Curment tax charpe 48.0 379
Curent tax charge 425 34  Deferred tax charge
Adjustments in respect of prior years 5.5 3.3 Continuing operations (15.9) 0.1
48.0 7.9 (5.9 0.1
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of tempaorary differences {15.9) 0.1 2016 2015
Total Income tax charge 3241 38.0 m £m
Total income tax charge
Continuing operations a2.1 384
Discontinued operations - {1.4)
321 380
2.4.5

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

As IMI's head office and parent company is domiciled in the UK, the Group references its effactive tax rate to the UK corporation tax rate, despite only a smali proportion
of the Group's business being in the UK. Therefore, the following tax reconciliation applies the UK corporation tax rate for the year to profit before tax, both before and
after exceptional items. This resulting tax charge is reconcilad to the actual tax charge for the Group, by taling account of specific tax atjustments as folows:

2018 2015
Exceptional Excoptions
Reported flems  Statutory Reported Hterns Statstory
Section £m m m m £m &m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 208.0 {42.7} 165.3 218.7 (58.0) 1682.7
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 25 - - 5.3 53
Profit befare tax 208.0 (42.7) 165.3 218.7 50.7) 168.0
Income tax using the Company’s domestic rate of tax of 209% (2015: 20.25%) 41.6 (8.5) 331 443 {10.3) 340
Effacts of:
Non-deductible items 3.2 0.6 38 2.7 1.5 4.2
Non-taxabla koss on disposal of businesses - - 0.1 0.5 0.6
Ralease of deferred tax asset - - 1.0 1.6 2.6
Utifisation of losses on which no deferred tex hed been recognised {1.0) (1.0} (2.6 - 2.6)
Current year lossas for which no deferrad tax assel has been recognised 3.5 3.5 3.2 - 3.2
Change in fubwe tax rate on UK deferred tax [3.0) {3.0) {5.5) - (5.5)
Diffsring 18 ralas (2.6) [ %) {&.5) 0.1 (3.5 3.4)
Under provided in prior years 2.2 2.2 4.8 0.1 4.9
Total tax In income statement 2.4 43.7 {11.8} 2.1 48.1 {10.1) 38.0
Income tax expense reported in the consolidated income statament 4.7 {118} 321 481 8.7 39.4
Effactive rate of tax - oontinuilgopemtions: 21.0% 19.4% 22.0% 24.0%
Income tax attidbutable to discontinued operations 25 - - (1.4) {1.4)
Effectiva rate of ax - discontinued operations: -26.4%
Total tax in income statsment 2.4 43.7 {11.8) 321 48.1 (10.1} as.0
Effactive rate of tax - total Group: 21.0% 19.4% 22.0% 22.6%
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Section 2 - results for the year
(cont’d)
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Recognised outside of the income statement

in addition to amounts charged to the income statement, some current tax and deferred tex is (crodited)/charged directly to equity or through other comprehensive
income, which can be analysed as follows:

2018 015
£m fm
Deferred tax:
On equity-settied transactions R - 02
On change in value of effective net investment hedge derivatives - (0.9}
On availeble for sale financial asssts - 0.8)
On re-measurermeant gains and on defined benefit plans {12.8) 10,
{12.8) 10.1
Current tax:
On pension restructuring - 0.5)
On foreign currency transtation differences - a1
On change in value of effective net investment hedge derivatives {0.6) -
On equity-settied transactions - 0.1
{13.4) 128
Of which the following amounts are (creditedy/'charged:
10 the statement of comprehensive iNcome (13.4) 118
to the statement of changes in aquity - 1.0
{13.4) 128
2.4.7

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred taxes record the tax consequences of tamporary differencas between the accounting and taxation recognition of certaln iterns, as expiained below:

Asgsets Lisbiities Nat

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m £m m £m
Non-current assels 11 19 (46.9} {48.1) {45.8) (45.2)
Inveniories 4.2 3.1 5.1 4.1} (0.9} {1.0]
On revaluation of derivatives 0.8 0.7 (2.0 2.2) 1.2} (1.5]

Employes benefits and provisions 421 300 {3.9) {15.9) 38.2 14.1
Other tax assets 0.5 0.0 - - 0.5 0.9
48.7 36.8 {57.9) 70.3) 9.2) {33.n

Offsetting within tax jurisdictions (25.9) (16.8) 25.9 16.8 - -
Total deferred tax nssets and lisbilitios 228 19.8 {32.0) {53.5) 9.2) {33.7)
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The movement in the net deferred tax balances has been recognised in the financial statements as analysed below:

Balance at Income Income Acquisitions  Balance st

1Jan16 statement  statermeml Exchange /disposaln 3JiDecié

m £m m £m Em i
Non-current assets {46.2) 7.9 - (7.5) - (45.8)
Inventories 1.0) 0.7 - {0.6) - (0.9)
On revaluation of derivatives 1.5) 0.3 - - - (1.2
Employes benefits and provisions 14.1 7.4 12.8 3.9 - 38.2
Other tax assats 0.9 {0.4) - - - 0.5
Net deferred tax liablity {33.7) 15.9 12.8 (4.2 - {9.2)

Racognissd  Recogrisad
inthe  outside tha

Batance &t income: Income Balance &t

1Jan15 staternent statement Exchanga Disposais 31 Dec 15

fm fm fm £m £m £m
Non-cumant assets 87.1) 83 - _20 {18.4) {46.2)
lnventories 0.6} 0.2} - {0.2) - {1.0)
On revalyation of derivatives 0.5} {1.8) 0.8 {0.1) - {1.5)

Employes benefits and provisions 208 5.1) {11.0) 0.3 01 14.1
Other tax assets 2.5 1.3 - 0.3} - 0.9
Net deferred tax Bability (5.9) 0.1 {10.1) 1.7 (19.3) (33.7)

All exchange movements are taken through the translation reserve.

248
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets of £56.2m (2015: £48.9m) have not been necognised in respact of tax losses of £47.9m (2015: £32.8m), interest of £61.3m {2015: £58.0m)

and capital losses of £119.1m (2015: £123.2m). The majority of the tax losses have no expiry date. No daferred tax asset has been recognised for these temporary

differences due to uncertainty over their offset against future taxable profits and therefore their recoverabiiity, in some instances, these balances are also yet to be
accepted by the tax authorities and so could be chaflenged in the event of an audit.

1t ig likely that the majority of unremitied earnings of overseas subsicianes would qualify for the UK dividend exernption. However £48.9m (2015: £74.3m) of those
earnings may stil result in a tax liability principally 88 a result of withholding taxes levied by the overseas jurisdictions in which those subsidiaries operate. Thess
tax liabilties are not expacted to axceed £2.0m (2015: £5.3m), of which £2 7m (2015: £4.7m) has been provided on the basis thal the Group axpects 10 remit
thase amounts. The balance has not been provided as the Group is able to control the timing of dividends and does not expect to pay up these amounts in the
foreseeable fulure.

25
Discontinued operations

Wwhan the Group has assets and Hablllties that have been sold in the year or are Fely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use and when accounting
standards require, these assets and liabilities are inchuded in cument assets and liablities end denoted ‘heid for sale’ rather than in their usual categories.

If they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations. This means that their trading performance, lL.e.
thelr revenwies, costs and other ftems of income and expense, are no longer reported within the headline figures in the income statement and are instead reported
In & separate line, net of tax, called ‘discontinued operations’, These amounts no longer form partofcontlm.mgeanngspershare Comparative figures arg
rastated to be shown on the same basis.

This enabies the incoma statement for the current and prior year {0 be presanted on a congistent basis and 10 convey a more forward-looking version of the
results for the year.

There has been no profit or loss from discontinued operations in 2016.

The prior year comparative includes a pre-tax and post-tax gain of £4.4m as a result of the finaksation of a number of matters relating to the disposal of the Retal Dispense
businesses as wel as a pre-tax gain of £0.8m and post-tax gain of £2.3m relating to other discontinued operations.
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group's trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a result.
Liabilities relating to the Group’s financing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions.

31
Working capital

Working capital represents the assets and liabiities the Group generales
through its trading activities. The Group therefore defines warking capital
as trade and other receivables, inventory and trade and other payables.
Working capital is managed very carefully to ensure that the Group can
mest its trading and financing obligations within its ordinary operating cycle.

To provide the Executive Committee with insight into the managerant

of working capital, an important measure monitored is cash corversion,
Cash conversion is defined as the operating cash flow {as defined in the
commentary on the cash flow statement) divided by the segmerdal operating
profit which thenefons represents the proportion of segmenal operating profit
genarated during the year that has been converted into cash.

3.1.1

Inventories
2018 2015
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 77.0 78.8
Work in prograss 113.9 99.7
Finished goods 64.3 548
255,2 233.3

In 2018 the cost of inventories recognised as an expense (being segmental
cost of seles) amountad to £923.8m (2015: £866.7m). Tha Groun's inventory
increased by £21.9m due to foreign exchangs movements of £39.4m.
Thesa increases wera pantially offset by a £17.5m decrease dus to
favourable cash movemnents.

In 2016 the writa~down of invertories to net realisable value gmounted to £9.1m
{2015: £5.8m). The reversal of write-downs amounted to £1.6m (2015: £2.5m).
Writa-downs and reversals in both years relate to on-going assessments of
inventory obsolescance, excess inventory holding and inventory resale

values across all of the Group's businessas,

3.1.2
Trade and other receivables
216 2015
&m £m
Current
Tracle receivables 337.0 291.3
Other recelvables 426 39.8
Prepayments and accruad income 2.8 20.3
400.5 351.4
Raceivables are stated afiar:
Allowance for impaimnent 1.5 89

The incraase in the Group's trade and other receivablas of £49.1m is due to
{forgign exchange mavemeants of £55.6m, partially offset by favourable cash
movementa of £6.8m.

The Group's exposure 1o cradit and market risks related 10 frade and other
receivables is disclosed in Saction 4.4,

3.1.3
Trade and other payables
206 2015
£m £m
Current
Yrade payables 214.2 171.2
Social sacunity and other taxation 223 211
Other payables 23.0 5.9
Accruals and delerred income 148.4 1439
407.9 342.1
Non-cCurrent
Other payables 10.7 24,2
418.6 366.3

Tha Group's trade and other payables increased by £52.3m due to foreign
exchange movements of £46,8m and favourable cash movements of £5.5m.
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3.2
Intangible assets

The tollawing section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits. These assets Include goodwill, customer relationships,
order books, patents, development costs and software development costs. The cost of these essets is the amount that the Group has paid for them or, when they
have arisen due to a business combination, the falr vakse of the specific intangible assets that could be soid separataly or which arise from legal rights.

In the case of goodwil, its cost is the amount the Group has paid in acquinng a business over and above the fair valua of the individual assets net of the fabiities
acquired. Tha value of the gaodwil can arise from a numnber of sourcas, but in relation to our more necent acquisitions, it has been represernted by post-acquisition
synergies and the skills and knowledge of the workiorce, The value of the Group's intangibie assets, with the axception of goodwil, reduces over the number of
years over which the Group expects to use the asset, the useiu! ife, via an annual amortisation charge to the income siatement.

The Group spilts its intangible assets between those ariging on acquisitions and those which do not, because the amonisation of acquined intangibles meets the
defintion of an exceptional ftem as described in Section 2.2,

Where there are indications that the valug of intangible assets is no longer representative of their vaiue to the Group, for axample whers there is a customer
relationship recognised but revenues from that customer are reducing, or where goodwill was recognised on an acquisition but the performance of the business
acquired is below axpactations, the directors review the value of the assets to ensure they have not falian below their amortised values. If this has happened,

a one-off impaiment charge is recognised, This section explains the overall canying values of the intangible assets within the Group and the specific judgements
and estimates made by the directors in amving at these valkuses.

3.2.1
Analysis of intangible assets
. MNon-gequired
Accuired Other Tota  Othernon-  intangbles
customer acquired aocquined socquined under
Goodwll relationships  inlangibles  intengibles  Inlangibles  constnuction Totel
tm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gost
As at 1 January 2015 320.7 131.2 B82.1 534.0 526 10.7 507.3
Exchange adjustments 4.5) 7.7 1.8 4.0} 0.2 ©.1) 13.9)
Acquisitions 52.5 43.9 20.7 117.1 10 . 181
Disposals of subsidiaries 24 . (1.0 (15.0) (18.4} - - (18.4)
Additions - - - - 59 14,1 20.0
Transfers from assets in the coursa of construction - - - - 6.0 {6.0) -
Disposais - - - - 0.9 - 0.9}
As at 31 Dacember 2015 366.3 166.4 858.0 618.7 84.8 18.7 702.2
Exchange adjustments 60.6 270 139 101.5 10.8 2.7 115.0
Additions - - - - 1.2 127 239
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 9.9 (9.9} -
Disposals - - - - {0.8) (0.1} {0.9)
As at 31 December 2016 426.9 193.4 29.9 720.2 95.9 241 840.2
Amortisation .
As gt 1 January 2015 27.8 92.9 75.6 196.3 333 - 229.6
Exchange adjustments (1.3} 2.9) {0.6) {4.8) ©.3) - {5.1)
Disposals of subsitliaries 0.9) ©.n {14.5) {16.1) - - (168.1)
Dispasals - - - - 0.9) - (0.9)
Amortisation for yser - 19.7 125 3z2.2 5.3 - 37.5
As gt 31 December 2015 256 109.0 73.0 207.6 37.4 - 245.0
Exchange adjustmants 4.1 18.1 12,3 345 59 - 40.4
Disposals - - - - 0.7 - o
Impairment 50 - - 5.0 0.8 - 58
Amartisation for year - 180 25 20.5 8.0 - 285
As at 31 December 2016 uz 145.1 87.8 267.6 51.4 - ate.0
Net book valua at 31 December 2018 340.7 57.4 13.0 4111 “27A 18.7 457.2

Net book value at 31 December 2018 302.2 48.3 12.1 452.6 445 241 §21.2
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

(cont'd)

3.2.2
Goodwill impairment testing

Gooawill is nat subjact to an annual amortisation charge. Instead, its carrying value is assessed annually by comparison to the fulure cash flows of the business
to which it relates (the cash generating unit, or ‘'CGU). These cash flows are discounted to refleci the time vakue of money and this discount rate, together with
the growth rates assumed in the cash flow forecasts, are the key assumptions in this impairment testing process.

Goodwil is allocated to cash generating units (CGUS') basad on the synergies
axpected to be derived from the acquisition upon which the goodwill arose. The
Group has 20 (2015: 20) cash genarating units to which goodwi is allocated.
The composition of CGLIs reflects both the way in which cash inflows are
generated and the internal repcrting structure. Whare our businesses operate
closety with each other we will continue 10 review whether they should be
treated as & single or combined CGU.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairnent as part of the overall assessment of
assels aganst their recoverable amounts. The recovenable emount of a CGU is
the higher of its fair value less costs 1o sell and its valus in use, Value in use is
determined using cash fliow projections from financial budgets, forecasts and
plans approved by the Board covering a five-year period and include a terminal
value muitiple. The projected cash flows reflect the latest expectation

of demand for products and services.

The key assumplions in these calculations are the long-term growth rates and
the discount rates applied to forecast cash flows in addition to the achieverment
of the forecasts themsalves. Long-term growth rates are based on long-temm
economic forecasts for growth in the marnufacturing sector in the geographical
regions in which the cash generating unit operates. Pre-tex discount rates
specific to sach cash generating unit are calculated by adissting the Group
post-tax weightad average cost of capital ('WACC') of 8% (2015: 8%) for the
tax rate relevant to the jurisdiction before acdding risk premia for the size of the
unit, the charactesistics of the segment in which it resides, and the geographical
regions from which the cash flows are derived.

This exarcise resuited in tha uss of the following ranges of values for the
key assumptions:

2016 2015

% %

Pre-tax discount rate 2.0-140| 99-16.2
Long-term growth rate 0.9-21 1.0-21

Following our impairment review, the goodwill associated with the Stainless
Stee! Fasteners ('SSF’) CGU, within the IM| Critical Engineering division, was
considered to ba impaired. This impairment has arisen due to a continued
deterioration in the end markets that SSF sell into. A value in use calculation
was used to detarmine the £2.0m recoverabie amount of the SSF CGU,
which usad a discount rate of 11.5%. As a resull, tha Group has recognised
an excaptional impairment loss of £5.0m.

For the purpose of agsessing the significance of CGUS, the Group uses a
threshold of 20% of the total goodwill balance. Goodwill of £85.1m {2015:
£78.4m) associated with the Control Valves CGU in Critical Engineering

is considered to be significant. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined from a value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use valuation are the discount rate, growth rate and operating
cashfiows. These estimates are dstermined using the discussed
above. The discount rate applied for Contra! Valves is 10.9% {2015: 12.5%)
and a growth rate of 2.1% (2015 1.6%) is appled into perpetuity.

No other CGUs have goodwill that is considered significant in the context
of the Group's total goodwill balance, nor do any CGLUs use the same key
assumptions for the purposes of impaiment testing in either this year or
the last.

The aggregate amount of goodwill arising from acquisitions pricr 10 1 danuary
2004 which had been deducted fom the profit and loss reserves and
incorporated into the IFRS transitional balance sheet as at 1 January 2004,
amounted to £364m. The cumulative impairment recognised in relation 1o
goodwill is £39m (2015: £34m).
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment

The following section concemns the physical assets used by the Group 10 generate revenues and profits. These assets include manutacturing, distribution and
office sites, as well as equipment used in the marufaciure of the Group's products. The cost of these assels represents the amount infially paid for them.

With the exception of the Group's land and assets under construction which have not yel been brought into use, a depreciation expense Is charged to the
income statement to reflect the annual wear and tear and the reduction In the value of the asset over time. Depreciation is calculated by reference to the assels’
useful Fves, by estimating the number of yaars over which the Group expects the assat to be used. As we do for our intangible assets (see Section 3.2}, if there
has been a technologlicsl change or dedline in business performance the directors review the vaiue of the assets 1o ensure they have not fallen below their
depreciated value. If an asset's value falls below its depreciated value, a one-off impairment charge is made against profit,

Assets in the
Land & Pa & course of
buldings  equipment  construction Totel
£m &m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 . 1683.4 533.8 20.0 717.2
Exchange adjustments 3.0 {9.4) 01 {12.3)
Agquisitions 0.4 38 - 4.2
Disposals of subsidiaries (0.4 80 . (3.4
Additions 18 229 258 50.6
Transfers from assets in the course of construction 53 19.0 24.3) -
Disposals 8.0) (42.5) - {50.5)
As at 31 December 2015 150. 5248 21.7 705.8
Exchange adjustments 214 81.7 20 1108
Addltions 1.8 20.9 24.3 47.0
Transters from assets in the course of construction 2.3 224 {24.7) -
Disposats . (8.3} {24.9 {0.9) (32.9)
As at 31 December 2016 1824 625.4 29 830.7
Depreciation
ﬁsj 1 January 2015 w7 413.0 - 490.7
Exchange adjustments {1.4) (7.0) - (8.4)
Disposals of subsidiaries - 1.7) - (1.7)
Disposals (3.4) (42.0} - (45.4)
Impaiment charge 5.1 1.8 - 6.0
Depreciation 3.3 208 - 32.9
As at 31 December 2015 81.3 393.7 - 475.0
Exchange adjustments 14,5 62.9 - 774
Disposaly {5.3) (22.6) - (27.9)
impairment charge 1.4 0.8 - 2.2
Depraciation 3.9 3.9 - 378
As ot 31 December 2018 895.8 468.7 - 564.5
NBV at 31 December 2015 78.2 130.9 21.7 230.8
NBV at 31 December 2016 B86.6 158.7 229 266.2

A net impairment charge of E2.2m relating to continulng operations occumed during the year (2015: £6.9m) as cescribed In Section 2.2. The recoverabla amount
of thase assets has been determined using their fair value less costs to sefl, estimated by both internal and externa! valuation specialists.

Group contracts in respect of future capital expenditure which had been placed at the balance sheet data relating to the continuing business amounted to
£7.4m (2015: £6.9m).

Inchuded m the total net book value of plant and equipment is £0.6m (2015; £0.7m)} in respect of assats acquired under finance leases. Depraciation for the year
on thase assets was £0.2m (2015: £0.3m).
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(cont'd)

34
Acquisitions

The foliowing section discusses businesses acquired by the Group, which have given rise ta the additions to the acquired intangible assets (including goodwill
reported in Section 3.2 and which contributed to the Group's profits, working capital and other balance sheet asset and Rabilives.

3.4.1
Acquisitions in the current year

Thera wera no acquisitions during 2018.

3.4.2

Acquisitions in the prior year

On 2 January 2015, the Group acquired the entine share capital of B&R Holding GmbH {'Bopp & Reuther’) for a cash consideration of £109.2m (€140.8m),
recognising identifiable net assets of £56.7m and goodwill of £52.5m.

Bopp & Reuther is a leading manufacturer of safety, control and shut-off vaive technology for procass industries as well as conventional fossil and nuclear power
plants workiwide. its head office and manutacturing plant is located in Mannheim, Germany and it has senice centres in Germany, Austria, Romania and China.
Bopp & Reuther joined the IMI Critical Engineering division and is now effectively integrated into its control valve business {'CCI’).

3.5
Disposals

3.6.1
Disposals in the current year

There were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2016.

36.2
Disposals in the prior year

Asterm SAS {‘Asterm’)
The Group disposed of Asterm SAS on 21 January 2015 for procoeds of £0.4m resulting in a post-tax loss an disposal of £0.4m.

IMI Soott Limited (‘Scott’)
The Group disposed of IMI Scott Limited on 30 October 2015 for proceeds of £1.2m resulting in & post-tax loss on disposal of £2.1 rillion, after disposing of
£2.7m of net assats and incuring £0.6m of assaciatad costs.

Zimmermann & Jonsen South Africa (Pty.) Ltd {'Z&J SA)
The Group disposad of Zimmemmann & Jansen South Africa (Pty.) Ltd on 13 November 2015 for procesds of £0.2m rasulting in & post-tax loss on disposal of
£4.4m. Net assets disposed of equalied £2.2m, with associgled costs incurred of £0.4 and a foreign exchange loss of £2.0m

Nano Porous Solutions Limited {{NPSL")
The Group disposed of non-core elemants of Nano Porous Solutions Limited on 16 December 20115 for proceeds of £0.7m resulting in a post-tax loss of £1.9m.
The remainder of tha NPSL business was transfemed to Norgren UK.
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3.6
Provisions

A provision is recorded instead of a payabla {see Section 3.1.3) when there is less certainty over how much cash wit be paid and when the payment might be made.
When the Group has an obligation relating 10 previous everits and when it is probabla thet cash will be paid 10 sattle it, a provision rather than a payable is recorded.
In this situation, an estimate is requinad.

The principal estimates made in respact of the Group's provisions concem the timing and amount of payments required to:

o cover the costs of known restructuning projects;

» reimbiurse customers for potential product warranty claims;

= gnsure that curment and former manufacturing sites meet relevant environmental standards;

= reflect the estimated outcome of ongoing legal disputes; and

« provide agsinst indemnities following the disposal of subsidiaries.

Analysis of the Group's provisions:
Ervironmentsl,
Trade logal &
Restructring  warrantios indennnity Total
£mn em m £m
Current 12.5 83 a3 '25.1
Non-current 09 6.2 10.4 17.5
At 1 January 2016 134 15.5 13.7 426
Arising during the year 193 5.2 0.5 24.0
Utilised during the year (22.4) {5.1) 3.7 {31.9
Exchange adjustment 1.8 1.8 - 3.6
At 31 December 2016 121 174 2.5 39.0
Curment 1.1 8.0 0.8 19.9
Non-current 1.0 0.4 8.7 19.1
121 174 9.5 39.0

The restructuring provision reflacts residual amounts committed but not spent in relation to a number of specific projects and the majority Is expected to be utiised
within the next 12 months.

Trade warranties are given in the normal coursa of business and oover a range of periods, typically one 1o two years, with the expected amounts faliing due in less
than and greater than ono yesr separately analysed above. Amounts set aside reprssent the directors’ best estimate regarding the amount of the settiements and
the timing of resolution with customers.

Ervironmental and legal provisions recognise the Group's coligation to remediate contaminated land at a number of cument and former sites, together with current legal
cases for which a settlement is considered probable. Because of the long-term nature of the liabilitias, the timescales are uncertain and the provisions reprasant the
diractors’ best estimates of these costs.

Provisions for indermnities included in the agreed terms of dispasals of subsidiaries are provided for based on the expected probability of indemnified losses that
may be suffered by the purchaser.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

What you will find in this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and related financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders (equity) and how
much is borrowed from financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group's activities both now and in the future.
The directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing
results in the context of its ability to continue as a going concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindful that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity would normally be
likely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent adjustments
lead to high transaction costs and debt holders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Net debt is the Group's key measure usad 1o evaluate total outstanding debt, net of the current cash resources. Some of the Group’s bormrowings (and cash)
are held in foreign curmencies. Movements in foreign exchange rates affect the sterling value of the net debt.

a} Reconcilintion of cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015
Em omn
Cash and cash squivalents in current assets 9.7 114.2
Bank overdraft in currant abities {12.2) 64
Cash and cash aquivalents 87.5 107.8
b) Hoepncllllﬁon of nat cash to movement in net borrowings
2018 2015
£m fm
Neat {decrease)/increase in cash and cash aquivalents excluding foreign axchange and net cash disposed/acquired {45.5) B85.7
Net repaymeant/{drawdawn) of borrowings 54.6 {107.9)
Decreasef{increase) in net dabt befare acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange 9.1 22.2)
Net cash disposed - {0.8)
Net debt acquired - 5.6
Currency translation differences (54.8) B.3]
Movement in net borrowings in the year {45.7) B89
Net borrowings at the siant of the year (236.9) (200.0)

Net borrowings at the end of the year (282.6) (236.9)
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c) Analysis of net debt

Borrowings and
finance leases due

Cash and cash within  after mome Tota

aquivalents one year than one year not debt

£m £m fm fm
At 1 January 2016 107.8 {54.1) (260.6) (236.9)
Cash flow exciuding settlement of currency dervatives hedging balance sheet and net cash disposed ot/acquired 3.7) 53.1 15 50.6
Settlement of cumency derivatives hedging balance shoet {41.8) _ {41.8)
Currency translation differences 5.2 {5.8) {54.2) {54.8)
At 3% December 2016 67.5 (6.8) {343.3) {282.6)

4.2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group borrows money from financial institutions in the form of bonds and other financiel Instruments. These generally have fixed interest rates and are for

a fixed term or are drawn from committed borrowing facilties that generally have floating interest rates.

‘This section provides information about the terms of the Group's Interest-bearing loans and bomowings. For more information about the Group's exposure to

interest rate and foreign currency risk, see Section 4.4.3.

2016 2015
m om
Current liabilities

Unaecurad loan notes and other loans 8.3 53.6
Finance lease (labikties 0.5 0.5
6.8 541

Non-current Nabilities
Unsacured loan notes and other loans 3428 290.2
Finance lessae liabilities 0.5 0.4
343.3 200.6
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section detaiis the income generated on the Group's financial assets and the expense incurred on bomowings and other financial assets and labiities.
The finance income and expense taken into account in aniving at adjusted eamings only includes the income and expense arising on cash balances,
borrowings and retirernent benafit obligations. The finance incoms or expense on mark-to-market movements on interest and foreign exchange derivatives
and other financing costs are excluded from reported eamnings per share.

Recognised In the income statement

2016 2015
Financial Fnancal
Interest  Instruments Total Interest  nstumaents Toral
&m £m £m m £m £m
Intarast income on bank depaosits 4.5 4.5 32 3.2
Financial instruments at fair value through profkt or loss:
Othar economic hedges
- curent year trading 5.6 5.0 145 14.5
- future year transactions 7.0 7.0 8.4 B.4
Financial income 4.5 126 174 32 209 241
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans and borowings (21.8) {21.8) {21.6) (21.6)
Financial instruments at {air value through profit or loss:
Other economic hadges
- current year trading (7.5) {7.5) {16.8) (16.8)
- fulure year transactions 11.9) {11.9) 8.1 .1}
Financial expense (21.8) (19.4) {41.2) 21.6) {25.9) {47.5)
Net financial income relating to defined bensfit pension schemes 1.1 1.1 0.2 0.2
Net financial expense (16.2) (8.8) {23.0) {18.2) (5.0) {23.2)

Included in financial instruments are curment year trading gains and losses on economically effective transactions which for management reporting purposes are
included in reported revenue and oparating profit {see Section 2.1). For statutory purposes these are required 1o be shown within net financial income and expense
above. Gains or lossas for future year fransactions are in respect of financial instnments held by the Group 10 provide stability of future trading cash flows.

Recognised in other comprehensive income

2016 2015
tm em
Change in fair value of effective portion of net investment hadges {2.8) {11.0)
Forelgn currency transiation differences 394 2.9
Change in fair value of ather financial assets - {1.7)
Income tax on Hems recognisad in other comprehansive income 0.6 {1.8)
Total items recognisad in other comprehensive income (nat of tax) 37.2 {11.4)
Recognised in:
Hedging reserve 2.2 {10.1)
Tranglation resarve 39.4 {0.2)
Retained earnings . - {1.1)
37.2 {11.4)
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4.4
Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest rate,
foreign exchange and base maetal price movements in addition to funding and
Iiquidity risks. The financial instruments used to rmanage tha underying risks
themselves introduce exposure 10 credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to each of
these rigks; the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring
&and managing risks, including each of the above risks; and the Group’s
management of capital.

4.41
Overview

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of

the Group's risk management framewark. As described in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 44 tha Executive Committee monitors risk and
internal controls and the Audit Committee monitors financial risk, while the other
Board commitiees also play a part in contributing to the oversight of risk.

The Audit Comymittee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Group's financial risk management policies and procedures and reviews the
adaquacy of the risk management framework in relation to the financial risks
faced by the Group. The Group Assurance department uncariakes bath regular
and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procadures, the results
of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The following sections discuss the management of specific financial risk
factors in detal, including credit risk, foreign exchange rigk, interest rate risk,
commodity risk and liquidity risk.

442
Credit risk

Gredit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterpanty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and anses principally from the Group's recelvables from customers, cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group's banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 2016 these totaled £437.9m (2015: £417.9m).

4421
Managing credit risk arising
from customers

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customsr. The demographics of the Group's customer
basa, inclading the default risk of the industry and country in which custormers
operate, have less of an influence on credit risk. Our largest single customer
accounted for 2% of our 2016 ravenues (2015: 2%).

Gaographically thens is no unusual concentration of credit risk. The Group's
contract approval procedure ensures that lange contracts are signed off at
executive director lavel at which time the risk profile of the contract, including
potential cradit and foreign exchange risks, is reviewed. Cradit risk is minimised
through ciue diligence on potential customers, appropriate credit imits, cash
flow management and the use of documentary credits where eppropriate.

4422
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of financial assets

The maximum exposure to tredit risk for financial assets is represented by their
canying value and is analysad balow: ~

Canying amount
2016 2015
£m fm
Cash and cash equivalents 70.7 107.8
Irvestments 1.2 18.7
Forward exchange contracts” - 0.1
1009 126.6

* Forward exchange contracts include the net amount receivable by each
anlity in the Group, from each financial ingtitution, reflecting the Group's
maximum credit exposune since individual antities within the Group have
the right but not the obligation to settie these net.

4423
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of trade receivables

Camying amount
2018 2015
tm om
UK 173 18.4
Germany 296 259
Rest of Ewope 108.0 77.0
USA 408 436
Asia Paclfic 83.6 74.1
Res! of World 50.9 52.3
337.0 201.3

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting
date by segment was as foliows:

Carying amount
2018 2015
&m om
IMI Critical Enginesring 180.6 156.8
IMI Precision Engineering 109.5 95.6
IMI Hygironic Engineering 469 38.9
337.0 291.3
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(cont’d)

4.4.2.4
Impairment provisions for trade receivables

The ageing of trade receivablas at the reporting date was:

2018 2015
Gross  Impairment Gross impairment
£m £m £m em
Not past due 287.6 [0.5)} 2479 {0.3)
Past due 1-30 days 28.2 0.5} 229 0.5
Past due 31-90 days 119 0.5)] 14.4 0.7}
Past due over 90 days 20.7 (9.8) 15.0 (7.4)
Total 348.4 (11.4) 300.2 8.8)
ﬂnnelmmamimheaﬂowanoefonmpmmhrespecwnmda
receivebles during the year was as follows:
2018 2015
£m £m
Net balance at 1 January 8.9 7.1
Utilised during the year .t (1.0}
Charged to the income statemant 3.8 3.5
Relsased 1.6) 0.4)
Exchange 14 0.3}
Nest balance at 31 Decamber 114 8.0

The net impairment charge recognised of £2.2m 2015: charge of £3.1m)
rglates to the movermnent in the Group s assessment of the rigk of non-recovery
from a range of customers across all of its businesses.

4425
Managing credit risk arising
from counterparties

A group of relationship banks provides the bulk of the banking services,
with pre-approved credit imits sel for sach institution. Financial derivatives
are entered into with these core banks and the underlying credit exposure
1o thess instruments is included whan considering the credit exposure to
the counterparties. At tha end of 2016 credit exposure including cash
daposited cid not exceed £14.0m with any single institution (2015: £23.2m).

443
Market risk

Markat risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices will affact the Group's
income and cash fliows or the value of its financial instruments. The objective
of market risk managemant is to manage and control marlaet risk exposues
within acceptable pararmeters.

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group enters
into derivatives in the ordinary course of business and also manages financial
liabitities in order to mitigate markst risks. All such transactions ang carried
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undartaken only if they
refate to underlying exposures.

4,431
Foreign exchange risk

The Group publishes consclidated accounts in sterling but conducts

much of its global business in other curmencies. As a result it is subjact 1o
the risks associated with foreign exchanga movements affecting transaction
costs {‘transactional risk’), translation of foreign profits {'profit transkation
risk") and transiation of the underlying net assets of foreign operations
{‘asset transtation risk’).

a) Managsment of transactional risk

The Group's wide geographical spread both in terms of cost base and customer
locations helps to reduce the impact on profitabiity of swings in exchanpe
rates as well gs craating opportunites for central retting of exposures. It is the
Group's policy to minimise risk 1o exchange rate movements affecting sales
and purchases by economically hedging or netting currency exposures at the
time of commitment, or when there is a high probabiity of fulure commitrnent,
using curmency instruments {primarily forward exchange contracts). A proportion
of forecast exposures are hedged depending on the leve! of confidence and
hedging is periocically adjusied following reguiar reviews. On this basis over
50% of the Group's annual exposures 10 transactional risk are #kely to be
hadged at any point in time and the Group's net transactional exposure to
differant cumencies varies from time to time.

b) Management of profit transiation risk

The Group is axposed to the transiation of profits denominated in foreign
currencies into the sterfing-basad incorme statement. The interest cost related

1o the currency liabilities hedging the asset base provides a partial hedge 1o this
exposuna, Short-term currency oplion contracis may be used 1o provide fimited
protection against sterling strength on an opportunistic basis. The translation
of US dollar and euwro-based profits reprosent the most significant translation
exposures for the Group.

c} Management of asset translation risk

The Group hedges its net investments In its major oversaas operations by way
of external cumency loans and forward currency contracts. The intention is to
manage the Group's exposure 10 gains and losses in Group equity resulting
from retransiation of currency net assets at balance sheet dates.

To the extent that an instrument used to hadge a net investrment in a foreign
operation is determined 10 be an effective hedge, the gain or loas arising

is recognisad directly in reserves. Any ineffective portion is recopnised
immediately in the income statement.
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d) Currency profile of assets and abllities

Assets

subjoct
Exchangs  tointerest Other Total Toted
Cash* Debt contracts raterisk netassets netassels | nat asaeis
2018 a8 06 1] 2018 2m8 2015
£m £m £m £m £m o&m £m
Starling 25 - 387 412 25 437 412
US dollar 5 2185) 81 (148) 164 15 -
Euro 4 (129) {286) [411) 422 1 80
Other M (4] (182) (135) 256 120 117
Total 68 (351) - (283) 866 583 588

* Cash is stated net of overdrafts.

Exchanga contracts and non-sterling debt are financial instruments used as cumency hedges of overseas net assats.

4.43.2
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to a number of global Intarest rates through assets and fisbiities denominated in jurisdictions to which these retes are applied,
most notably US, Eurozone and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these because market movements in these rates will increase or decrease the interest
charge recognised in the Group incoma statement.

4) Managemaent of interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of maintaining a porton of its Kabilities at fixed iInterest rates and reviewing the balance of the floating rate exposure to ensure that if interest
rates rise globally the effect on the Group's income staternent is manageable.

Interest rates are managed using fxed and floating rate debt and financial nstruments including interest rate swaps. Floating rate liabilities comprise short-term debt
which baears interest at short-term bank rates and the labilty side of exchange contracts where the interest element is based primarily on three month inter-bank rates.

All cash surphuses are irwasted for short periods and are treated as floating rate nvestments. .
Non-interest bearing financial assets and tabiities including short-term trade receivables and payahles have been excluded from the following analysis.
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(cont’d)

b} Interest rate risk profile

The following 1able shows how much of our cash, interest-bearing labiities and exchange contracts attract both fixed and foating rate interest charges,
and how this is analysed between curmencies:

Assets Waeighted
Deht and Cash and subjoct Weighted average
axchange  sxchange tointerest Floating Fixad uverage periad
contracts contracts rate risk rate rate fixed for which
2018 2018 2018 2016 2016  interest rale  rate Is fixed
Bm £m Em Bm £m % years
Sterling - 412 412 412
US dollar (215) 65 (150) 65 (215) 6.7 2.0
Euro {414) [ {410} {282} [1286) 1.4 8.3
Other (169) A {135 {135
Tota! {7B8) 515 {283) 80 {343)
Assets Whaighted
Debt and Cash and subject Waightad aversge
axchange excharnge 10 inlarest Foating Fixed sverege period
contracts contracis rata risk rate rate foced for which
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015  interegirate  rate is foed
m fm €m m £m % yoera
Sterling - 335 336 335 -
US dollar 231) 00 (141) 00 (231) 6.8 2.4
Euro (320 3 (317) {207) (110) 14 8.3
Other (149 35 114 {114) -
Total {700) 483 230 104 (341)
4.4.3.3 Funding for the Group Is co-ordinated centrally by the treasury function and
. . comprisaes committed bilaterat facilities with a core group of banks, and a serles
Commodity risk of US loan note issues. The level of faciities is maintainad such thet faciitiss
and term loans exceed the forecast peak gross debt of the Group over a roling
The commodity inputs fo the Group’s production process typically oonsist 12 month view by 8n appropriate amount 1aking into account market conditions
of base metals. Com risk for the Group i - and corporate activity, including acquisitions, organic growth plans and share
3 modity up is the risk that the prices of N
these inputs could rise, thus recucing G prokits. buybacks. In addition, we undertaka reguiar covenant compiiance reviews 1o
‘ ) ensurp that we remain fully within those covenant limits. At the end of 2016 the
Group had undrawn committed facilities totakng £301m (2015: £294m) and
The Group's operating companias purchasa metal and metal components wnsholti'lgeasharueasheqmvabmsofmm(zms:ﬂ.iml‘ﬂmmm
and are therefore exposed 10 changes in commodity prices. ;‘?WWWWMW“WWWM
L p.
Management of commodity risk
Tha Group managas this expasure through & centralised process hedging 4.4.4

copper, zinc and aluminium using 8 combination of financial contracts and local H
supply agreements casignad 10 minimise the volatility of short-term margins. Capltal management

4.4.3.4 Capital managemeant concarns the dacision as to how the Group's activities
- . are financed and specifically, how much of the Group caphal s provided by
Liquidity risk borrowings {or debt) and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
. tha issue of share capital.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial The Board's policy is to mainisin a balanca shest with a broad capital
obligations as they fall due. base and the strength to sustain the futwe development of the business

including acquisitions. This section discusses how the Board views the
a) Management of liquidity risk andl iwm:tmmm‘m impact on ge, distribution policy
The Group's approach to managing liquidity is 10 ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have adequate resources to meet its liabities when they
fall due, with sufficiert headroom to cope with abnormal market conditions.
This position is reviewed on a quarterly basis.
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4441
Overview

The Board mondors the geographical spread of its shareholders and
amployeas are encouraged 1o hold shares in the Company. The underlying
capital base of the Group inckudes 1otal equity and reservas and net debt.
Employee benefit obligations net of deferred tax form part of the extended
capital base. Management of this element of the capitel base s discussed
further in Section 4.5 of the financial statements. Undrawn committed funding
faciities are maintained as described in Section 4.4.5.1 10 provide additional
capital for growth {including acquisitions and organic investments) and ficuidity
raquiternents as discussed above.

4,442
Capital base

2016 2015

£m Em

Total equity 583 589
Gross dabt including overdrafts 363 351
Grogs cash (80) (114)
Capital base 866 826
Empioyee benefits and deferred tax assets 57 24
Extended capital base 923 BO2
Undrawn funding facliities 301 284
Available capitel base 1,224 1,096

Part of the capital base is held in curencies 1o broadly match the cumency base
of the assets being funded a5 described in the asset fransiation gk section.

4443
Debt or equity

The balance between debt and equity in the capital base of the Group is
considerad regularly by the Board in kight of market conditions, buginess
forecasts, growth opporiunities and the ratio of net debt to continuing EBITDA
before exceptional items. Funding covenants currently limit net debt fo s
maximum of 3.0 times EBITDA. The net debt to EBITDA ratio st the and of
2016 was 1.0 times (2015: 0.9 times). Through the lite of our five year plan,
the Board would consider appropriate acquisitions that could 12ke net debt up
to 2.5 timas EBITDA on acquisition, provided that a clear plan axists to reduce
this ratio back to under 2.0 times. 1t is expected that et these levels our debt
would continue 1o be perceived as investimant grace. The potential benefits to
equity shareholders of greater leverage are offset by highar risk and the coat
and avallability of funding. The Board will consider raising additional equity in
the event that it is required to support the capital base of the Group.

4444
Dividend policy and share buy-backs

As part of the capital management process, the Group ensures that adequate
reserves are avaiable in IMI pic in order to meet proposed sharsholder
dividands, the purchase of shares for employee share scheme incentives
and any on-market share buyback programme.

Whilst the Group doss not have a formal dividend policy or payout ratio,
the Group's aim is 10 continue with progressive dividends, which typically
increase at a steady rate for both the interim and final dividend payrments,
with an aim that the dividend should, through the cycle, be covered by at
least two times reported eamings. In the event that the Board cannot identify
initiatives and acquisitions, the return of funds to shareholders through shane
buybacks or special dividends will be considered. it shouki be noted that

& number of shares are reguiarty bought in the market by an employee
benefit trust in order to hedge the exposure under certain management
incentive plans. Detaills of these purchases are shown in Sectian 4.6.2

1o the financial statements.

4445

Weighted average cost of capital

The Group currently uses a post-tax weighted average cost of capital ('WACGC")
of 8% (2015: 8%) as a benchmark for investment returns. This is reviewed
regutarty in tha light of changes in market rates. The Board tracks the Group's

raturn on invested capital and seeks to ensume that it consistently delivers
returns in excess of the WACC.

4.4.5
Debt and credit facilities

This section providas datals regarding the specific borrowings that the Group
has in place to satisfy the debt elements of the capital managermant policy
discussed above.

4.4.51

Undrawn committed facilities

The Group has various undrewn committad bomowing faciities. The fecifities
available at 31 December in respect of which all corcfiions pracedant had
been met were as follows:

08 2015

£m om

Expiting within one yaar 50.0 22.1
Expiring between one and two years 50.6 75.0
Expiring after more than two years 200.0 187.1
300.6 204.2

The weighted average Me of these facilities is 2.7 vears (2015: 3.2 years).
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(cont’d)

4452
Terms and debt repayment schedule

The termns and conditions of cash and cash equivalents and cutsiandling loans were as follows:

Efactive Comying  Contrachual oto 1to 210 310 410 5 years
interest rate vaiye  cash flows <1 yoar <2 years <3 yoars <4 yoars <5 yoars and over
% £m £m tm £m £m frn £ om
2016
Cash and cash equivalents Floating 79.7 79.7 79.7
US loan notas 2018 5.98% (121.8) {129.9) .3 (122.6)
US loan notes 2019 7.61% {61.0) {96.9) 6.2) 6.2) (84.5)
US loan notas 2022 717% 12.2 {17.5 (0.9) {0.8) (0.9) 0.9) (0.9 (13.0)
US loan notes 2025 1.39% (128.0) {142.8) (1.8) (1.8) (1.8) 1.8) 11.8) {133.8)
Finance leases Various {i. 1.0) 10.5) ©.2) 0.1) (0.1) {0.1)
Bank overdrafts Floating {12.3) {12.2) (12.2)
Unsecured bank loans Floating (6.3} (8.6) {6.5) 0.1} _
Total (282.6) (327.2) 44.3 (131.8) (87.9) (2.8) (2.8) {148.8)
2015
Cash and cash equivalents Floating 114.2 114.2 114.2
US loan notes 2016 7.26% 50.9) {53.0 53.0)
US loan notes 2018 5.98% {101. {114.8] {6.1) 6.1) {102.6)
US loan notes 2019 7.61% 67.8) {86.4) 5.2) 5.2) [5.2) 70.8)
US loan notes 2022 717% {10.2) (15.1) 0.7) 0.7) 0.7) 0.7 0.7) {11.8)
LS loan notes 2025 1.38% {110.4) (124.5) 1.5) (1.5 1.5 {1.5) {1.5) {117.0)
Finance Isases Various {1.0} (1.0 ©05) 0.3 ©04) ©.)
Bank overdrafts Poating 8.4 (8.4 {6.4)
Unsecured bank loans Floating 2.7 (2.9} 2.7) (0-1) {0.1)
Total {236.9) (289.9; 38.1 (13.9) {110.2) {73.1) {2.2) {128.6)

Contractual cash flows include undiscounted committed intarest cash fows and, whers the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosad is determined
by reference to the conditions existing at the reporting date.
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4,46
Fair value

Financial instruments included in the financial statements are measurad at either fair value or emortised cost. The measurement of this fair value can in some
cases be subjective, and can depend on the inputs used in the celculations. The Group generally calculatas its own far values using comparable observed
markat prices and & valuation model using the raspectiva and relevant market data for the instrument being valued

4.46.1
Total financial assets and liabllities

The table below sets out the Group's accounting classification of each class of financial aseets end liabilities, and their fair values at 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015. Under LAS 39, all derivative financial instruments not in a hedge relationship are classified as derivatives at fair vakue through the
income statement. The Group does not use derivatives for speculative purpeses and transacts all derivatives with suitable lnvesmrngradeowmerpmm
Adl transactions in derivative fnancial instruments are undertaken to manage the risks arising from underlying busmess activitiss.

Fair valuo
Other  Availabie for A Total
Designated dervalives  sole assels amortised camying Fair vithue
atfarvalue ot fervelue et foir value cost velua if cifferont
fm m £m £m om fm
2018
Cash and cash eguivalents 79.7 70.7
Trade receivables 7.0 3370
investments .2 8.7 209
Othar current financial asseta/(ebiities) .
Derivative assets** 29 29
Derivative kabilities™ 5.7 7.8 RETD)
Total (5.7) (4.8) 100.9 (419.0) (328.7)
2015
Cash and cash equivalents 114.2 ] 114.2
Bank overdrafts (8.4) (6.4)
BO(TUW‘WS due within one year [54.1) 541) {55‘51
Borrowings due after one year {290.6) {290.6) {308.3)
Trade and other payables* {352.6) {352.6)
Trade recetvables 213 2013
Invesiments 18.7 8.3 270
Devivative asssts™ 28 28
Derivative liabikties*** 2.9) ©.0) ©9
Total {2.9) 3.2) 132.9 {404.1) 277.3)

*Trade and cther payabies exclude corporation tax and other tax liabilities and inckide Eabilties of £10.7m (2015: £10.5m} falling due after more than one year.
*Iincludes nil {2015: £0.2) falling due after more than one year,

* Derivative liablities include kabilities of £0.7m (2015: £0.3m) falking due after more than one year: £0.7m in 1-2 years and nil in 2-3 years (2015: £0.3m in
1-2 yrs and nil in 2-3 yrg). Derivative kabdities designated at fair value represent the fair value of net investment hecdge darivatives. The increase in value
of net investment hedge derivative liabilities in the year of £2.8m is shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incomae {net of tax).

‘There are no other financial liabilities included within payables disciosed above and finance leases disclossd in Section 4.4.5.2.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont'd)

The following table shows the Group's financial instruments hekd at fair value.

Quoted pricas in
active markets Significant
{or idantical other

Level 1 Loval 2 Level 3 Totet
£m £m £m m
As at 31 December 2016
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity instruments* 21.2 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents 70.7 79.7
Foreign cumency forward contracts 2.9 2.9
100.8 28 - 103.8
Financial liabllities measured at fair value
Foreign currency forward contracts 13.5) 13.5)
- [13.5) - (13.5)
As at 31 December 2015
Financial assets measured at fai vaiue
Equity instruments* 18.7 18.7
Cash and cash equivalents 114.2 1142
Foreign currency forward contracts ) 28 28
132.9 2.8 - 135.7
Financial liabitities measured at fair value
Foreign currancy forward contracts 8.9 (_aﬂ
- {8.9] - {8.9)

* Equity instrumants relate to investments in funds in order to satisfy long-term benafit arrangements.

Valuation techniques for level 2 inputs

Derivative assets and kabilies of £2.9m and £13.5m respectively are valued by lavel 2 techniques. The valuations are derived from discountad contractual cash
flows using observable, and directly relevant. market inkerest rates and foneign exchange rates from markat data providers.

Valuation techniques for level 3 inputs
The Group has no financial assets or financial iabilities measured at fair value using significant unobservable fevel 3) inputs.

446.2
Valuation methodology

Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafis, frade payables and trade receivables are carried at their book vatues as this approximates 1o theyr fakr value due to the
short-term nature of the instruments.

Long-term and short-term bomowings, apart ffom any which are subject to hedging aranpements, ane caried at amortised cost as it is the intention that they will not
be repaid prior to maturity, where this option exists. The fair values are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interast ates and relevant credit spreads.

Long-temm borrowings which are subject to hedging arangements are valued using appropriate discount rates {0 value the relevant hedged cash flows.

Derivative assets and Babilties, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and metel hedges, are valued using comparable observed market -
prices and a veluation madel using foreign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and forward rate curves for the underlying commodities.

Ivestmants are primarily in publically-quoted pooled funds held to fund overseas pension liabiities. The fair value is determined by the unedjusted price quotation
at the raporting date.
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4.46.3
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are cbservable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have & significant eflect on the recorded falr vajue that are not based on observable market data,

447
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shows how the fair vaiue of financial instruments presented can change for a given change in market rates.

The values shown in the table below are estimates of the impact on financial instruments only. The underlying risks that these financial instruments have been
acquired to hedge will move in an oppostte direction. ’

4,471
Overview

In estimating the sensitaity of the financial instruments afl other variables are held constant to determine the mpact on profit before tax and equity. The analysis
is for ilustrative purposes only, as in practice market rates rarely change in isolation.

Actual results in the future may differ materially from these estimates due to the movements in the underlying transactions, actions taken to mitigate any potential
losses, the interaction of more than one sensitivity occurring, and further developments in global financial markets. As such this table should not be considered
as a projection of ikely fiture gains and losses in thesa financial instruments.

4,47.2
Financial derivatives sensitivity table

The outputs from the sensitivity analysis are estimates of the impact of market risk assuming that the specified changes occur only to the financial derivatives
and do not reflect the opposite movement rom the impact of the specific change on the underlying business that they are designed 1o hadge.

1% % 10% 10%
decreasa increase 10% 10% decreasein  Incraasein
in interest ininterest  weaksning stengthening  basametal  base matal
rates rates In stering in steriing costs costs
B £m &m £m £m fm

At 31 December 2018
Impact on income statement: {loss)/gain - - (2.4) 24 (0.9) 0.3
Impact on equity: (loss)/gain - - {67.4) 67.4 - -

At 31 December 2015

Impact on income statemant: (loss)/gain - - (0.7) Q.7 {0.3) 0.3

Impact on equity: (Iossyg'n - - (55.3) 55.3 - -
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’'d)

4.5
Retirement Benefits

Moﬂersammberofdeﬁnedbenefnarrangementsloernployaeslhatvwllnmbepaidunulmaemanayearanerﬂwpemdhmmeyareeamd for
example pension benefits, jublee plans, post-empioyment and other long-term employee benefit amangements.
There is a significant degree of estimation involved in predicting the ultimate benefits payable under these defined benefit arrangernents in respect of which

the Group holds net liabllities on its balance sheet. This section explains how the value of these benefits payabie and any assets funding the arrangements are
accounted for in the Group financial statements and gives details of the key assumptions upon which the estimations are based.

Assets and labilities for defined confribution arrangements are minimal as they relate solely to shori-term timing differences between the period during which
benefits have accrued and when contributions are paid into schemes.

Defined contribution {{DC’): Arrangements whare the employer pays fixed contributions into an externat fund on behalf of the employes {(who is responsible for
making the investment decigion and tharefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance). Contributions to these armangements are recognised in the
income statement as incurred,

Defined beneft {DB'): A defined benefit pension plan is a pension armangement in which the employer promises a specified annual benefit on retirement that

is predaterminad by a formula based on the employes's earmings history, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual investment
retumns. In some cases, this benefit is paid as a lump sum on leaving the Company or while in the service of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group
undarwrites one or more fisks in meeting these obligations and therefore any nat liabflity or surplus in these arrangements is shown on the Group balance sheet.

451
Summary information

Net penaion deficit: £78.8m (2015: surplus of £4.4m)

The net pansion deficit or ‘net kability for defined benefit obligations’ ('DBO") at 31 Dacember 2016 was £79.8m (2015: sumplus of £4.4m). The assets and kabities
of the schemes are aggregated, recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and shown within non-current liabilities or in non-current assets if a scheme s in
surplus and it is recoverable.

Number of defined benefit arrangements: 63 {2015: 83)

The number of defined benefit arrangements remained constant foliowing the recognition of an additional schene in Ganmany, offset by the wind-up of a scheme
in haty,

The following table shows a summary of the geographical profile of the Group's DBOs:

Surplus/
GQuantity Quanthy Assots DBO (deficty)

2018 2015 £m m Bm

Austrelia 2 2 - (0.4) (0.4)
Austria ] 3] - 3.2) 2.2
France 3 a 0.1 1.3) 0.3
Germany 28 27 6.0 (56.5) {50.5}
india 3 5 - (0.6) (0.6}
ftaly 5 6 - 29 2.9)
Spain 2 2 - ©.1) [X]
Swizeriand 5 5 80,2 (103.2) 23.0)
us* 3 3 - 1.5 (21.5)
UK 3 3 1,423.9 {1,400.3) 228
€3 63 15102 {1,590.0) 79.9)

* The US deficit above excludas £21.2m of assets relating to unqualified plans classified as investments (see Section 4.4.6).
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The Group provides pension benefits thwough a mixture of funded and unfunded
dafined benefit and defined contribution ('DC') arrangements, although its
strafagy is to move away from defined benefit amangements towards defined

contribution arangements wherever possible o minimise the liabiity of the Group.

Assassments of the obligations of the defined benefit plans are carried out by
inclependert achuaries, based on the projected unit credit method. An historical
spiit of the types of defined benefit schemes in operation is a5 follows:

Asset profile of schemes

The following table sets out the profile of the overall assets of the schemes

(to give an incication of their risk profile), the comparative amounts of the funded
and unfunded DBO and a spiit of the balance sheet impact between schemes
with a net pension surphus and a net pension deficit.

6 2015
£m £m
% %

of totel diotd  Cuoted equities M4 778

Qty Assats aseals DBO fabites  Quoted bonds 688.3 661.8

Type of scheme No. £m % m % Total quoied assets 7227 739.6
2016 Private equities 114.4 92.3
Final salary” 21 1,424.0 % 14506 92% nsurance poiicies” 525.4 273.8
Cash balance™ 10 80.2 5% 106.1 7% iMi Scoftish Limited Partnership 18.0 174
Jubilee*™* 14 - 0% 28 0% Hedge funds 141 1427
Other 18 6.0 0% 215 1% Broperty 29.8 30.1
Total B3 1.510.2 100% 1,590.0 100% Other* B58 50.3
2015 Total unguoted assets 787.5 6808.7
Final salary’ 21 1,734 95%  1,2330 92%  Fair value of assets 1,5102| 13483
Cash balance** 11 68.2 5% 89.4 7% Restriction dus to assal caling - 0.2}
Jubibea™ 13 - 0% 20 0% DBOs for funded schemes (5128 1.277.1)
Other 18 5.0 0% 16.9 1%  DBOs for unfunded schemes {77.5)| 84.6)
Total 83 1 .34;;) 100% 1.341.3 100% Net surplus/ {defict) for DBOs {79.9) 4.4
Raviead 9 1.346:5 Schames in net pension deficit {137.6) 84.3)
. Schemes in net pension surpius 57.8 88.7

* Final salary scheme: The pension available to a member in a final salary
arrangament will be a propostion of the member's salary &t or around their
refirement dete. This proportion will be determined by the member's length
of pensionable service, their accrual rate and any particutar circumstances
under which the member retines (for example early ll-health retirement).

+ Cash balanoe: A cash balance scheme Is a form of defined benefit pension
under which the membar has the right to a defined lump sum on retirernent
rather than a defined amount ¢f pension receivable. For axampila a cash balance
plan may have minimum or guaranteed rates of retum on pension comributions.
The amount of pension to which that lump sum may be converted is determined
by tha annuity rates prevailing at the time of conversion.

=+ Jubilee: Jubise plans provide for cash award payments which are based
on completed lengths of senice. These payments are often made on cassation
of service with the Company, subject to a minimum period of service.

*The fair values assigned to the insurance policies are established by
an independent third party actuary having regard 1o the liabilities insured
end in particular the 1AS 19 discount rate, the expected pension iInCreases
and the assumad life axpectancy of the members covared.

*Other' assets include the market value of interest, inflation, equity and
curnancy swaps relating to UK schome assets and kabilities.

The overseas assets of £86.3m (2015: £73.2m) comprise equities of
£34.4m (2015: £12.5m), bonds of £25.2m (2015: £22.2m), insurance of
£7.6m {2015; £28.8m), property of £15.1m {2015: £6.5m) and other assets
of £4.0m (2015; £3.2m).

Funded: The majority of the Group defined benefit and other post-employment
benefit arrangements are funded, which means they are linked to specific plan
agsets that have been segregated in a trust or foundation.

Unfunded: Plans that are not funded are those that are nat backed by segragated
assets. Thasa include some pension plans but also a nurnber of other long-term
arrangements for the benefit of our employees, with benefits payable whie they
ane employed by the Group but more than 12 months after the related service

is rendenad, Actuarial gaing and losses on other kong-term amangemants are
recognisedt in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Average durstion by geography
The following table shows the weighted avarage number of yaars (or duration)
over which pension benefits are expected to be paid: ’

Location Yours
UK 15.9
Switzerand 194
USA 9.2

Eurozone 155
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Section 4 ~- capital structure and financing costs

(cont’d)

452
The UK and overseas pension funds

4.5.21
The UK Funds

The United Kingdom constitutes 88% (2015: 88%) of total defined benefit
liabifties and 94% (2015: 95%) of total defined benefit assets. Historically the
IMI Pension Fund offered final salary benefits to UK employees until it closed to
new entrants in 2005 and to fulue accrual on 31 December 2010. in Decernber
2014 winding-up procedures commenced and those memberas who were not
eligible or cid not take up the offer of a single cash lump sum transferred to
ohe of two new Funds (Ml 2014 Pensioner Fund or the Wil 2014 Deferred
Fund - ‘the UK Funds'). Ongoing pansion benefits in the UK are provided

via the Trusiee's defined contribition plan - The IMI Retirement Savings Plan.
All UK pension assets are run on behalf of the Trusiee by the Board of the

IMI Common Investment Fund.

The Trustes has determined an investment objective to achieve, over time,
a position of self-sufficiency, defined using a discount rete of giks + 0.25% and
at tha March 2016 valuation the UK Funds were 91.8% funded on this level,

Asset allocation

The Trustee has, over recent valuations, continued ta reduce asset voiatiity
and sansitivity to UK interast rates, inflation and foreign currencies. This work
caontinued in 2016 with the purchase of a further £306.5m of insurance policies.
On 31 Jamuaary 2017 spproximately £430m of Babilities coverad by insurance
policies were permanently transferred 1 the underlying insurance companies
through a formal buy-out transection. This resulted in the pension asset and
cormesponding DBO being removed from the balance sheet. This impact has
not been reflected in the 2016 financials but witt be in the 2017 intarim resuits,

Liability menagement

The Trustes has continued 1o undertake, where practicable liability management
programs. In Decamber 2014 over 2,500 members (£25.2m of payments)
accepted either minimal commutation payments or winding-up lumnp sums as
full settlement of their pension. In summer 2015 a further trivial commaation
exarcise was carried out with a further £10.1m of settements. In June 20186,

a Pension Increasa Exchange exercise was carred out which allowed
pensioners 10 incraase their cumant monthly income in retum for removing
part or all of thelr anrwal inflationary increases. This exercise resulted in a
gross settlement gain of £7.6m (see Section 2.2.3).

Contributions

The recovery plan fom the 2011 valuation agreed annual contributions of
£16.8m unti 2016, The Trustee agreed, as part of the 2015 valuation, the
payments for 2015 and 2018 wera not to be paid and instead a contingent
contribution plan was agread for the IMI 2014 Pansionar Fund. Tha amount
of contributions due, if any, will depend on asset performance over the nmad
threa triennial vaksations with contributions payable where asset returns are
less than 1.5% over gilts, The maximum amounts payable, where asset returns
are lass than or equal to 0.7% over gilts would be:

4522
Overseas pension funds

Fallowing the 2015 Swiss scherne mengers, two of our Swiss schemes wens
overfunded. As a result, assets were distributed 10 members in excess o
their current DBO, resulting in an excaptional lose of £4.7m. Folowing the
continuation of a restructuring exercise in Switzedand, a curtaliment gain
of £1.5m was reakised.

Following the deduction of associated fees of £0.1m, these events led
to the special pension events which are classified as exceptional items
(soe Section 2.2.3).

453
Specific effect on financial statements

The comesponding entries for incréases and decreases in the net pension

deficit reported in the batance sheet are reflected as follows:

= Cash flow statement: When the Group makes cash contributions 1o fund
the deficit they are reflected in the cash flow statement and reduce the net
deficit/increase the net surplus,

+ Income statement: Movements in the overall net pension deficit are
recognised in the income statement when thay relate to changes In the
overall pension promise, due to either an additional period of service
{(known as ‘current service cost’), changes to pansion terms in the scheme
rJes (known as ‘past service cost'’), or closure of afl or part of & schems
{known as settiemernts and curtailments). The interest charge/income on
the net daficit/surplus position is also recognised in the income statement.

» Other comprehensive income {‘OCI"): Movements in the overall net
pension defickt are recognised through OCI when they rolate to changes in
actuanal assumptions or the differance (‘experience galn or loss') between
previous assumplions and actual resufts.

The tabie below reconciles the movement in the UK and overseas dafined
benefit surplus/{ebligation) between 1 January 2016 and 3% December 2016.

1.4 Overseas Total
£m £m £m
Net defined benafit surplus/obligation)
at 1 January 2018 88.7 (84.3) 4.4
Movement recognised in:
Income statement 109 12.4) (1.5)
QCl (76.1) [16.0) {83.0}
Cash flow statement 0.1 10.2 103
Net defined benefit surplus/{obligation)
at 31 December 2018 236 (103.4) {79.8)

£13m due 30 June 2019

£12m cue 30 June 2022

£12m due 30 June 2025
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4,56.3.1
Cash flow impacts
2076 015

uK Oversesss Total UK Owersons Total

£m £m £m £m £m £Em
Amounts from employees - 2.5 2.5 - 28 28
Amounts from employers 0.1 4.9 5.0 - 5.2 5.2
Benafils and settiements paid directly by the Group - 5.3 5.3 - 45 4.5
Total 0.1 2.7 12.8 - 125 125

The expected contributions 10 the defined benefit arrangements in 2017 are £3.0m of normal emplover contributions and £2.4m of normal employee contributions,

both in relation to overseas pension funds.

4.5.3.2
Other comprehensive income

Movemaents in pension assets and Eabdities that arise during the year from changes in actuarial assumptions, or because actual experence is different from the
undertying actuarial assumptions, are recopnised in equity via other comprehensive income. These movements are analysed below: ’

16 2ms
Oversoas Overseas Overseas Overseas
post POM-post post non-post
UK smpioymem employment Total UK empioyment employment Tota)
Bm £m £m £m £m on £m m
Change in discount rate (203.2) (8.8) - (212.0) 28.2 28 - .0
Changa in inflation (43.0) 24 - (40.8) - 0.4 - 0.4
Change in other assumptions {4.9) 0.9 - {3.4) (8.0 09 - {7.1)
Actuarial experience 8.5 1.2 - 7.7 a1. {2.6} - 200
Asset experience 167.9 2.0 - 169.9 25.9) 0.5 - (25.4)
Actuarial gaina/{losses) in the year {76.1) {2.3) - (78.4) 259 2.0 - 279
Change in the asset celing - 0.2 - 0.2 - {0.1) - {0.1}
Exchange gains/losses) - 13.0) 1.8) {14.8) - 01 0.1 -
Galns/(losses) recognised through equity {76.1) 15.1) {1.8) {63.0) 259 20 0.1 27.8
IM| takes advice from independent actuaries regarding the appropriateness of the assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit
obligations. These assumptions inchude tha discount rate applied to the assets and Habilities, the ie expectancy of the members, ther expected salary and
pension increases and inflation. The assumptions used for this purposa in these financial statements are summarised below:
Waighted Averages
31 Dec 2016 31 D 2015 31 Dac 2014
UK Oversoas ux Overseas UK Oversaas
% pa % pa % pa % pa 9% pa % pa
Inflation - RPI 34 n/a 3.1 na 3.1 n/a
Infiation - CPI 2.4 1.2 2.1 1.5 2.1 1.7
Discount rate 2.6 1.4 a7 1.7 3.6 2.1
Expected salary ncreasss 2.2 14 25 1.7 n‘a 2.2
Rate of pension increases 3.4 0.4 3.1 0.4 3.1 0.3
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(cont’d)

2018 2015 2014
Years Years Years
Lite expactancy at age 65 (UK Funds only)
Current male pensioners .2 2141 212
Current femals pensicners 24.1 240 240
Future male pensioners 233 23.2 230
Future Temale pensioners 264 26.3 26.0

The mortally assumptions used for the UK Funds above refiect its scheme specific experience, together with an aliowance for improvernents over time. The experience
was reviewed ag part of the formal triennial actuarial vaiuation canied out as at 31 March 2014, and the assumptions used as at 31 Decernber 2016 and 2015 reflect

the results of this review.

The table below Blustrates how the UK Funds' net pension surplus would decrease
(excluding the impact of infiation rate and interest rate hadging), as at 31 Decerriber

2016, in the event of the following reasonable changes in the key assumptions above.

The table below shows how the net pension deficit for IMI's non-UK plans
would increase, in the event of the following reasonabie changes in the key
assumptians above.

UK Non-UK

Discount rate 0.1% pa lower £17.0m Discournt rate 0.1% pa lowear £3.1m
Inflation-linked pension incraases 0.1% pa higher® £10.5m Salary increases 0.1% higher £0.5m
Increase of one year n Iife expectancy from age 65 £32.9m Incroase of one year in life expectancy at age 65 £3.2m
10% fail in ron-bond-kke assats** £21.4m

'ﬂisisanln—pammlt'pensionhcmasesemiﬁmn
** Fund assels excluding cash, bonds, insurance policies and the Funds’ interest
in the IMI Scottish Limited Parinership.,

453.3
Income statement

In sach casa all other assumptions are unchanged.

In accordance with IAS 19, pansion costs recorded through the income statarment primarily represent the increase in the defined benefit obligation based on
employee sanvice during the year and the interest an the net fiability or sumpius for defined benefit obligations in respect of employae service in previous years.
The 1able betow shows the total cost reported in the income staternent In respect of pension cbligations and therafore also inciudes the cost of DC schemes.

2018 2015

Overssas Oversons Overseas Overssas

post non-post post non-post
UK empioyment empioyment Total UK employment  employment Total
£m tm £m £m om £m n fm
Current service cost - 5.1 1.5 6.6 - 5.0 0.9 59
Past service cost/(credi) {7.6) 47 - {2.9) - - - -
Settlement/curtailment - {1.5) - {1.5) {0.2) 8.7 Q.1 (9.8
Recognition of losses/(gaing) - - 0.4 04 - - (1.5) 1.5
DC employer contributions - - - - 35 4.1 - 7.6
Pension {income)/expanse - opearating costs (7.6) 8.3 1.9 2.6 33 0.6} {0.5) 2.2
Interest on DBO 4927 27 0.4 458 43.8 4.1 0.4 48.3
interost on assets {46.0) 0.9) - {46.9) 46.3] 22) - [48.5)
Interest fncome)expense - financing costs T 3.3 1.8 0.4 1.7) (2.5) 1.9 0.4 02

During the year a Pension Increase Exchanga exencise was Carried out which aflowed UK pensioners to increase their current monthly income in retum for removing
part or all of their annual inftationary increases. This rasufted in a gross seftlement gain of £7.6m. Following the 2015 Swiss scheme mergers, two of our Swiss
schemas were overfunded. As & result, assets were distributed to members in excess of their current DBO, resutting in an exceptional loss of £4.7m. Following the
continuation of a restructuring exercise in Switzerland, a curtgilment gain of £1.5m was also realised. Fees of £1.8m were incurred as part of these events, resulting

in & net gain from special pension events of £2.8m in the income staterment.
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4.5.4
Overall reconciliation of changes in the net surplus/(liability) for defined benefit obligations

2018 2015
Net defined Net definad
Definad benefit Defined benafit
benefit Asset asset/ benefit Asset asgel/
obligation Assets cafiing Glabfity) | obdgation Assets caling fabiity}
£m Em &m m £m m m m
Brought forward at start of year {1,341.7)  1,346.3 0.2 44 | (1,5104) 1,4758 {0.1) (34.7)
Current service cost (6.6) - . (6.6) (5.9) - - {5.9)
Past service cost 29 - - 29 - - - -
Settlement/curtaiment 5.0 {3.5} - 1.5 108.2 (98.4) - 9.8
Net interest {costyincome on net defined banefit
(liabiityy/asset (45.9) 46.9 - 1.1 (48.3) 48.5 - 0.2
Innmediata recognition of gains/flosses) (0.4) - - {0.4) 15 . - 1.5
Total credited/{charged) to income statement (44.9) 43.4 - 0.5) 55.5 (40.9) - 5.6
Actuarial gain due to experience 7.7 - - 7.7 295.0 - - 20.0
Actuarial (oss)/gain due to financial assumption changes (252.8) . - (252.8) 237 - . 23.7
Actuarial floss)/gain due 10 demograghic
assumption changas {3.4) - - 34) 0.6 - - 0.6
Retum on plan assets* greater/lower} than discount rate - 169.9 - 1609 - {25.4) - {25.4)
Change in eifect of asset celling . - - 0.2 0.2 - - {0.1) {0.1)
Total remeasurements recognised In other
comprehensive income {248.3) 169.9 0.2 {78.2) 53.3 {25.4) (0.1) 27.8
Employer contributions - 8.0 - 50 - 52 - 52
Emgployse contribulions (2.5) 25 - . (2.8 28 - -
Benefits and settiemants paid directly by the Group 5.3 - - 53 4.5 - - 4.5
Benefits paid from plan assets 70.3 70,3} - - 88.0 {68.0 - -
Net cash outflow/{inflow) 731 (62.8} - 10.3 69.7 {80.0 - 8.7
Acquisitions - - - - {4.0) - - (4.0)
Changes in exchange rates (28.2) 134 - {14.8) 5.8) 5.8 - -
Total other movements (28.2) 13.4 - (14.8) 9.8) 5.8 - (4.0
Carried forward at end of year {1,600.0) 1,510.2 - 79.8) | (1.341.7) 1,343 0.2) 4.4

* Net of asset management costs
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.6
Share capital

The ordinary sharsholders of the Group own the Company. This section shows how the 1otal number of ordinary shares in issue has changed during the
year and how many of these ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or n Employee Benefit Trusts, to be used to satisfy share options and awards to
direciors and empioyees ot the Company, as part of amployee share ownership programmes. This saction also gets out the dividends pald or proposed
o be paid to shareholders.

4.6.1
Number and value of shares
2me 205
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares Shares
2B 4/1p per 28 4/7p per
share share
. Mumber{n]  Value{Smi| Number(m} Vel ({m)
In issue at the start of the year 286.2 81.8 286.0 81.7
Issued to satisfy employee share schemas - - 0.2 0.1
In issus at the end of the year 286.2 81.8 2868.2 81.8

All issued share capilal at 31 December 2018 is fully pald and conveys the same rights.
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46.2
Share movements in the year

Movements in shares due to share issuas and purchases during the vear were as follows:

Nurmbaer of ordinary sheres of 28 4/7p each (millon}

Employes
Bonekt Trust Treaswry Other Tolal
In issue at 31 December 2015 0.9 14.3 27M1.0 286.2
Naw issues to satisly ermnployes share schame awards - - . .
Market purchases 0.8 - {0.8) -
Shares allocated under employes share schemes (0.8 - 0.8 -
At 31 December 2016 0.9 143 2711.0 2B6.2

During the year nd (2015: 0.2m) shares were issuad under empioyee share schemes realising Enil (2015: £0.9m).

Employee Banefit Trust

The Employee Benefit Trust made market purchases of a total of 0.8m (2015: nily shares with an aggregate market value of £8.0m (2015: £nil) and a nominal
value of £0.2m (2015: Enil). Associated transaction costs amounted to €nil (2015: Enil).

Share options exercised in 2016 were settled using the shares in the Group’s Employea Benefit Trust. In 2016 0.8m (2015: 0.8m) shares were issued
for cash of £0.8m (2015: £2.3m).

Of the 15.2m (2015: 15.2m) shares held within reteined eamings, 0.9m (2015: 0.9m) shares with an aggregate market valua of £8.4m (2015: £8.0m)
are held in trust 1o satisfy empioyea share schema vesting.

4.6.3

Dividends

After the balance sheet date 1he foliowing dividends were proposad by the directors. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income
1aX CONSEQUENCes.

2018 ns

£m £m

Currant year final dividend - 24.7p per quaﬁyl_n_g ordinary share (2015: 24.5p) 67.0 66.4
The folkywing dividends were daclared and paid by the Group during the year:

2016 2015

£m £m

Prior year final dividend paid - 24.5p per qualifying ordinary share (2014 final year dividend: 24.0p) 66.3 64.9

Current year interim dividend paid - 14.0p per qualifying ordinary share {2015: 13.9p) 3re 376

104.2 102.5
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4.7
Share-based payments

The Group uses shane option schemes 1o reward and retain its empioyees. The estimated cost of awarding these share options is charged 1o the income
statement over the period that the Group benefits from the employees' services. This cost Is then addad back to ratained eamings, 1o reflect that there is
no overall impact on the Group's balance shaet until the shares are issued to the employeas when the options are exercised.

The individual share opbon schemes, the number of options outstanding under aach of them, the astimated cost of these options recognised in the income
staternant and the assumptions used in amiving at this estimated cost are described in this section.

4,71
QOutstanding share options

At 31 Dacermnber 2016, options to purchase ordinary shares had been granted tc, but not yet exercised by, participarits of iMI share option schemes as folows:

Cate of Numier

grent of shares Prics Daias from which exercisable
IM! Sharesave Scheme 06.04.11 383 848.02p 01.08.16
10.04.12 25,163  890.01p 01.08.17
05.04.13 32,000 11968.50p 01.08.16 or 01.08.18
06.05.14 25,108 13B4.02p 01.08,17 or 01.08.19
05.06.15 84,554 1075.32p 01.08.18 or 01.08.20
2004.18 212213 845.10p 01.08.19 or 01.08.21
380,392
Global Employes Share Purchase Plans 19.12.11 1,312 849.02p 01.08.16
10.04.12 672 800.01p 01.08.17
01.08.15 57110 ©911.52p 01.09.17
15.08.16 35833  948.60p 15.08.18
_ 04,727
IMI Incentive Plan 07.05.15 714,216 - 07.05.17 of 07.05.18
000316 1,174,352 - 02.03.18 or 09.03.19
— 1,888,568
iM| Share Option Plan 03.00.09 2,960 440.93p 03.00.12
22.03.10 22000 545.00p 22.03.13
230311 235840 97183 23.03.14
04.05.12 426400 980.67p 04.05.15
27,1112 14,400  1007.33p 27.11.15
120313 426450 1322.70p 12.03.16
10.05.13 10,000 1204.33p 10.05.16
22.10.13 74000 1518.33p 22.10.16
11.03.14 411323 1467.00p 11,0837
1,623,402
M1 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan (also known as Performance Share Flan) 05.04.07 2,146 - 20.03.10
04.04.08 4,500 - 04.04.11
22.10.13 3.418 - 22.10.18
11.03.14 146,688 - 11.03.17
156,752
Share Matching Pian 07.05.10 3.094 - 22.03.13
28.03.11 3,154 - 28.03.14
10.05.12 53,164 - 10.05.15
09,04.13 35,374 - 09.04.18
01.04.14 322,394 - 0104.17
a7177

Total 4,561,018
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4.7.2
Schemes under which options
are outstanding

The options in the above table relate to the foliowing share-based
payment schemeas:

M| Sharesave Scheme (‘SAYE")

This scheme is open to the majorty of the Group's UK empioyees, including
the exacutive directors, and allows the grant of options 1o all participants at a
discount of up to 20% below the market prce. Such schemes are not subject
1o performance conditions and offer tax incentives to encourage empioyees to
usa their own money 10 purchass IMI shares. SAYE options may be exercised
within six months of the date they first become exercisable.

Global Employes Share Purchsse Plans [GESPP?)

These plans were introduced in 2011 for the US and Germany. The Ganman
and US GESPP's offer the opportunity to buy shares in IMi at a fixed price at

a future date. The German GESPP minors the UK Sharesave schems, with a
minimum/maxdmnum savings limit per month and contract duration of three to
five years. The US GESPP aiso operates in a similar way to the UK Sharesave
Scheme, with a2 minimum/maximum savings limit per month, but the contract
duration is for a fixed period of two years and different taxation conditions apply
for the exercise period. No further awards are intended to be granted under the
Geman GESPP.

IMI Share Option Plan ('SOP’)

Share option awards were made from 2009 to selected senior managers
and ceriain other empiloyses under the SOP. These awards are not subject
to performance conditions, but are subject to a three year vesting period.
The purposs of the SOP is to give selected IMI smployees (who are not
executive directors of the Company) the opportunity to share in the benefits
of share price growth and to increasa their IMI shareholding.

IMI 2005 Long-term Incentive Plan {also known as Performance
Share Plan (PSP}

Awards have been grarted to the Company’s executive directors and selected
sanior managers within the Group. Awards have been granted subject to
stretching performance targets, the nature of which differs depending upon
the year in which the award was granted. No further awards can ba granted
under the PSP,

4.7.3
Other share-based payment arrangements

The Group also operates the following employes share plans:

Share Matching Plan {‘SMP')

The delivery of the exacutive directors’ and selacted senior managers’ anvual
bonuses is governad by the individual's achievernent of a Share Ownership
Guicaline {'SOG"). The S0OG is a requirement 1o hold a parcentage of salary as IM)
shares and, if achieved, any bonus is paid in cash. The SMP has been operated
on the basis that if the SOG is not achieved a proportion of any annual bonus
wil be mandsitorily deferrad for three years and delivered in IMI shanes under the
SMP. This mandated investment (¢ the SOG is not echievad) has been matched
from 75% up 10 a maximum of 200%. These matching shares can be earned if
performance conditions over the three year veeting period are met.

Qualifying employees have aiso been able to elect voluntarily to defer all or part
of the remainder of their bonus, and invest personal funds, up to a maximum
of 100% of their annual bonus opportunity. Additional shares, in the form of

a matching award, may be earned {up to a maximum of 200% of the ‘gross
equivalert’ number of shares invested in the SMP) if performance conditions
over the three year vesting perod are met.

The performance maasures for SMP matching awards differ depending upon
the year in which the award was granted. No further awards can be granted
under the SMP.

Share incentive Plan {'SIF)

The SIP Is open to the majority of the Group's UK employesas, including

the exscutive directors. This scheme covers two separate opportunities for

employees to share in IMI's success as follows:

* Partnership shares — aliow employees to invest up 1o the statulory meximum
from pre-iax pay, which is usad to buy M shares.

= Free shares — allows a grant of shares to employees each year, up to the
statutory maximum.

Shares acquired or awarded under the SIP are not subject to performance

conditions and offer tax incentives to encourage employees 10 build up their
shargholdings with the Company.

The IMi Incentive Pian (P’

In ight of the axpiry in 2015 of both the PSP and SMP, the IIP was introduced
to act as the Company's 50le senior executive long-term incentive plan, The
lIP acts as an umbrelia plan which allows the Company 1o grant different types
of award to different employee groups in an efficient way. The IIP is to ba used
annually to grant "Performance Share Awards' in respect of ordinary shares
to the executive directors and other members of senior management subject
1o performance conditions. The JIP wil also be used annually to grant ‘Bonus
Share Awards” below board level. The IIP also gives the Company the ability
to grant 'Restricted Stock Unit Awards' and *Share Options'. lt is currently
intended that Rsstricted Stock Unit Awards and share options will only ba
granted in response to specific business requiremerts.
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(cont'd) -

4.7.4
Options granted during the year

Numberof  Waighted
options aversge Nomal
grarted option  exencisable
{thousand)) price date
SAYE
20056 227 1075p 2018-2020
2016 227 B45p 2018-2021
GESPP
2015 -] 912p 2017
2016 38 949p 2018
1P
2015 783 - 2017-2018
2016 1,238 - 2018-2018
4.7.5
Movement in outstanding options in the year
Ogptions
granted st
Options not granted at nit cost™ ni cost® Total
Number of Weighted Numberof  Numbar of
options Range of avarape options oplions
{thousand)  option prices _option price {thousend) {thousand)
Outstanding at 1 January 2015 2,702 201-1518p 1157p 2,857 5.5_53_
Exercisabla at 1 January 2015 368 201-972p B862p 508 876
Granted 283 912-1075p 1038p 783 1,076
Exercised 382 201-1384p 858p 487 889
Lapsed 305 201-1467p 1238p 561 866
Qu‘tstanding at 31 December 20156 2,308 441-1518p 1180p 2,582 4,900
Exercisable at 31 December 2015 814 441-1007p 2961p 853 1,467
Granted 263 845-940p 858p 1,238 1,601
Exercised 100 511-1197p 8989p 641 750
Lapeod 363 845-1467p 1177p 727 1,080
Outstanding at 31 Decamber 2016 2,000 441-1518p 1156p 2,462 4,561
Exercisabls at 31 December 2016 1,236  441-1518p 1128p 105 1.341

®Optians not granted al nil cost inchude options granted under the following schemes: IMI Sharesave Scheme, Global Employee Share Purchasa Plans

and IMl Share Option Plan.

20ptions granted &t ni cost are those granted under the Performance Share Pian, Share Matching Plan and IMI incentive Plan.
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476
Share-based payment charge for the year

The tola! expenss recognised for the year arising from share-based payments
was £5.8m {2015: £1.1m) which comprises a chargae of £13.5m (2015: £12.9m)
for the year offsel by a credit of £7.7m {2015: £11.8m) in respect of lapses.

£3.9m {2015: £3.5m) of the total charge and £2.4m (2015: £4.2m) of the tolal
credit is in respact of options granted 10 directors.

4.7.7
Share-based payment valuation methodology

The fair value of services recaived in return for share options granted are
measured by reference 1o the fair value of share options granted, basad on
a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The assumptions used for grants in
2018 included a dividend yield of 4.7% (2015: 3.4%). expected share price
volatility of 23% (2015: 22%), a weighted average expected life of 3.4 years
{2015: 3.5 years} and a weighted average interast rate of 0.5% (2015: 0.6%).
The expected volatility is wholly based on the historical volatflity (calculated
based on the weighted avarage remaining ife of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes 1o future volatiity due to publicty avallable information.

4.7.8
Other share-based payment disclosures

The weightad average remaining contractual We for the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 is 6.84 years (2015: 6.87 years)
and the weighted average fair value of share options granted in the year
at their grant date was £7.75 (2015: £9.15).

The weightad average share price &t the date of exercise of share
options exercised duding the year was £9,34 (2016: £11.90).

4.8
Non-controlling interests

Non-controling Interests are recorded as reductions from the income and
equity recorded in the Group's financial statements. In accordance with IFRS,
these arise because if the Group controls an operation, it accounts for that
operation as if the Group were the only party holding an interest in it, bul in
spite of this control, when other parties have an interest in the operation,
that interest should be reflacted.

The deduction from income and equity therefore reflects the reduction in
tha Group's iMterest resutting from the thind party's interast.

Shangha!

CGH SpP Totsd

m £m &m
Non-coniroking interests as at
1 January 2016 21 40.7 428
Profit for the vear attributable to
non-controlling interests {0.4) 2.6 24
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests {0.6) - {0.8)
Incoma eamed by partnership - {4.4) 4.4)
201€ movement In non-controlling
Interast 1.2 (1.6) (2.8)
Non controlliing interest as at
31 December 2018 0.9 39.1 40.0

The nan-controling interest denoted Shanghai CCl in the above table represents
the 30% ownership interest in the ordiinary shares of Shanghai GCl Power Control
Equipment Co Limited hekt by Shanghai Power Station Awdiary Equipment
Works Co Limited.

The non-contraling interest denoted SLP relates to an interest in the IMI
Scottish Limited Parinership which is heid jointly by the Funds and provides

the Funds with a conditional entitiement 1o receive incoma of £4.4m per gnnum
unless the Group has not peid & dividend in the prior year or the Funds are

fulty funded.
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5.1
Contingent liabllities

A contingent Habiity is a Bablity that is not sufficiently Gertain to qualify for
recognition as a provision because significant subjectivity exists regarding
its outcome.

Group contingent liabilities relating to guarantees in the normal course of
business ard other tems amounted 1o £208m {2015: £161m).

52
Related party transactions

Related perties are solely the key management parsonnel. The Board Is
considered to be the key management parsonnel of the Group.

2018 2015

£m fm

Shont-term employee banefits” 4.7 46
Share-based payments** 1.6 (0.7}
Totad 6.3 39

* Short-term employee benefits comprise salary, including employers’ soclal
contributions, benefits eamed during the year and bonuses awarded for the year.

** For details of the shared based payrment (creditycharge for key management
personnel, see Section 4.7.6.

There ane no other related party transactions.

5.3
Subsequent events

Evanta that accur in the period batween 31 December and the date of
approval of the Annual Report can be categarised as adusting or norr-adjusting
depending on whether the condition existed at 31 December. If the event is an
adjusting event, then an adjustment 1o the results is made. If a non-adjusting
event alter the year end is material, non-tisciosure could influence decisions
that readers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-adiusting event after the raporting period we disclose the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect. or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made.

Thare wene no adjusting subsequent events alter the balance sheet date of 31
December 2016. As noted in Secton 4.5.2.1, on 31 January 2017 approximetely
£430m of labifies covered by insurance policies were permanently transfemed
0 the undarlying insurance companies through a formal buy-out transaction.

Thig resulted in the pension asset and comagponding BB0 being removed from -

the balance sheet. This impact has not been reflected in the 2016 financials but
will b in the 2017 interim results.

54
Significant accounting policies

A. Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of IMI pic
and the entitles it controls (s subsidiaries) for the year 10 31 December.
The Group has no significant interests which are accounted for as associates
or joint ventures as at 31 December 2016.

Subsidaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and condinue 1o be consolidated until the dats
that such control ceases. Control comprises the power 1o govern the financial and
operating poficies of the investee so as to obtain benafit from its activities and is
achieved thraugh dirct or indirect ownership of voting Aghts; curently enxercisable
or convertible potential voting rights; or by way of contractsl agreament. The
finencial stetements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company and ane based on consistent accounting poiicies. Al infragroup balances
and fransactions, inchuding urvealisad profits arising from them, are eiminated in .
A change in the ownership interest of a subsiciary, without loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction. if the Group koses control over a
subsidiary, it:
* deracognises the assets (ncluding any goodwil elating to the subsidiary)

and fiabiiities of the subsidiary;
+ deracognises the carmying amount of arty non-controling interest;
» derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
= recognises the fair value of the consideration received;
* racognises the fair value of any investmen! retained;
* racognises any surplus or defick in profit or loss; and

» reclassifies the parent's share of componenits previously recognised in other
comprahensive income to profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate.

whers applicable.

Non-controfing interests include the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly
or indiractly, to the parent company and the UK Funde’ interest in the IMI Scottish
Limited Partnership {‘the Parinership’}. Non-controling interests are presanted
within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately om equity atirfbutable
to owners of the parent. Losses within a subsidiary are proportionally attributed 10
the non-controling interast even if that results in a deficit balance.

B. Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requirés management 0 make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the apptication of
accounding policies and the reported amowunis of assets, linblifies,

ncome and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

i. Judgements, estimates and assumptions

The key judgemants and assumptions concerning the fulune and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjusiment 1o the camying amounts of assets and
liabdities within the next financial year ane described below. The Group bases
its assumgptions and aestimates on information available when the consolidated
financial siatements are prepared. Market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group are reflected in the assumptions when they
ooeur. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the perod in which
the estimate is revised and in any fture periods affected.

impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment existe when the camying value of an assat or cash generating unlt
axceads its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair vaiue less cosis
to sell and its value in use. The value in use is basad on a discounted cash flow
model. Cash fiows are derived from the Group's long-term forecasts for the next
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three to five years. The principal assumptions in these calculations are the
long-termn growth rates and the discount rate applied to forecast cash flows in
addition 10 the achiavement of the forecasts themsalves. Further information
on this process and the assets affected is included In Section 3.2.

Acquired businesses

The Group has over the years acquined a number of businesses. IFRS 3
'Business Combinations' requires the acquired asssts 1o be recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition dats. The valuation of these acquired assets irvolves
the use of estimates and assumptions, in particular with respect to the valuation
of acquired intangibles for which there are significant unobservable inputs.

Disposed businesses

The Group has over the years dispesed of a number of businesses. The sale
agreements contained vanous warranties and indemnities. In some cases,

the agreements also include the potantial for adjustment 1o the purchase price,
sometimes contingent on future events. At the tima of disposal, the accounts
reflect the best estimate of the likely future impact of these agreements.

These estimates are then regutary reviewed and provisions are recognised
where necessary.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settied transactions with empicyees

by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they
are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions reGuires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grard. This estimate also requires determination
of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the shara option, volatility and dividend yield and related assumptions.
Thase assumptions and the models used for estimating far value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed In Section 4.7.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect 10 the intorpretation of compilex tax regulations,
changes in tax laws, and the amourit and timing of future taxable incoma. Given
the wide range of intemational business relationships and the long-term nature
and complaxdty of exsting conractual agreements, differences arising between the
actual esults and the assumptions made, or fubure changes o such assumptions,
could necessitate future adjustments to the tex income and expense already
moorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonabile estimates, for
possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries
In which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsibie tax authority. Such differences
of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevaling in the respective domicla of the Group compenias.

Deferred tax assats are recognisad for unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probabie that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant managemert judgement is required 10 determine the amount
of defarmed tax assats that can be recognised, basad upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits.

Trading provisions

The Growup sells & wide rangs of highly technical products and whilst its products
are designed end engineered 1o a high degree of precision and to customer
specifications, there will always be a risk of products requiring modification, which
can lead to warranty claims as well 8s excess or obsolete inventory, collection risk
regarcing receivables and other trading provigions. Provisions am held against
these risks, which are estimated based on past experience of claims and by
measuring tha ikely use of irventory in the future against past usage. The degree
of dependence on future events makes these estimates inherently subjective.

Employes benefits

The present value of the Group's defined benefit pension plans and other post-
employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations., An actuarial
valuation involves maling various assumptions that may differ from actual

developrments in the future, These inctude the detarmination of the discount rate,
inflation, futwe salary increases, mortality rates and future pansion increases.,
Thesa assumptions, accompanied by sensitivity analysis thereon, are included

in Section 4.5. Due to tha complexity of the valuation and its long-tem nature,

a defined benafit obligation is highly senstive 1o changes in these assumptions.

In parbcular, atthough only consttuting a minor proportion of the assets,

the valuation of the UK Funds' interests in the Scottish Limited Partnership

is a highly subjective area because their valuation depends on an actuarial
assessment of the amount a third party might be willing to pay for the asset,
taking into account the risk that the associated income stream could eithar
ceasa in the event that the two UK Pension Funds both bacame fully funded or
become deferred in any year in which no dividend was paid to the shareholders.

Consolidation of the Scottish Limited Partnership (*SLP") and inclusion
of the UK Pension Funds' interests in this special purpose entity as a
non-controlling interest

In Jung 2010, the Group made a speclal contribution to the IMI Pension Fund of
£48.6m which the Trustee agreed to invest in the IMI Scottish Linited Partnership
{'SLP"), an enlity controlied by the Group, which conferred upon the Fund
conditional rights to receive income of £4.4m a year for twenty years, or untl the
Fund becomes fully funded. One of the judgemants involved in this issue was
whether this entity qualified as a Special Purpose Entity and whether the entity
should be consobdated. it was determined that the entity meets the definition of a
Special Purpose Entity under IFRS 10 and furtharmone, upon consderation of the
criteria in this interpretation,  was determined that consclidation was appropnate.
The Partnership Agreement includes a clause under which the payments in

tha year are deferred in the event that the Group has not paid & dividend in the
preceding year and therefore, because the Group has the abilty to defer thase
payments indefinitely and is mn conirol of the circumstances under which the
amrangament can ba teminated, the payments arnvisaged by the agreemeant are
discretionary and thersfore do not constitute a lability under AS 32. As such

the Pension Funds' interests in this SLP have been recorded as non-controlling
interests, as a component of equity. During the prior year the IMI Pension Fund
commenced winding up procedures and the relavart liabililies were transfemed
to ona of two new funds, IMI 2014 Deferred Fund and IMI 2014 Pensioner Fund
(logether "The Funds'). The intarast in the SLP 1s now hald jointly by the Funds.

Development costs

Davelopment costs ame capitalised in accordance with the criteria set out in IAS
38: Intangible Assets. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management's
judgement regarding the tachnological and commercial feasibiity of the asset,
and only when a product development project has reached a point where
such determinations can be made. In testing these assets for impairment,
managemant makes assurnptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the project, discount rates 10 be applied and the expected
period of benefits. Further detail is provided in Section 3.2.

C. Revenue Recognition

Reverwe is recognisad to the extart that it s probable that the economic
benefits will fiow to the Group and that the revenue can be reliably measured.
The nature of the equipment, valve and other contracts into which the Group
enters means that:

» tha contracts usually contain discrete elements, each of which transfers risks
and rewards 1o the customer. Where such discrete elements are present,
navenue is recognised on sach slement in acoondance with the palicy on
the sale of goods.

= the service elament of the contract is usualy insignificant in relation 10 the
total contrect value and is often provided on a short-term or one-off basis.
Where this is the case, revenus is recognised when the service is complete.

As a result of the above, the significant majority of the Group's revenue is
recognised on a sale of goods basis.
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The specific methods used 1o recognise the different forms of revenue
earned by the Group are sat out below:

i. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the income statement net
of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferned to the buyer and reliable
measurement is possible. No revenue is recogrsad where mcovery of the
consideration is not probabile or there are significant unceriainties ragarding
associated costs, or the possible return of goods.

Transfers of risis and rewards vary depending on the nature of the products sold
and the individual terms of the contract of sale. Sales made under infarmnationalty
accapted trade terms, Incoterms 2010, are recognised as revenue when the
Group has completed the primary duties required o transfer risks as defined by
the International Chamber of Commerce Official Rules for the Interpretation of
Trade Terms. Sales mada outside Incotermis 2010 ane generally recognised on
delivery to the customer. in limited instances, a customer may request that the
Group retains physical possession of an asset for a pariod after the significant
risk and rewards of ownership have fransferred 10 the customer. In these
circumsiances, the Group provides this storage as a service to the customer
and themfora revenue is nacognised prior to delivery of the asset.

ii. Rendering of services

As noted above, because revenue from tha rendering of services is usually
insignificant in relation to the fotal contract value and is generally provided
on a short-term or one-off basis, revenug is usually recognised when the
setvice is complete.

Whers this is not the case, revenue from sarvices rendered is recognised in
preportion 10 the stage of completion of the service at the balance shest date.
The stage of completion is assessed by referencs to the contractual agreement
with sach separate customer and the costs incurred on the contract 10 date

in comparison 10 the total forecast costs of the contract. Revenue recognition
commences only when the outcome of the contract can be raliably measured.
Ingtallation fees are similarly racognised by reference to the stage of completion
on the instaflation uniess they are incidental 1o the sale of the goods, in which
casa they am recognisad when the goods are sold.

When a transaction combines a supply of poods with the provision of a
significant servics, revenue from the provision of the service is recognised
separatety from the revencue from the sale of goods by reference to the stage
of complation of the service unless the service is essential to the functionality
of the goods supplied, in which casa the whole transaction is treated as a
congtruction contract. Revenue from a senvice that is incidental 1o the supply of
goods is recognised at the same time as the revenus from the supply of goods.

iii. Construction contracts

As noted above, customer contracts usually contain discrete elaments
separately transferring risks and rewards 16 the customer. However, where
such discrete elements are not in place, revenus from significant contracts is
recognised in proportion to the stage of complation of the contract by reference
1o the specific contract terms and the costs incurred on the contract to date in
comparison 10 the total forecast costs of tha contract.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive paymenis are included in
revenue from construction contracts when certain criteria are met, Variations
are included when the customer has agreed to the variation or acknowledgad
liability for the variation In principie. Claims ans included when negotiations
with the customer have reached an advanced stage such that the customer is
certain to accept the claim, Incentive payments are inCluded when a contract
is sufficiently advanced that it is probable that the perforrance standards
triggering the incentive will be achieved.

Profit attributable to contract activity is recognised if the final outcome of such
contracts can ba relisbly assessed. On all contracts, full provision is made for
any kssas in the year in which they ere first foreseen.

D. Exceptionat items

Exceptional lems ane disclosed separately on the face of the incoma statement and
eocciuded in aniving at reported rasuits, where the quantum, the one-off nature or
volatiity of these itlems would ctherwise distort the underkying trackng performance.

The folowing items of income and expenss are considered to be exceptional

in thesa financial statements:
* Gains and losses (inchuding far value adustments) on derivative financial
instruments;
» Restructuring costs, which comprise significant costs associated with the
closure of activities or factories and the cost of significant reductions in
workdorce due to excess capacity or the reorganisation of facilities. Non-
significant mstructuring costs are not disclosed as exceptional items;
» Special pansion events, which comprises settiement gains or losses relating
to the Group's defined benefit schemes;
*» impairment ksses recorded against goodwill, intangible asssts and other
oparating assets;
» The amortisation of acquired intangible fixed assets;
» Gains or losses on disposals of subsidiaries;
+ Costs associeted with acquisitions and disposals, which principally represent:
- Costs payable to the legal and financial advisors assisting with the
origination and compiation of the transactions; and

- Contingant consideration paymaents, which because they might be forfeited
in some of the instances in which the vendors’ post-acquisition employment
contracts may be terminated, ane required by IFRS 3 (evised) 10 be treated
as namunaration.

The tax impacl of the above items is also shown within exceptional ftems.

E. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the apgregats of the consideration
transierrad, measwred at acquisition dale fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling inerast in the acquiree. The cholce of measurement of non-
controling interest, elther et fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquirea’s identifiable net assets is determined on a transaction by transaction
basis. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed and included in
administrative expenses unless their quantum, nature or volatifty meets

the definition of an exceptional itemn as set out in accounting policy D.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
Kabifties assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the ecquisition date, This includes the separation of embedded derivatives
in contracts held by the acquinse.

Any contingent considaration to be transferred by the acguimer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsaquent changes to the
feir value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be a kablity wil
be recognised in accordance with LAS 39 eifther in profit or loss or In other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity,
it is not remeasured until it is finally settied within equity.

Gooawill is initially measurad at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of the consideration traneferred and the armount
recognised for the non-controfiing interest {and where the business cormbination
Is achisved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree) over the net identifiable amounts of the
assats acquired and the liabities assumed for the business combination.
Assets acquired and labilities assumed in transactions separate 10 the
business combinations, such as the settiement of pre-existing retationships

or post-acquisition remuneration arrangements are accounted for separately
from the buginess cornbination in accordance with their nature and epplicable
IFRSs. Identifiable intangible assets are recognized separately rom goodwill.
Contingent Eabilities representing a present obligation are recognised i the
acquisition-date fair value can be reliably measured.
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if the apgregate of the acquisition-date fair vale of tha consideration transferrad
and tha amount recognisad for the non-controling Iterest (and whare the business
combination is achieved in stages, the acquisttion-ctate fair vaive of the acauirer’s
previously heid equity interest in the acquiree) is lower than the fair value of the
assets, labiities and contingant liabilities and the fair vahse of any pre-existing
interest held In the business acquired, the diffenence is recognised in profit and loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impaimnent fosses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in & business combination is, from the acquisition date, akocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash generating units) that are
expected to benefit from the combination, Irespective of whether other assets
or liabifities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Each unit or group of
units to which goodwil is allocated shall represent the lowest tevel within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and shafl not be larger than an opereting segment before eggregation.

Where goodwill forma part of a cash-generating unit and pan of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
dispogad of i mcluded in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed
of in this circumstance is measurad basad on the refative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

F. Financial income and expense

Finangial income comprises interest receivable on funds invested, income

from investments and gains on hedging instrumants that are recognised in the
income statement. Interest income is recognised in the income statemant as it
accrues, teking into account the effective vield on the asset, Dividend income

is recognised in the income statement on the date that the dividend is declared.

Financial expense comprises interest payable on borrowings cakculated using
the sffectve interast rate method, the interest related element of derivatives
and losses on financial instruments that are recognised in the income statement.
The interest expense compoenent of finance lease payments is recognised In
the income statement using the effective intarest rate method

Net finance expense relating to defined benefit pension schemes represents the
assumed interest on the difference hetween employee benefit plan liabilities and
the employes benefit plan assets.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily 1akes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its imended use or sale are capralised as part of the cost of the
respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borowing of funds.

G. Income tax

Current tax payable/recelvable represents the expected tax payable/receivable
on the texable income for the year, using tax ratgs enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date and taking into account any adiustments

in respect of prior years.

Defervad tax ks provided, using the balance sheet mathod, on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labliies for financial
maporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferved tax is
not recognised for the folkowing temporary differences: the nitisé recognition of
goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or ligbilities in a transaction that is not
abusiness combination and that affects nefther accounting nor taxable profit,
and differances relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the
timing of the reversal of the differances can ba controlied and it is probable
that the differences will not reversa in the foreseeable fidure. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply when the temporary
differences reverse, based on the tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised 10 the extant that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the tempaorary difference can be utiiised.

H. Non-current aasets held for sale and discontinued operetions

Where appiicable, on initial clagsification as 'held for sale’, non-cument disposal
groups ane recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. impaiment losses on the initial classification of assets as held for sale
are included & profit or loss, even for assets measured at fair value, as are
impairment losses on subsequent remsasurement and any reversal theseof.
Once classifed as held for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortisad.

A discontinued operation is & componerd of the Group's business that represents
a saparate major line of business that has been disposed of, 1 held for sale or
is a subsidiary acquired exciusively with a view 10 re-sale,

I. Foreign currencies

|. Foreign currency transactions

Monetary asssts and liabiities denorminated in foreign currencies have bean
translated into steding &t the rates of exchange ruling at the balance shest
date. Foreign exchangs differences arising on transiating transactions at

the exchange rate nuling on the transaction date are reflected in the income
staternent. Non-monetary assets and liabilties that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign curmancy are Translated using the exchange rate at the date
of tha transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabiities denominated in foregn
cumancies that are stated at fair value are fransiated into stering at foraign
axchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

ii. Foreign operations

Tha income statements of overseas subsidiary underiakings are transiated at
the appropriate averegs rate of exchanga for the year and the adjustment to
ysar end rates is taken directly o reserves.

The assets and kabilities of forsign operations, inciuding goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are transtated &t foreign exchange rates
ruling at the batance sheet date.

Foreign exchange differences arising on retransiation are recognised directly
as a separate compoenent of equity. Since 1 January 2004, the Group's date
of fransition to IFRSs, such difflerences have been fecogrised in the transiation
raserve. When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant
amount in the translation reserve is transterred 1o profit of loss.

J. Financisl instruments and fair value hedging

Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair vaiue pius directly attributabie

transaction costs uniess the instrument is a derivative not designated as a

hadge (see below). Subssquent measurernent depens on the designation

of the instrument, which follows the categories in lAS 39;

* Fixed deposits, principally comprising funds hekd with barks and other
financial institutions are classified as ‘avaltable for sale assets’ under 1AS 39,
and held at falr value, Short term borrowings and overdralts are classified
as financial iabiities at amortised cost.

» Derivatives, comprising interest rate swaps, foreign exchange contracts and
as ‘fair value through profit or loss’ under IAS 30, unless designated as hadges.
Derivatives not designated as hedges are initially recognised at falr value;
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, changes in fair value of such derivatives
and gains or losses on their settlement are recognised in net financial income
or expenss.

* Long-term loans and other inlerest bearing borrowings are ganerally held at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Whare the long-term
loan is hedged, genarally by an interast rate swap, and the hedge is reganded
as effective, the carrying value of the iong-term loan is adjusted for changes
in fair value of the hedge.

« Tradia receivables are stated at cost as reduced by appropriate impairmant
sllowances for estimated imacoverable amounts.

» Trads payablas are stated at cost,
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Section 5 - other notes
(cont’d)

* Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet only when
the Group becomas & party to the contractual provisions of the instrumaent.

+ Available jor sale financial assels are carried at fair value with gains and losses
being recognised In equity, excent for impaimment losses which are recognised
in the incomeé statement,

K. Other hedging

i. Hedge of monetary assets and Babilities, financial commitments or
forecast transactions
Where a derivative financial instrument is used as an economic hedge of the
foreign exchange or metals commodity price exposure of a recognised monetary
asset or kability, financial commitment or forecast transaction, but does not meet
the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 38 no hedge accounting is
apphied and any gain or loss resulting from changas In fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognised in net financial income or expense.

Where such a derivative is a formally designated hedge of a forecast transaction
for accounting purposes, movements in the value of the derivative are recognised
directly in other comprehensive incorme to the extant the hedge is effective. The
Company assesses the effactiveness of the hedge basad on the expected fair
value of the amount to be received and the movement in the fair value of the
derivative designated as the hedge.

For segmental reporting purposes, changes in the fair value of economic hetiges
that are not designated hadges, which relate to current year trading, topether with
the gains and losses on thelr sattiement, are allocated o the segmental revenues
and operating profit of the relevant busingss segment.

li. Hedge of net investmeant in foreign operation

Where a foreign currency lablity or derivative financial instrument is a formally
designated hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, foreign axchange
differences arising on transiation of the foneign currency kability or changes in
the fair value of the financial instrument are recognisad directly in equlty via
other comprehensive Income to the extent the hedge is effective. The Group
assessas the effectiveness of its net kwestment hedges based on fair value
changes of its net assats, including relevant goodwill desipnated as foreign
curency assets, and the fair value changes of both the debt designated as

a hedge and the relevant financial instrument.

L. intangible assets

intangible assets are further sub-divided in the notes to these accounts between
acquired intangible assets and non-acquired intangible assets. Amortisation
of acquired intangible assets is treated as an exceptional item as described in
accounting policy D of thase accounting policies, because of its inherent volatility.
The accounting palicy for goodwil is described in accounting policy E.

i. Ragsearch und development

Expenciiture on resaarch activitiss, undertaken with the prospact of gaining
new scientific or technical knowledge and undarstanding, is recognised in
the income statement as an expense as incured.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are appiied to
a plan or dasign for the production of new or substantiaity improved products
and processes, is capitalised provided benefits are probable, cost can be
relably measured and if, and only i, the product or process is technically and
commercialy feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and intenticn
to complete deveiopment. The expenditure capitaksed includes the cost of
materials, dinact labour and directly atiributable overheads. Other development
axpenditure is recognised in the income staternent as an expense as incumed.
Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (see balow) and impairment losses (see accounting policy
‘mpairment’) and is included in the other acquinad or other non-acquired
category of intangibie assets depending on its origin,

ii. Software development costs

Softwars applications and systerns that are not an integrad part of their host
computer equipment are capitaiised on initial recognition as intangible assets
at cost, Cost cornprises the purchass price plus directly attributable costs
incumed on development of the asset to bring it into use. Following indtial
recognition, softwana developrment costs are camied &t cost less any accumulatied
amortisation {see below) and accumutated impaimnent lossas (see accounting
policy ‘impairment') and are included in the other acquined or other non-
acquired category of intangible assets depending on their onigin.

#il. Customer refationships and other acquired intangible asseis

Customer relationships and other intangibla assets that are acquired by the
Group as part of a business combination are stated at thesr fair value calcidated
by refarence to tha net present value of future benefits accnuing to the Group
from utilisation of the assst, discounted at an appropriate discount rate.
Expenditura on other internally genereted intangible assats is recognisad

in the income statement as an axpense as incurred.

iv. Amortisation of intangible assets other than goodwill
Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
{other than for customer relationships and onder book, which are changed on
a sum of digits basis) over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets.
for use, The estimated useful [ves for:
» Capitalised development costs are the life of the intangible asset

{usually a maximum of 10 years)
« Software development cosis are the life of the intangible asset {up to 10 years)
« Customer relationships are the Kfe of the intangible asset (up 1o 10 years)
» Other intangible assets (including order books, brands and software)

& the life of the intangible asssat {up to 10 years)

M. Property, plant and eguipmont
Freshokt land and assets in the course of conslruction are not depreciated.

ltemns of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost lass accumulated
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy
‘impaimment').

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major compaonents
having different useful kves, they are accounted for as seperate items of
property, piant and equipment. Costs in respect of 1ooling owned by the Group
for clearly identifiable new products are capitalised net of any contribution
received from customers and are includad in plant and equipment.

Depraciation Is charged to the incoma statement on a straight-ine basis
{unless such a basis is not aligned with the anticipated benefit) so as to write
down the cost of assets to residuat valuss over the pariod of their estimated
useful lives within the following ranges:

* Freehold buikiings - 25 1o 50 vears
* Pianl and equipment - 3 to 20 years

N. Leased assets

Leases where the Group assumas substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classifiad as finance leases.

Plant and equipment acquired by way of finance lease is stated at an amount

equal to the lower of its fair value and the prasent value of the minimum lease

payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation (see above)
and impairmant losses (see accounting palicy *lmpairment’).

Payments made undar operating leases are recognisad in the income statement
on a straight-fine basis over the term of the leasa.

Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement over the
period of the leass unless a different zystematic method is more appropriate
under the terms of the Jease. The majority of leasing transactions entered into
by the Group are operating leasss.
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O. Inventorias

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Due to
the varying nature of the Group’s operations, both first in, fest out (FIFO')
and welghted avarage methodalogies anre employed. In respact of work in
progress and finishad goods, cost includes all direct costs of production

and the appropriate proportion of production overheags.

P. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.
Bank overdrafis that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the staternent of cash flows.

Q. impairment

The camying values of tha Group's non-financial assets other than inventories
(ses accounting policy ‘Inventories’) and deferred tax assets (see accounting
policy ‘Income tax’), ane reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment.

if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or all assets
within its cash generating unit is estimated. An impainment loss is necognised
whenever the camying amount of an asset or its cash generating urit exceads its
recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised in the income statement,

For goodwill and assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverabie
amount s evaluated at each balance sheet date.

I Caiculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Group's recelvables other than financial assets
held at fair value is calculated as the present valus of sxpected future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate inherent in the asset,
Receivables with a short duration of tess than one year are nat discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their far value

less costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing value in use an individual
assessment is made of the estimated future cash flows generated for each
cash generating unit (based upon the latest Group forecast and extrapolated
using an appropriate long-term growth rate foar each cash generating unit in
pemetuity consistent with an estimate of the relevant geographic long-term
GDP growth). These are discounted to thair present valug using a pre-1ax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Management befieve that this
approach, including the use of the indelinite cash flow projection, Is appropriate
based upon both historical experignce and because it is one of the bases
management utiise to evaluate the fair value of investment opportunities.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,

the recoverable amount 1s determined for the smallest cash generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

li. Reversats of impairment

As required by IAS 36 'mpairment of Assets’, any impairment of goodwil or
available for sale financial assets is non-revarsible. In respect of other assets,
an impaiment loss is reversed i at the balance sheet data there are indications
that the loss has decreasad or no longer exists following a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets camying amount
does not exceed the canying amount that would have been datermined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had bean recognised.

R. Dividends

Final dividends payatie are recognised as & kability at the date at which they are
spproved by the Company's shareholders or by the subsidiary's shareholders in
respect of dividends to non-controlling interests. Interim dividends payable are
recognised on the date they are declared.

S. Employee benefits
t. Defined contribution pension plans

Contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense in the income statement as incured.

ii. Defined benefit pension plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined beneflit pension plans is
calculated separately ior each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earnad in return for their service n the current and pror pariods;
that benefit is discounted o determine ils present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. Past senvice costs are recognised in profit or kss on
the earfier of the date of the plan amendment or curtaiment, and the date that
the Group recognises restructuring-related costs. The discount rate is the yeld
at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds of the appropnate
currency that have durations approximating those of the Group's cbligations.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit

credit mathod. When the calculation results in a net asset to the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the net 1otal of any unrecognised past serice
costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions

in future contributions 1o the ptan and restricted by any relevant asset ceilng.
Any deduction mads by the tax authorities in the event of a refund of 8 suiplus
would be regarded by the Group as an incoms tax,

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the expense is recognised immediately
in tha income statement. Re-measurement gains and !osses are recognised
immediately in equity and disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income

iil. Long-term service and other post-employment benefits

‘The Giroup's net obligation in respect of long-term servica and other post-
employment benefits, other than pension plans, is the amount of iture benefit
that emplovees have earned in return for their service in the curment and prior
periods. The obligation is caiculated using the prajected unit credit method
and is discountad 10 its prasent valus and the fair value of any related assets
is deducted. The discount rate is the yiekd at the balence sheet date on high
quatity bonds of the appropriate curmency that have durations approximating
those of the Group's ohiigations.

iv. Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Group operates a number of equity and equity-related compensation benefits
as set out in Section 4.7, The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense each year.
The tatal amount to he expensed over the vasting period is determined by
reterence 1o the fair value of the options grantad, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitablity and sales growth targets).
Non-market veeting conditions are included in assumplions about the number of
options that are axpected 1o bacome exercisable. The falr value of the options is
determined based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

At aach balance sheet date, the Group revisas its estimales of the number of
options that ame expectad 10 vest. It racognisas the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statemant,

For newly issued shares, the proceeds received net of any dinectly attributable
transaction costs ane cradited to share capital {(nomingl value) and share premium
T. Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when: the Group has a presant legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resowrces
will be required to sattie the obligation; and the amount can be reliably

estimeted. Provisions are valued at management's besl estimate of the
amount required to settia the present chiigation at the balance sheet date.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved
a detalled and formal restruchuring plan, and the restructuring has eithar
commenced or has been announced publicly.




132 IMI plc

Directors’ Report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The Strategic Report is on pages 4 to 43, sections of which are incorporated into the Directors’ Report as set out below.

Results and dividend

The Group consoliciated incoma statement is shown on page 76. Segmantal
operating profit amounted to £227.7m (2015; £239m) and statutory profit before
taxation and discortinued operations amounted to £165.3m (2015: £162.7m).

The dinectors recommend g final dividend of 24.7p per share {2015: 24.5p per share)
on the ordinary share capital payable, subject 10 sharsholder approval at the Ay

Gaeneral Mesting to be heid on 4 May 2017, an 19 May 2017 to sharaholders on the
register &t the close of business on 7 Apri 2017. Together with the interim dividand
of 14p per shara paid on 16 September 2016, this final dividend wil bring the total
distribution for the year to 38.7p per share {2015: 38.4p per share).

Aesearch and devslopment
See Section 2.1.3.3 to the financial statements on page 8S.

Sharsholders’ funds
Shareholders' funds decreased from £546m at the end of 2015 fo £543.2m
at 31 December 2016.

Share capital

As at 31 December 20186, the Company's share capiial comprised a single class
of share capital which was divided int¢ ondinary shares of 28 4/7p each. Details
of the share capital of the Company are set out in Section 4.6 to the financial
statements on page 120. The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange.

The Company has a Level 1 American Depositary Receipt (‘ADR’) programme
for which Citibank, N_A. acts as dapositary. See page 155 for further datalis.

As gt 31 December 2016, 900.304 shares were held in an employee trust for use
In relation 10 certain exacutive incentive pians representing 0.3% of the ssued
share capital (exciuding treasury shares) at that time. The independant trustes
of the trust has the same rights as any other sharghoider. Participants in option
schemes do not hold any voting rights on the shamnes until the date of exercise.

During 2016, 39,475 new ondinary shares wene issued under empioyes sharg
schames: 39,475 uncler save as you eam plans and nil under exscutive share
plans. Shares acquired through Company share schemas and plans rank
ocqualy with the sharas in issue and have no special rights.

Tha rights and cbiigations attaching 10 the Company's ordinary shares are set
out in the Company's articles of association, copies of which can be obtained
from Companies Houss in the UK, from the Company's website or by writing
to the Company Secretary. Changes 10 the articles of assocation must be
approved by a spacial resolution of the shaneholders (75% majority required)
in accordanca with the legisiation in force at the time. Subject to applicable
statutes, shares may ba issued with such rights and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolfution decide or {if there is no such resolution
or so far as it doas not make specific provision) as the Board may decide.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitied 10 receive the Company’s report and
accounts, to attend, speak and vote at ganaral meetings of the Company,

and 1o appoinl proxies 10 axercise their rights. Holders of ordinary shares may
naceive a dividend and an a liquidaton, may share in the assets of the Company.

Subject to meeting certain thresholds, holders of omlinary shares may requisition
a general meeting of the Company or proposa resolutions at Annual General
Meetings. Voting rights for ordinary shares held in treasury are suspended and
the treasury shares carry no rights to receive dividends or other distributions
of assets.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the Company
other than:

» cartain restrictions as may from time to time be imposed by taws and
reguiations {for exarmple insider trading laws); and

* pursuant to the Company's share dealing code whereby the direclors
and certain amployees of the Company require approval to deal in the
Comparwy's shares.

The Company is not aware of any amangements betwean chareholders that
may result in nestrictions on the transfer of ondinary shares or on voting rights.
None of the ordinary shares camy any special fighis with regard to control of
the Company. The only restrictions on voting rights are those that apply to the
ordinary shares haid in treasury. Electronic and paper proxy appointments and
voting instructions must be received by the Company's registrars not later than
48 hours (axcluding any non-working days) bafore a genaral meeting, or (subject
to the Company's articles of association) any ediournment thereof,

Own shares acquired by the Company

The Company was granted authority at the Annual General Meeting held on
5 May 2016 to purchase up to 40,790,321 of its ordinary shares of 28 4/7p
aach. This autharity will expire at the conclusion of the naxt Annual General

Mseting 10 be held on 4 May 2017, whane shareholders will be asked 10 give
a similar authority, detalls of which are given in the separate Notice of Annuel
General Meeting. In 2018, the Compary did not make market purchases of
its own ordinary shares.

As gt 31 Decermber 2016, 14,248,836 ordinary shares {nominal value
£4.071,006) were hald in treasury represanting 5.2% of the issuad share capital
{eveciuding treasury shares) at that time. The maximum number of shares held in
traasury during the year ended 31 December 2016 was 14,248,836.

Substantial shareholdings

Information provided to the Company pursuant 10 the Disclosure Guidance arxi
Trangparency Rules is published on a reguiatory information service and on the
Company's website. As at 31 December 2016, the following voting interests
in the ordinary share capital of the Company, disclosable under the Disclosun
Guidance and Transparency Rules, had besn notified to the Company:

% Heid"
MFS Investmant Management 10.17%
Ameripriss Financial inc 593%
Blackrock inc 5.01%
Legal & Ganeral Group plc 3.03%

1 As of the date in the notification to the Compary.

Subsequent 1o 31 December 2016 and up 10 the date of this Report, no changes
in the voting interests have been natified 1o the Company in accordance with tha
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules.

As far as the Company is aware, there are no persons with substantial holdings
in the Company other than thase noted above.

Statement on corporats governance
The recuired disclosuras are cortained in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 10 54 and are incomorated into this Directors’ Report by referencs.
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Empiloyment engagement and diversity

Every effort is made to ensure that applications for empioyment from disabled
ampioyees are fully and fairly considerad and that disabled empioyees have
equal opportunity in training, succession planning and promotion. Further
disclosuras relating 1o employee diversity, employee engagement and policies
ane set out on pages 23 to 33.

Details of employee share schemes are set out in the Remuneration Report on
pages 5910 71 and in Section 4.7 of the inancial statements on pages 122 1o 125,

Health, safety and the environment

It is Group policy to continuously improva healthy and safe working conditions
and 1o always operaie in an environmentally responsible manner.

Qur carbon reporting statistics show that our recent performance in gross
tonnes of CO2e has continued to improve: 2014 - 82,500, 2015 - 61,250,

2016 - 80,000. As such, we achieved our target to keap emissions at or below
2015 levels for 2016, Of the 2016 total, cur direct (Scope 1) emissions of CO2e,
essentially gas, diesel and fuel ol consumed, amounted to 17,500 tonnes. Our
indirect (Scope 2) emissions of CO2e, assentiaily the emissions generatad on our
behalf 1o provide our alactricity, amounted to 42,500 tornes.

In addition 10 gross tonnes of CO2e, we report CO2e intensity reletive to
Emillion sales; Our rasult for 2016 is 38.3 which is an improvement rolative to
2015's reportad figure of 39.5 but a sfight deterioration when 2015 Is restated
on a constant currancy basls (35.2). Using 2015 as our new baseline, we plan
1o continuously imprave our emissions performance going forward, including
building on the results from the European Energy Directive audits undartalen
in 2015 and cascading these lessons throughout cur non-European faciiities.

Qur CO2e accounting methodology tollows DEFRA guidelnes and includes
all matenia! emissions across [Ml, See page 38 for further CO2e and energy
efficiency detalls.

Political donations
No poitical donations were made during the year,

Directors

The membership of the Board and biographical datails of the directors are
given on pages 46 and 47 and are incorporated into this report by reference.

The rutes for the appointment and replacemeant of directors are set out in the
Cornpany's articles of association. The Company's articles of association require
each director to stand for re-election at each Annual Ganeral Maeting.

Qualitying indemnity provisions and lability insurance

The Company maintains directors' and officers’ kabiity insurance and all
directors of the Company benefit from qualitying third party indemnity provisions
which were in place during the financial year. At the date of this Annual Report
thers ane such indemnity arangements with each director In respect of the
costs of defending civi, criminal and reguiatory proceedings brought against
them, as a diracior or employee, subject always to the imitations set by the
Companies Act 2006.

The Group operates pension schames in the UK which provide retirement and
death beneftts for employees and formaer employees of the Group. The corporate
trustee of the pension schemas is IMI Pensions Trust Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. Qualifying pension scherme indemnity provisions, as defined in
Section 235 of the Companles Act 2006, wera in force for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 and remain in force for the benefit of each of the
directors of the corporate trustes of the pension schemes. These indemnity
provisions cover, to the axtent permitted by law, cartain losses or labilitios
incumed as a director or officer of the corporate trustee of the pension schames,

The Group also has in place third party qualifying indemnity provisions, as
defined in Saction 234 of the Companies Act 2006, in favour of cerlain
employees who discharge responsibiities for various wholly-owned subsidiary
companies and these ingdemnities are given on a similar basis to the above.

Role of the Board

The role of the Board is:

« 10 promote the success of the Company;

« be guardians of stakeholders® intengsts;

+ to set/monitor leadership behaviour and cuture;

+ {o select and appoint the Exacutive Committas;

= 10 provide supportive challenge to the Executive Committas;
@ {0 approve business plans and strategy;

* lo oversea governance, risk and the control environment; and
« to monitor and oversee the businesses and management,

The Board providas leadership, direction and governance for the Company and
oversees businass and management performance. Tha Beard has adopied a
corporate govemance framewark which defines Board roles and includes ths list
of matiers reserved to it and written delegations of authority for its committees
and the Executive Committes. Board reserved matiers include strategy and
key areas of policy, major operationa! and strategic risks, significant investment
decisions and material changes in the organisation of the Group.

In the IMt Corporate Governante Framework, the Baard has cleary defined

in writing those matters which are resarved to it and the respective delegated
authorities of its committees and 1t has also set written imits of authority for

the Chief Exacutive. The Group has a clear organisational structure and well-
astablishad reporiing and contro! discipliines. Managers of cperating units
assume responsibility for and exercisa a high depree of autonamy in nunining day-
to-day trading activilies. They do this within a framework of clear rules, policies
and delegated authorities regarding business conduct, approval of proposals for
investrment and matenal changes in operations and are subject to regular senior
management revews of performance.

Division of responsibilities amongst directors

Chairman:

» building e well-balanced Board

* chairing mestings, setting the agenda and ensuring the best uss of time

» ensuring effectivensss of the Board including the quality of debate
and decisions

* promoting the right environment and relations for effective engagement
and challenge around the boardroom table

» setting the tona and high standards of governance practics

* gatting the right executive leadership and succession plans in place

There is & clear division of responsibility between the Chaiman and Chief
Executive, which is reflected in the M| Corparate Governance Framework
approved by the Board. In summary, the Chairman is nesponsible for the
leadership and eflectiveness of the Board but does not have any executive
powers or responsibiities. The Chief Executive leads the Executive Committee
in running the businesses and implementing operational and strategic plans
under authority delegated by the Board.

The Chairman s responsibie for ensuring that the Board meetings operete to
an appropriate agenda, and that adequate information is provided sufficiently
in advance of meetings o allow proper consideration. He is supported by the
Company Secretary, who glso assists in ensuring that the Board operates in
accordance with good corporate governanca under the Code and relevant
reguiatory requirements. The Company Secretary acts as secretary 10 all of
the standing commitiees of the Board. The Board has & recognised procedune
far any dinector 10 obtain independent professional advice at the Company's
sxpense and all directors have access to the Company Secretary who is

a solicitor,
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Chief Executive:
» [gadership of the Executive Commitlee
» formudating strategy. business plans and budgsis

* ansuring the highest compliance and sternal control standards are maintained

» developing organisation structure
* resourcing, talent development arxd succession plans

Directors’ powers

The powers of the directors are determined by UK legisiation and the articles
of association of the Company in force from time 1o time. The direciors wemn
authorised to allot and issua ordinary sharas and to make market purchases
of the Company's ordinary shares by resolutions of the Company passed

at s Annual General Meeting held on 5 May 2016. The curment authorities
will expire at the conclusion of the next Anmual Genaral Meeting to be heid
on 4 May 2017, at which new authorities will be sought.

Further details of authorites the Company is seeking for the allotment,
issue and purchase of its ordinary shares are set out in the separate
Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ interests

The interests of the persons {including the interests of any connected persons)
who were directors at the end of the year, in the share capital of the Compary,
and their interests under share option and incantive schemes, ang shown on
page 70.

Management of conflicta of interest

The Company's articles of association include cartaln provigions relevant
to the activity of the Board and its commitiees. Thase provisions include
recirernents for disclosure and approval by the Board of potential conflicts
of interest, These procedures apply, inter afia, to external directorshins and
it is the Board's view that they operated effectively during 2016.

Each director has a duty uncier the Companies Act 2006 1o avoid a situation in
which they have or may have a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or possibly
may confict with the interasts of the Company. This ckaty is in addition 10 the
duty that they owe to the Company 10 disciose to the Board any interest in any
trangaction or arrangement under consideration by the Company. if any director
bacomes aware of any situation which may give rise to a conflict of interest, that
director informs the rest of the Board and the Board is then permitted under the
articles of association 1o decide 10 authorise such corflict. The information is
recorded in the Company's register of conflicts and a conflicts authorisation
lotter is issued 1o the relevant director.

Change of control

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to a number of agraermants that
may allow the counterparties 16 alter or terminate the arrangements on a
change of control of the Company folowing a takeover bid, such as commercial
contracts and employoe share pians, Other than as referred to in the next
paragraph, none of thesa is considered by the Company to be significart in
terms of its likely Impact on the Group &3 a whole.

in the event of a change of control of tha Company, the Group's main funding
agreameants allow the lenders 1o renegotiate terrns or give notice of repayment
for all cutstanding amounts under the relevant facilities.

The Company does not have agreements with any diector or employes thet
would provide compensation for loss of office or empioyment specifically
resutting from a takeover, aithowugh the provisions of the Company's share
schemes include a discretion 1o allow ewards granted to directors and
employees under such schames to vest in thosa circumstances.

Information to be disclosod under Listing Rules 9.8.4R

Listing Aule Detall Saction

9.8.4R (t-2)(5-14) Not applicable NA

8.8.4R (4) Long-term incentive schemes 4.7
Internal control

The Board has responsibiity for oversight of the Group's systern of intarnal
control and confirms that the system of intermal control takes into account the
Code and nslevant best practice guidance including the Financial Reporting
Council’s September 2014 publication, 'Guidance on Risk Management,
Intemai Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting’.

Al operating units prepare forward plans and forecasts which are reviewed In
detail by the Executiva Committes and consolidated for review by the Board.
Performance against foracast is continuously monitored at monthly meetings
of the Executive Committes and, on a quarterly basis, by the Board. Minimum
standards for accounting systems and controle, which ane documented and
monitored, ame promulgated throughout the Group. Certified annual reports
ars required from senior executives of operating units, confirming compliance
with Group financial neporting requirements The intermal audit function, Group
Assurance, operates & roling programme of internal assurance on site reviews
at setected cperating units, Additionally, visits to operations &m carried out
by senior Group finance parsonnel. Thesa intemal assurance processes are
co-ondinated with the activity of the Company's external auditor.

Capital investments are subject to a clear process for investment appraisal,
authorisation and post-investiment review, with major investmant proposals
referrad for consideration by the Executive Cornmittes and, according to thair
materiality, 10 the Board. In addition, the Executive Committee ragularly reviews
the operation of corporate policies and controls including those relating to ethics
and compliance matiers, tneasury activities, envinonmental lssues, health and
safsty, hurnan resources, laxation, insurance and pansions. Compliance and
internal audit reports are made available to the Board, the Audit Commitise
and the Executive Committee, to enable control issues and developments

0 be mondored.

Control processes ara dynamic and continuous improvements are made

to adapt thermn 10 the changing risk profile of operations and to implement
proportionate measuras to address any identified weakness in the internal
contro! system. The internal control declaration process introduced in 2014 18
now fully embedded and is enabling improvement in control through bi-annual
seif-assessments from all operating units. Action plans to improve controts
as a result of these assessments are being tracked and reported 10 the Audit
Commitiee. Mone information in relation 1o risk is given on page 40 under the
heading 'Principal Risks and Uncertginties’.

Through the procedures outined here, the Board has considersd the effactiveness
of all significant aspacts of internal control for the year 2016 and up to the date of
this Annuel Report. The Board baligves that the Group's System of intemal condrol,
which is designad to manage rather than aiminate risk, provides reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatemeant or logs.

Financial reporting processes

The use of the Group'’s accounting manual and prescribed reporting requirements
by finance teams thwoughout the Group are important in ensuring that the Group's
accourting policies are clearly established and that irformation is appropriately
reviewed and reconclied as part of the reporting process. The usa of a standard
reporting package by afl entities in the Group ensures that information is
presented in a consiatent way that facilitates the production of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Viability statement

In accomdance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code, the direclors
have assessed the viability of the Comparty over a relevant period, taking into
account the Group's financial and trading position as summarised in this Annual
Report, the principal risks and uncartainties set out on pages 40 to 43 and the
five-year business plan reviewed by the Board in September 2016. Basad on
this assessment, and cther matiers considered and reviewed by the Board,
the directors corfirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Compary
will be able 1o continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall dus over
the period from the date of this Annual Report 1o 31 December 2021.

The diectors have determined that the period to 31 December 2021 constitutes
an appropriate period over which o make its assessment of viability. Whilst the
directors heve no reason o believe the Company will not be viablo over a longer
timing horizon, the five-year period 10 31 December 2021 was chosen as ft
aligns with the Company's business and strategic planning timing horizon and
is a sensible period for such an essessment. k is believed this perod provides
readers of the Annual Report with an appropriately long-term view with which
to assess the Companys prospects although future outcomes cannot be
pradictad with certainty.

In making its assessment, the Board recognised tha principal risks facing
the Company, inchuding those that would threaten its business model, fuiure
performance, soivency or liquidity. A summary of these nsks can be found
on pages 40 o 43.

The fve-year business plan was used to assess the headroom on the
Compary's faciliies and to stress tast ongoing covenant compliance under
soenarios where its principal risks materialise. The analysis considerad both
running business' risks, such as reducing revanues and marging, as well as
one-off ‘event’ risks such as product recalls. The Board also considered the
Company's ability to raise capital in the future, as well as both the ongoing
actions underteken 10 prevent occurmence and the potential actions 1o
mitigate the impact of any particular rigk.

The directors slso recognised a number of key features of the Company's
operations. The Company's wide geagraphical and sectar diversification, and the
lack of a single major production site, help minimise the risk of senous business
iterruption. Furthermora, our business model is structured so that the Compary
is not overly reliant on a few targe custormers. Our largest customer constitutes
only 2% of Group revenue and our top 20 customears account for just over

16% of Group revenue. In addition, our ability 10 flex our cost base reduces

our exposure to sudden adverse economic conditions.

Going concern

Agccourting standards require that directors satisfy themsalves that it is reasonable
for them 1o conclude whether it is appropriate to prepare financial statements on
a going concem basis. The Group's business activities, together with the factors
fikely to affect its future development, parformance and position are set cut in the
Strategic Report on pages 4 to 43, Principal risks are detailed on pages 40 to 43.
The financial positon of the Group, its cash flows, fiquidity position and borrowing
facilities are described in the financial statements. In addition, Section 4.4 to the
financial statements includes the Group's objectives, poficies and processes

for managing its capital; its financial isk management objactives; details of its
financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and
liquidity risk. Section 4.5 to the financial statements addresses the management
of the funding risks of the Group's employee benefit cbligations.

The Group has considerable financial resources together with long-standing
refationships with & number of customers, suppliers and funding providers across
different geographic areas and industries. The Group's jorecasts and projections,
taking account of potential and realistic changes in trading performance, indicate
that the Group is able to operste within the level of taciities either in place on

31 December 2018, or renewead since, without the need to renew any further
faciities before 23 February 2018. As a consaquence, the directors believe that
the Group is well-placed to manage s business risks successfully despite the
uncertginties inharent in the cument economic: cutiook. Such unceriginties as
have been identified are not regarded as matenal uncertainties for the purpose
of the going concern assassment.

After making due enquiry, the directors have a reasonable expectation that

the Group has adequate resounces to continue in operational existence for the
foresseable future, Accordingly, they continue 10 adopt the gaing concern besis
In preparing the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each dirsctor confioms that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit informetion of which the Company's audttor is unaware; and each director
has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director 10 make
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor is awara of that information.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual Gensral Meeting will be held at the Hitton Birmingham Metropoie Hotel,
National Exhibition Certtre, Bimningharn on 4 May 2017 &t 10am. Notice of the
Annugl General Meating wi ba published on the Company's websile.

John O'Sffea
Compary Secretary

23 February 2017
IM! pk: is registered in England No. 714275
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annust Report and the financial statements

Tha directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, which includes the Directors’ Report, Remunaration Report and Corporate Governance Statement,
and the Group and parent comparnty financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Compeny law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with those international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Ewopean Union and the parent company financial statements
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the
diractors must not approve the financial statements unless they are salisfied that they present fairy the financial posttion, financial performance and cash flows for
that period. In preparing those financial statements, the directors ame required to:

= select suitable accounting poficies and then apply themn consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable;

* pregent information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, raliable, comparable and understandable information;

* state that the Group financial statements have complied with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statemants; and

= state for the parent company financial statemnents whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

“The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufiicient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the parent company and enabile them to ensure that the Group and parent company
financiat statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 and Article 4 of the LAS Regulation as appropriate. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and the parent company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the pravention and detection of fraud and other irmegularities.

The directors are responsible for the meintenance and imegrity of the corporats and financia) information included on the Company's website. Legialation
in the United Kingdom gaverning the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ responsibility statement under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
Each of the directors, as at the date of this report, corfirms that:

« the Group and parent company financial statements in this Annual Report, which have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, kabilities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

+ the Annual Report (which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report) includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the Group taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Having taken advice from the Aucit Committee,
the Board considers the report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders 10
assass the Group’s performance, business model and strategy.

v
Jol ¥

Company Secretary

23 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMi plc

n our opinion: .

* iMI pic's Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements  » the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in
{the financial staternerts} give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
and of the Parent Company's alfairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and
Group's profit for the ysar then ended; » the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance requiements of the Companies Act 2008 and, as regards the Group
with IFRSs as adopted by the Europsan Union; financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

What we have audited

We audited the Group and Parent Compan,' financial statements of IMI pic for the year anded 31 December 2016 which comprise:

Group Parent Company

Consolidated income statement for the year then ended Balance sheet as at 31 December 2016

Consoclidated statement of comgrehensive income for the year then ended Staternant of changes in equity for the year then ended

Consclidated staternent of changes in equity for the year then ended Rolated notes C1 to C10 to the financial stataments

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016
Congolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
Related notes 1 to 5 o the financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the praparation of the Group financial staternents is applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (FRSs) as adopied by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements is appiicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework”.

Overviow of our audit approach

Risks of material misstaternent - Revanue and profit recognition
- Inventory valuation
- Valuation of the overall pension scheme labilities
- Carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible assets

Avudit scope - We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 13 entitias and
audit procedures on specific balances for a further 27 antities.

. - The entitiss where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for

91% of profit before tax adjusted for non-recurring items, 52% of revenue and

76% of total assats.

Materiality - Overall Growup materiality of £9.2m which represents 5% of profit before tax
adjusted for non-recurring items.

What has changed - In the prior ysar, our auditor's report iIncluded a risk of material misstaterment in

relation 1o the accounting for the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther. There have been
no further acauisitions in 2016 and accordingly no associated risk.
- We have set performance materiality at £8.9m (2015: £4.7m) being 75%
(2015: 50%: of our planning materiglity. The increased percentage reflacts
the improvement in IMI's internal conltral environment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of IMI plc

(cont’d)
- - ]

Our assessmeant of risk of material misstatemnent

We identified the risks of material misstatement described below as those that had the greatest effect on our overak auxdit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit and the direction of the effarts of the audit team. In addressing these risks, wapedumedthepmceduresbebwwhmmdesgnednthamm
of the financial statements as a whole and, consequently, we do not express any opinion on these individual areas.

Risk

Owr response 10 tha risk

Revenue and profit recognition (€1,657m,
PY comparative £1,567m)

Refer (o the Audit Committee Report {page 55);
Accounting policies (page 126); and Note 2.1 of
the Consolidated Financial Staternents {(page 85)

Revenue and profit recognition is a significant
audit risk across all divisions within the Group.
Specifically there is a risk of inappropriate
revenue and profit recognition if defiveries are
recorded within the wrong accounting period,
management averride causes contract loss
provisions to be misstated or revenue is not
accounted for in hne with contractual terms.
The cyclical nature of deliveries within the
Critical Engneering division results in significant
shipments near the December perod end
which increases the risk of a cut-off error.

Risk movement
e o

We canied out testing of controls over revenue recognition with a focus on those related to the timing
of revenus recognition.

We performed analylical procedures o compare revenue recognised with our expectations from past
exparience, management’ forecasts and, where possible, external market data.

Wa obitained support for individually unusual and/or material revenue journals.

We performed tests of detail for a sample of revenue transactions to confirn the transactions had been

appropriately recorded in the income statement and verified that the risks and rewards of ownership of

the products had been transfemmed to the customer by:

« analysing the contract and terms of the sale to determine that the Group had fufiled the requirements
of the contract;

+ confirming revenue coukd be reliably measured by reference to undertying documentation; and

» confimming collectability of the reverue was reasonably assured by agreeing to collection history.

We parformed cut-off tasting by tracing a sample of trensactions around the period end to thind party
dalivery note documentation and customer acceptance.

In respect of new construction contracts in the Critical Engineering division we tested a sample of
management's assessment of forecast costs to complete, comoborating the underlying assumprtions against
historic experience and future production plans 10 determing any contract l0sses ane approprialety recognisad,

We performed these audit procedures at full and specific scope entities over this rigk area in 31 locations
whaer revanua is in scope, which represends 82% of the total revenue balance.

We also perfomed specific procedures over £302m of revenue recognised in the 50 Precision and Hydronic
dvigions' marketing companies. These companies purchase IME manufactured products, either directly from
the manufacturing IMI entity or through the Group's centralisad warehousing, and sell into local marksts.
The specific procedures performed included verifying the occurrence and completeness of a sample of
sales transactions recognised by the marketing companies through to goods despatch documentation.
We tested a sample of transactions recognised in these companies to determine the measurement

of revenue recognised is conaigtent with the Group's transfer pricing policies and the inter-company
transactions eliminate on consolidation.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Commitiee:

Our year-end audit procedures did not identify evidence of material misstatements regarding revenue or profit recognition in the Group. All transactions tested
have been recognised in accordance with contractual terms.
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Risk

Our maponts to tha risk

Inventory valuation {£255m, PY comparative
£233m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (paga 55);
Accounting policies (page 126); and Note 3.1.1 of
the Consolidated Rnancial Staternents (page 96}

The valuation of invertory across the Group is
dependent on establishing appropriate valuation
controls, This includes reliance on manug
processes. Management judgement 15 applied
1o formulaic calculations for standard costing
and excess and obsolete inventory provisions.

I these judgaments are nol appropriate than this
increases the risk that inventory is overstated.

Risk movement

e

We carried out testing on controls over inveniory valuation to verify the Group values inventory appropriately,

We tested the accumulation of cost within inventory, confirming the valuation reflected the products’ stage
of compiletion inciuding agresment to the physical inventory counts we attended.

We obtained evidence 1o support the standard costs usad and performed procadures 10 ensure only normal
production variances had been capitaksed in the year-end inventory balance and any abnomal inefficiencies
had been appropriately expensad including comparing actual production rates to budget.

We audited the adequacy of excess and obsolete provisions held against inventory by comparing forecast

praduct usage to customer orders, considering historical usage, historical accuracy of provisioning and
understanding management’s future plans to utilise the inventory.

Wemmmaawipmwdmamnmdsmﬂcmmtmsmﬂmmkmh%m
where inventory is in scope, which reprasents 73% of the total inventory balance.

Key cbasrvations communicated to the Audit Commities:

Inventory valuation across the Group is considered appmpriate including the adecuacy of the excess and obisolate provision. Our atdit procedures confirmed
variances betwesn standard and actua) costs and the overheads abasorbed in the inventory valuation had been comectly calculated and accounted for.

Risk

Our responsa to the risk

Valuation of the overall pension scheme
liabilities (£1,590m, PY comparative (£1,341m)
within the net pension deficit of £80m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 55);
Accounting policies (page 126); and Note 4.5 of
the Consolidated Financial Staternents (page 174)

The actuarial assumptions used to value the
UK and overseas pension scheme liabilities
are judgemental and sansitive. Dus to the
significance of the value of the pension
obligation, a small change in assumptions
may result in a material difference to the
amounts reported.

Risk movement

-

Using exiernal data we banchmarked the key actuarial assumptions, as detailed in Section 4.5.3.2 of the
consolidated financial statements, used by management, in determining the pension obligation under IAS
19(R) to determine their assumptions were appropriate, met the requirements of IFRS and were in ine with
market practice.

This included a comparison of life expectancy with relevant mortality tables, banchmarking inftation and
discount rates against sxternal merket data, considering changes in historical assumpltions ard evaluating
tha independence, qualifications and results of work performed by management’s experts invoived in the
valuation process.

Wae used our pansion specialists to assist us with these proceciures,
The audit procedures parformed 10 address this risk have been performed by the Group audit team.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committes:

The ectuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the year-end liabilities are at the middle of the acceptable range when compared o external benchmarks.
We consider the valuation of pension schema liabllitles to be appropriate.
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Risk

Ouwr response to the risk

Carrying value of goodwiif and acquired
intangible assets (E453m, PY comparative
£411m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 59);
Accounting policies {page 126); and Note 3.2 of
the Consalidated Financial Statements (page 97)

As a consequence of tha Group's growth strategy
a significant value of goodwill and intangible
assets has arisen from acquisitions. There is &
risk that cash generating units ("CGUSs') may not
achieve the anticipated business performance
to support the carrying value of these assets
leading to an impairment ¢charge that has not
been recognised by management. Significant
judgament is required in assessing the fulure
cash flows of the CGU, tegether with the rate
at which thay are discounted.

Risk movement

e

We examined management's methodology. as detailed in Section 3.2 of the consolidated financial
statements, and models for assessing the valuation of significant goodwill batances to confirm the
composition of management’s future cash flow forecasts, the process by which they were drawn

up and re-performing the calculations in the model to test the mechanical integrity. This included

confirming the underlying cash flows were consistent with the Board approved budgets.

In accordance with the requirements of LAS 36 Impairment of Assets, management performad
an impairment tast on all CGUs that have goodwill allocated.

For all CGUs we calcudated the degroe to which the key assumptions would need to fluctuate befors

an impairment conciusion was triggered and considered the likelihood of this occurring.

In respect of the CGUs identified ag having impairmant incicators or low levels of headroom we performed

detailedlesthgtocrllbalyassassamwrobom:athekeyi‘putsoimeforeca_stcashlowslnctﬂm:

* conoborating the discount rate used by obtaining the undertying data used in the calculation and
benchmarking it against comparable organisations;

= validaiing the growth rate assumed by comparing them 10 economic and industry forecasts; and

» analysing the historical accuracy of budgets to actual resuits to determine whether foracast cash
flows are reliable based on past experience.

We have reviewed the disclosures in respect of goodwill and intangiblas and the impairment of Stainless

Steel Fasteners (SSF) with referance to the requirements of 1AS 38 and confirmed their consisiency with

the audited impaimment models.

The audit procedures performed 1o acidress this risk have been performed by the Group audit team.

Koy obsarvations communicated to the Audit Committee:

We consider management's impaimment of Stainless Steel Fasteners of £5.0m for the vear ended 31 December 2016 to be appropriate. We agree with
management’s conclusion that none of the remaining CGUs are required to be impaired as at 31 December 2016. Across the Group'’s CGUs, the level of
headroom and conservatism in the forecasts varies, Overall, management's valuations are around the mid-point of our acceptable range.
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‘The scope of our audit

Talloring the scope

Qur assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our aflocation
of performance materiality datermine our audit scope for each entity within the
Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinlon on the consolidated
financial statemenis. We take into account the level of Group revenue and
operaiing profit, risk profie (including country risk, risk determined to be
associated based on the grading of internal audit findings, controls findings,
historical knowledge and risk arising from change in the period including
changes to IT systems and kay management personnel), the number of
significant accounts based on performance materiality and any other known
factors when assessing the level of work 10 be performed at each entity.

In assessing the risk of material misstatemant to the Group financial statements,

and to achieve adequate quantitative coverage of significant accounts in the
financial staterments, of the 123 reporting entities of the Group, we selected
40 entities, which represent the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 40 entities selected, we performed an audit of the complete financlal
information of 13 entities ('full scope entities') which were selected based on
their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining 27 entities ('spacific scope
entities’), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that entity
that we considerec had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant
accounts in the financial statements either because of the size of these
accounts or their risk profile.

The reporting entities where we performed audit procedures accounted for
919 (2015: 85%) of the Group's profit before tax edjusted for non-recurring
itams, 62% {2015 66%) of the Group's revenue and 78% (2015: 83%) of the
Group's total assets.

We also perfonmed procedures over the revenue recognised in the Precision
and Hydronic divisions' marketing companies, which provided additional
coverage of 18% in respect of the Group’s revenue.

Excluding full and specific scope entitias, there are a further 83 reporting
entities with average revenues of £7.6m and average profit before tax adjusted
far non-recurring tems of £0.2m. In addition, thase locations do not have
common systems and controls. As & consaguence, we consider the kkelhood
of any systematic error arising within this population 10 be low. Notwithstanding
this, for the 83 entities we performed other proceduras, including analytical
review and enquiries of menagement to address the residual risk of

material misstatement,

The charts below Hlustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed
by our audit teams.

Changes from ths prior year

The number of full scope entities has reduced to 13 {2015: 14) and the number
of specific scope entities has reduced to 27 (2015: 28). Thesa changes
predominantly reflact restructuring undertaken by the Group which has resulted
in & reduction of the size and risk profile of entitias praviously in scops.

In tha prior year, our auditor's report included a risk of material misstatement
in retation to the accounting for the ecquisition of Bopp & Reuther in 2015,
in the absence of further acquisitions in the current yaar, the risk was

not included in the cumrent year audit.

Invoivement with entity teams

In establishing our overal approach to the Group audit, we determined the type

of work that needed 10 be undertaken st sach of the entities by us, as the primary
audit engagement team, or by entity auditors from other EY globel network fimns
operating under our instruction. Of the 13 full scope entities, audit procadures were
performed on one of these directly by the Group audit team. For the 27 specific
scope entities, where the work was performned by entity auditors, we determined
the appropriate leve! of invoivernent to enable us 1o determine that sufficient audit
gvidence had been oblained as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole.

Profit before tax adjusted for non-recusring items - CY / (PY)

20% {26%)
Fult scope enities
2% (15%)
Other procadures
62% {59%)
Specific scope entities
Revenue - CY / (PY)
39% (40%)
Full scope entities
23% (26%)
Specific scope entities
18% (17%)
Procedures on
20% (17%) marksting comparios
Other procedures

Total assets - CY / (PY)

58% (63%)
Full scope entities

18% (20%)
Specific scope entities

24% (17%)
Other procedures

The Group audit team continued to follow e programme of planned visits that
has bean designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory Auditor or his dslegate
wisits each full and specific scope focation once every three years. During the
current year's audit cycle, wisits were undertaken by the Group audit team to the
entity teams in Belgium, China, Germany, Raly, Japan, Kerea, Switzerand and
tha United Kingdom. These visits involved meeting with our entity team to discuss
and direct their audit approach, reviewing and understanding the significant audi
findings in response to the risk areas including revenus, profit recognition and
inventary valuation, holding meetings with local maragement, undertaking factory
tours and obtaining updates on local regulatory matters including tax, pensions
and legal. The Group audit tearn interacted regularly with the entity teams during
various stages of the audt, where appropriate reviewed key working papers and
were responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process. This, togsther
with the sddmional procedures performed at Group lsvel, gave us appropriate
evidance far our opinion on the Group financial statements,
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Our spplication of materiality

We apply the concept of matariality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the effiect of identiiad misstataments on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or i the
aggrogate, coudd reasonably be axpacted to influence the economic decisions
of the users of the financial staterents. Materiality providas a basis for
delermining the natura and extent of our audit procedures.

We delarmined mateiaity for the Group 10 be £9.2m (2015: £9.4m), which is
approximately 5% (2015: 5%} of profit before tax adjusted for non-recumring
items. We believe that profit before tex, acjusied for the items describad in the
table provides us with & consistark year on year basis for determining materiality
and is the most relevant parformance measure 10 the stakehoiders of the entity.

* Profit before tax - £165.3m for the year
ended 31 December 2016

» Gain on special pension events - (£2.8m)
{Note 2.2.3 1o the Financial Staternents)

* Restrucluring - £18.8m (Note 2.2.2 to the
Financial Statements)

« Impaimant of Stainless Steol Fastenars (SSF) -
£5.0m (Note 2.2.4 to Financial Statements)

+ Profit before 1ax adiusted for non-recuring items -
£186.3m (basis for materiality}

* Materiality of £9.2m {approximately 5%
of materaility basis}

Performance materiality

The appfication of materiality at the individual account or balance fevel. it is set
at an amount 10 reducs to an appropnately low level the probabifity that the
aggregate of uncorrected and undetecled misstatements axceeds materiality.

On the basis of our nsk assessments, together with owr assessment of the Group's
overall control environment, our judgement was that performance materiality
was 75% (2015: 50%) of our planning materiality, namely £6.9m (2015: £4.7m).
We have set performance meteriality &t this highar percentage reflecting the
improvenment in IMI's internal financial controt environment and due fo the

absence of audit differences being idantried in recent periods,

Audit work at entity locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over
significant finangial statement accounts is undertaken based on a percaniage
of total perforrnance materiality. The performance materiality set for each entity
is based on the relative scale and risk of the entity to the Group as a whole and
our assassment of the risk of misstatemnent at that entity. In the current year,
the range of performance materiality allocatad to entities was £0.45m to
£1.50m {2015: £0.45m to £1.35m).

Reporting threshold .
An amount beiow which identified misstaternents are considered as being
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we woukd report to them all
uncamectad audi differencas in excess of £0.5m (2015: £0.5m), which is set
at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshoid that,
in our view, warranted reporling on quafitative grounds.

Woe evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative

measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative
considerations in forming our opinion.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

. An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements sufficient o giva reasonabie assurance that the financial

. statements are free from material misstatemnent, whether caused by fraud or emor.

This nchides an assessment of: whethar the accounting policies are appropnate to
the Group's and the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adaquately disciosad; the reasonablenass of significant acoounting
estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financal and non-financial information m the
Annual Report and Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identify ary information that Is apparently materially
incormect based on, or materially inconsistant with, the knowledge acquired by us

n the course of perfeming the audit. if we become sware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implcations for qur report.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditer

As axplainad more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out

on page 138, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibiity is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with appiicable law and Inlemational Standards on Auditing (UK
and irsland). Those standards requine us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethica! Standards for Auditors.

This report is made solely to the Company’'s mambers, as a body, in accordance
with Chapier 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, Our audit work has been
undartaken so that wa might state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no othar purpose.
To the fullest extant parmitied by law, we do not accept or assume respansioiity
to anyone other than the Company and the Compeny's members as a8 body.
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
in owr opinion:
+ the past of the Directors’ Remuneration Raport to be audited has been
property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and
« based on the work undertaken in tha course of the audit:
- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistant with the financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Diractors’ Report heve been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

ISAs (UK and Ireland) reporting

We are required to report 10 you i, in our opinion, inancial and non-financial information in the Annual Report is.

* materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or

« appearently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsisient with, our knowledgs of the Group acauired in the course
of performing our audit; or

* otherwise misieading.

in particular, we are required to report whather we have identified any inconsistencies betwean our knowledge acquired in

the course of performing the audit and the directors’ stalement that they consider the Annugal Report and Accounts taken as

a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the infarmation necessary for shareholders 10 assess the entity’s

performance, business model and strategy, and wheather the Annual Report approprately addresses those matters that we
communicated to the Audit Committee that wa consider should have been disclosed.

Companies Act 2006 reporting

In light of the knowledge and undarstanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audi,
we have identified no materiet misstatements in the Strategic Report or Directors’ Report.

Wae are required {0 report to you if, in our opinion;

* adequate accounting reconds heve not been kept by the Parent Company, or relurns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report o be audited are not
in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or

*» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have nol received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Listing Rules raview requirements

We are raquirad to roview,
*» {ha directors’ staternent in relation to golng concem, set out on page 135, and longer-term vigbility, set out on page 135, and

+ the part of the Comorate Governance Statement relating to the company's compliance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Govemance Code specified for our review.

We have no exceptions 10 report.

Statemant on the Directors’ Assessment of the Principal Risks that Would Threaten the Solvency or Liquidity of the Entity

I1SAs (UK and Ireland)} reporting

We are required 10 give a statement as to whether we hava anything material to add or to draw attention to in relation to:

* the drectors’ confirmation in the Annual Report that they have camied out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the entity, including those that would threatan its business model, future parformance, solvency or liquidity;

 the disclosuras in the Annuat Report that describe those risks and explain how thay are being managed or mitigated;

 the directors’ slatement in the financial statemeanis about whether they considered it appropriale to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting In preparing them, and thelr identification of any material uncerlainties to the entity's ability
to continue 10 do SO Over a period of at leas! twelve monihs i the date of approval of the inancial statements; and

= the directors' explanation In the Annual Raport as to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity, over what period
they have done 506 and why they consider that pariod 1o be appropriate, and their staternent as 10 whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the antity wil be able 1o continue in operation and mest its kablitles as they fall due over the period
of their assessrment, including any related disclosures drawing attention 1o any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing malenial to add or 10 draw attention to.

63t 2 Yourq 4
Andrew Walton (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behatf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Birmingham
23 February 2017

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the IM1 pic websile is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not swohse consideration of
these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially

presented an the website,

2. Lagislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may ditier from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Company balance sheet

at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Note £m &m
Fixed assets
Investments C5 173.2 173.2
Current assets
Debtors =] 364.4 3973
Deferred tax assets C7 11 1.9
Cash at bank and in hand 4.8 13
370.3 4105
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Other craditors C8 (3.0) 29
Net cumrent assots 367. 407.6
Total assets less current Habllities 540.5 580.8
Net assets . 540.5 $80.8
Capital and reserves
Cafled up share capital Cg 1.8 B81.8
Share premium accounk cg 121 1.8
Capital redemption reserve [+ 174.4 174.4
Profit and loss account Co 2722 3128
Equity shareholders' funds 540.5 580.8

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017 and signed onits behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Share Share  Rademption Retained Parent
caphtal premivm resanve eamings equity
m £m Pyl fm £m
At 1 January 2015 81.7 10.8 174.4 3201 £87.0
Reatained profit for the year 91.8 91.8
Dividendss paid on ordinary shares (102.5) (102.5)
Shares issued in the year Q1 1.0 1.1
Share-based payments . 1.1 11
Shares issued by:
employes share schems tryst 2.3 2.3
At 31 December 2015 /a8 18 174.4 - 312.8 580.8
Retained profit for the year 85.2 65.2
Dividends paid on ordinary shares - {104.2) (104.2)
Shares isaued In the year . 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments ’ 5.8 58
Shares acquired for: )
employee share scheme trust : (7.4) 7.4)

At 31 Decamber 2016 - 81.8 121 174.4 272.2 540.5
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1. Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
items considered maiterial in relation to the financial statements, except where
otherwise noted below:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements were prepaned in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (‘'FRS 1017,

The Company has not presented a separate profit and loss account as
permitted by Section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006.

The Company has taken advamage of the following disclosure exemptions

under FRS 101:

a) tha requiremants of paragraphs 45 (b) and 46-52 of IFRS 2 'Share based
Payment”;

b} the requirements of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments’;

¢) the requirements of paragraphs 91-89 of IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement’;

d} the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statemants' to present comparative information in respect of paragraph 798{a)
v of IAS 1;

8) the requirements of paragraphs 10{d), 10{f) and 134-136 of IAS 1;

f) the requirements of IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows';

gl the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 "Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors';

hi the requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 *Related Party Disclosures’; and

i the requirements in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ 1o disciose related
party transactions entered into between two or more members of the Groups,
provided that any subsidiary which is party to the tfransaction is wholly owned
by such a member. Retated party iransactions with the Company's key
management personnel are disclosad in the Remuneration Report on pages

59 to 71 and in Section 5.2 on page 126 of the Group financial statements.

Judgemants and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
jucgements, estimates and agsumptions that affect the amounts reported for
assets and kabilities as at the balance shest date and the amounts reported
for income and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation
means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.

Foreign currencles

The Company’s functional currency ang presentation cumency is sterling.
Transactions in foreign cumencies are recorded using the rete of exchange
nding at the date of transaction.

Manetary assets and liablities denominated in foreign cumancies have bean
transiated into sterling at the rates of exchange nuling at the balance sheet date
and the gaing or losses on fransiation ara inciuded in the profit and loss account.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries ane accounted for at cost less any provision for
impairment. The Company's cost of investments in subsidiary undenakings is
stated at the aggregate of (g) the cash consideration and either (b) the nomina)
value of the shares issued as consideration when Section 612 of the Companies
Act 2006 applies or {¢) in all other cases the market value of the Companys
shares on the date they were issued as consideration.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into
account taxetion deferred because of temporary differences betweoen the
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all tamporary difierences between the
treatment of certain dems for taxation and accounting purposes which have
arisan but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required
by IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. Defemad tax is measured at the lax rates that are
expectad 10 apply when the temporary differences reverse, based on the tax
laws that have boen enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shest
date. A deferred tax assal is recognised 10 the exient that it is probable thet
future taxable profit wil be available against which the temporary difference
can be utiised.

Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Company opérates a number of equity and equity-related compensation
benelits as set out in Section 4.7 of the Group financial statements. The fair
value of the employee services received In exchange for the grant of the options
is recharged in full to the principal employing compeny and accordingly, there is
no net charge recorded in the Company's financial statements. The recharged
amount is recognised as a dabtor falling due for payment within one ysar.

The total amount recharged cver the vesting period is determined by refarence

1o the fair value of the options granted, exchuding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitabiity and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting condiitions are included In assumplions about the number of
options that are expacted to become exarcisabie. The fair value of the oplions at
the date of grant is determined based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing rmodel.

At each balance sheet date, the Company rovises ils estimate of the number
of options that ane expected o vest. it recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the amount recharged to subsidiary undertakings.

For newly issued shares, the proceeds received, net of any directly etiributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the oplions are exercised.

Treasury shares

The consideration paid by the Company on the acquisition of treasury shares
is charged directly to retained eamings in the year of purchase. Consideration
recaived for the sale of such shames is also recognised in equity, with any diffierence
betweean the proceads from sale and the original cost taken to share premium.

If treasury shares am subsaquently canceled the nominal value of the cancelled
shames Is transfarmed from share capital to the capital redemgtion raserve. No gain
or loss is recogniged on the purchase, sale or canceliation of treasury sheres.

Dividends

Diviciends unpaid at the batance sheet date ane only recognised as a kability
at that date to the extent that they are authorised and are no longer at the
discretion of the Company. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria
are disciosed in the notes to the inancial statements.

C2. Remuneration of directors

The detailed information concerning direciors’ emcluments, sharshoidings and
options are shown in the audited saction of the Remuneration Report on pages
59 to 71 and Section 2.1.3 of the Group financial statements.

C3. Staff numbers and costs

The number of people ampiloyed by the Company, including directors, during
the year was 28 {2015: 32) all of whom were employed in administrative roles.
The costs associated with them were borme by a subsidiary ungertaking.

The Company participates in the IMI UK Funds, which are defined benefit
schemes in which the assets are held independently. The total net defined
benefit costs of these Funds are borne by a subsidiary undertaking and
therefore in accordance with AS 19, no net defined benefit costs are
recognised in the Company's financial staternents. Saction 4.5 of the
Group financial statements provides further detalls regarding the defined
benefit schemes,
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C4, Dividends
The aggregate amount of dividends comprises:

2016 2015

£m £

Prior year final dividend paid - 24.5p per qualifying ordinary share {2015: 24.0p) 86.3 649
Current year interim dividend paid - 14.0p per qualfying ordinary share {2015: 13.9p} are 376
Aggregate amaunt of dividends paid in the financial year 104.2 102.5

Dividends paid in the ysar of £104.2m represent 37.9p per share (2015: 37.6p).
Afier the balance sheat date the following dividends were proposed by the directors. The dividerxis have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences.

2018 2015
£m £mn
Curmrent year final dividend - 24.7p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 24.5p) 7.0 66.4

Dividends propased after the balance sheet date may differ from the final dividend paid. This is a result of the final number of qualifying shares entitled to dividends
differing from those in issue at the balance sheet date.

CS. Fixed assets - investments

Subsidiary undertalkdngs
2me ns
fm £m

At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2016 cost and net book value 173.2 173.2
Detais of subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2016 are shown on pages 14S to 152,
C4. Debtors
2ns 205
om B
Falling due for payment after more than one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertekings 278.2 316.4
Falling due for paymant within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 86.2 80.9
384.4 3097.3
C7. Deferred tax
2018 2015
£m £m
Thedeferred tex included in tho balance sheetisasfollows: . _ __... ... . o.__|_._._.
Employes benefits and share based payments 11 1.9
Deferred tax assaet inchaded in the balancs sheet 1.1 18
rn
Reconciliation of movemant in deferred tax asset: L o
o U VU
Deferrad tax charge in the profit and loss accourt " {0.8)
At 31 Decomber 2018 1.1

Changes 1o the rate of UK corporation tex were substantively enacted in 2015 10 reduce the rate to 199% from 1 April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The
budget of 16 March 2016 then proposed 1o further reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. This additional changs was substantively enacted on 6 September
2018. The defamed tax balance has been calculated based on the rates applicable when the balances are expectad to revarse, which is mainly 17% (2015: 18%).
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C8. Other creditors falling due within ohe year

2018 2015
£ £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1.7 1.0
Other payables 1.3 19
3.0 29
C9. Share capital and reserves
Share Shere Radermption Ratained Parent
capital premiLim resenve samings equily
&m £m £m &m o
At 1 Januery 2015 81.7 10.8 174.4 3201 587.0
Retained profit for the year 91.8 91.8
Dividends paid on ordinary shares® {102.5) {102.5)
Shares igsued in the ysar 0.1 1.0 1.1
Sharg-basad payments 11 1.1
Shares issued by":
empkoyes share scheme trust 23 2.3
At 31 December 2015 81.8 11.8 174.4 312.8 580.8
Retained profit for the year 65.2 685.2
Dividends paid on ordinary shares* (104.2) {104.2)
Shares lssued In the year - 0.3 0.3
Share-basad payments 548 58
Shares acquired for":
employee share schems trust 7.4) T4
At 31 December 2016 81.8 121 174.4 272.2 540.5

* Details of treasury and employee rust share scheme movements ara contained in Section 4.6 of the Group financial statements and details of dividends paid
and proposed in the year ane shown in note C4. .

All of the retained sarnings held at both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are considensd to be distibutable reserves.

Share capital
2018 2015
Em om
lssued and fully paid
286.2m [2015: 286.2m) ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each 1.8 B81.8

C10. Contingencies .
Contingent liabilities relating 1o guarantees in the normal course of business and other items amounted to £82.4m (2015: £64.4m).

Thera is a right of set-off with three of the Company’s bankers relating to the balancas of the Company and a number of its wholly-ownad UK subsidiaries.

Whaere the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebledness of other companies within its Group, the Company considers
these to be insurance amangements, and eccounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liabliity
untit such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
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Subsidiary undertakihgs

A full list of the Group's subsidiary undertakings and registered/principal offices as at 31 December 2016 is included below. Except whene indicated, the share
capitel consists of ordinary shares only. The principal courry in which each subsidiary operates and has its registered/principal office is the country of incorporation.
IMI pic’s eftactive interest in the undertakings listed is 100%, except where indicated, and is held in each case by a subsidiary undsrtaking, except for IMI Group
Ltd. iMi Deutschiand Verwaltungs GmibH, IM! Lakeside Australia Pty Ltd and Uiquick 200 Limited which are held directly by IMi pic.

The Group has an interest In a partnership, the IMi Scottish Limited Partnership, which is fully consofidated into these Group accounts. The Group has taken
advantage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has, therefore, not appended the accounts of this
qualifying partnership to these accounts. Separate accounts for the partnership are not required to be and have not been filed at Companies House,

Anson Cast Products Limited, Lakaeside, Solihuit Parkway, Birmingham Business Park, Birmingham, Wast Midlands B37 7XZ,
Charles Baynes Netherlands BV Nethertands, United Kingdom

FCX North America Limited,

FCX Pension Trustees Limitexd,

Hottord Estates Limited,

IMI CIF Trustes Limited,

IMI Deutschiand Limited,

IM| Euro Finance Limited,

IMI Fluid Controls (Finance) Limited,
IM| Germany Limited,

IMI Group Limited,

iMI Kynoch Limited,

IMI Lakaside Five Limited,

iMI Marston Limited,

IMI Overseas investments Limitad,
IMI Pensions Trust Limited,

M pic,

IMI Property inwestments Limited,
MI Refiners Limited,

M1 Retirement Savings Trust Limited,
IMI Sweden Finance Limited,

M) Vision Limited,

Uquick 211 Limited,

Premier Profiles Limited,

Trnsfto Group Limited,

Trufio Intemnational Limited,

Truflo Investrments Limited

Commiech Limited, 1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh, Wokingharm, RG41 5TS, United Kingdom
The Commtech Group Linited,
Engineering Appliances Limfted,
M Group Services Limited,

Ml Lakeside One Limited,
Liquick 200 Limited,

Martonalr International Limited

IMI Critical Engineering Holding GmbH, Bruckstrasse 93, 46518, Alpen, Gemany
IMI Deutschiand | GmbH & Co KG,

IMI Deutschland Verwaltungs GrbH,
IMI Germany Holding Limited & Co. KG,
Norgren GmbH

IMI Auid Centrols Holdings Inc, CSC, Comoration Trust Centre, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington DE 19801, Unlted States
IMI Holdings LLC,

Norgren Automation Solutions LLC,
Norgren Inc,

Norgren Kioehn Inc

IMI Amaricas Inc, Corporate Senvice Company, 2711 Centerviile Road, Wilmington DE 19808, United States
Mt Group Inc,

M interarmerica Inc,
Zimmermann & Jansan inc

IM} Australia Pty Ltd, 33 South Corporate Avenua, Rowvilla VIC 3178, Australia
IMt Lakeside Australia Pty Ld,
Tube Fitings Sales Pty Limited
FCX keland Limited, 1 Stokes Place, St Stephens Green, Dublin 2, Ineland
IMI Lakesice Ineland Limited,

Lakeside Finance Unlimited Company,
Laksside Treasury Unlimited Comgpany
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Subsidiary undertakings

(cont’d)

CCIAG,
CCI Switzarand AG,
Norgren AG

Kaslensirasse 9, 8362, Baherswi, Switzerland

M1 Hokding Kaly S.r..,
Orton S.AL.,
Trufio Rona S.rl.

Via Stendhal, 85, 20144 Milano, italy

MI Hydronic Engineering AB,
IMI Indoor Cimate AB,
IMI Sweden AB

Annelund, SE-524 80, Liung, Sweden

Aero-Dynamiek Belgle BVBA,
IMI Hydronic Engineering NV

Boomsesteenweg 28, B 2627 Schelle, Belgium

B & R Holding GmbH,
Bopp & Reuther Sicherhaits- und Regelanmatunan GmbH

Canl-Reuther Str, 1, 68305, Mannheim, Gemmany

Heimeier GrnbH,
IMi Hydronic Engineering Deutschland GmbH

Voellinghauser Weg 2, Erwitte, DE-598597, Garmany

IMI Components Limited,
Truflo Marine Limited

Waestwood Rosd, Birmingham, B6 7JF, United Kingdom

IMI Hydronic Engineering BV,
IMI Netherfanda Haoidings BV

Réntgenweg 20, Alphan aan den Rijn, NL-2408 AB, Netherlands

IMI Hydromic Engineering Switzerland AG,
TA Hydmonics Holding AG

Mihleraingtrasse 26, 4414, Filinsdort, Switzerland

IMI Scotland Limited,
The IMI Scottish Limited Partnership

15 Atholl Crescant, Edinburgh EH3 BHA, Unitad Kingdom

Norgren Ga Limitad China, Building 3, No. 1885, Duhui Road, Minhang District, Shanghal, China
Norgren Manufacturing Co Ltd

Norgren Manufacturing De Mexico SA DE CV, AV De la Montana 120, Parque industrial Querstaro, Santiago de Queretaro, Queretaro,
Norgren SA de CV CP 76220, Mexico

Remosaa Service & Construction Sil, Remosa Sd

Viale Pula 37, 09123 sede o stabiimento stradario, 03508, Cagliari, Sardinia, ltaly

Valves Holding GmbH, Z & J Technologles GmbH

Bertramsweq 6, 52355, Dlren, Garmany

Brookvale International Insurance Limited

Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamiiton, HM11, Bermuda

Buschjost GmbH

Detmolder Strasse 256, Bad Oeynhausen, D-32545, Gemany

C.H. Zikesch Armaturen GrmbH

Mercatorstr. 16-18, 48485, Wesel, Germany

CCl {Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd

29 Intemational Businesa Park , ACER Building, Tower A, #04-01, Singapora, 609923, Singapore

CCl America do Sul Comercio de Equipamentos industriais |tda

Rua ltapeva, 286 cjs 95/96/97, Sao Paulo, 01332-000, Brazi

CCl Czech Republic s.r.0.

K Lsli&ti 180473, Slapanice, 62700, Czech Repubiic

CCl Flow Control {(Shanghal) Co Lid

Room 108, Unit 15, 152 Tian Zhou Road, Cao He Jing Development Zona, Shanghai, 200233, China

CCl Intemnational Limited

Unit A3 Brookside Business Park, Greangate, Middieton, Manchester, M24 1GS, United Kingdom

CCl italy S Via Lecpard] 26, 20123, Milan, kaly
CCI KK 8-2-2 Takatsukadai, Nishi-ku, Kobe City, 851-2271, Japan

CCi Limited 14 Dangdong 2-m, Munsan-eup, Paju-si, Gyeonggl-do, 10816, Republic of Korea
CCl Valve Technology AB Industrigaten 1-3, Box 603, SE-661 29, Saffie, Swaden ’
TGl Vaive Technology GmbH Lembocigasse 63/1, A1230, Wian, Austria

Control Component India Pvi Limited SJR iPark, 6th Floor, EPIP Zone, Whitefield Road, Bangalore, 560066, India
Control Components Inc 22591 Avenida Empresa, Rancho Santa Margarita CA 82688, United States
Deeside Titanium Limited (189%) Moor Lane, Derby, Derbyshire, DE24 8B, United Kingdom

FAS Macdic SA Route de Bossonnens 2, 1607, Patezieux, Switzerand

Fluid Automation Systems GmbH Schonbergsirasse 35, 73760, Osterfildern, Germany

Fluid Automation Systems SA 126 Route da /'Etraz, 1290, Versoix, Switzerland

Herlon Systemtachnik GmbH Untere Talstrasse 65, D-71263 Weil der Stadt, Germarny

Ml Aaro-Dynarniek BV

Havenstraat 9, VS 3861, Nikerk, Nethedands
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IMI Gonsutting (Shanghai) Co Limited

Units 03,06 9 Floor, No. 500 Fushan Road, Pudong New Araa, Shanghai, 200122, China

IMI Gritical Engineering (Shanghai) Company Limited

B3-2, No. 303, Xinke Road, Qingpu District, Shanghal, China

IMI Energi 8 VWS Utveckling AB

Annedalsvigen 9, 22764, Lund, Sweden

IMI France SARL

52 Boulevard de Sébastopol, 75003 Paris, France

IMI Hidronik Muhendiisik Iklirlendinme Sisternleri Ltd Sti

Atasehr Bulvari Ata Cersi no. 50-59. Atasehir, lstanbul, Turkey

IMI Hydronic Enginearing A/S

Lyskaer 9, DIK-2730, Herlev, Denmark

M Hydronic Engineering AS

Glyritveien 7, Ski, N-1400, Norway

{M! Hydronic Engineering China

Room 306, Xin Mao Buiding, No 2 Ta Zhong Nan Road, Shanghai, 200131 Pilot Free Trade
Zone, China

IMI Hydronic Engineering France S.A.

13, e de la Perdrix - Les Flamants 8, Paris iNord Il BP84004, Trembiay-en-France, 85831, France

IMi Hydronic Engineering FZE

Office 2107 (PO Box 262611), Jafza View 19, Jafza, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

{MI Hydronic Engineering GesmbH ~

Industrissirasse 9, Obj. 5, 2353, Guntramsdorf, Austria

IMI Hydronic Engineering Inc

8908 Governors Row, Dallas TX 75247, United States

IMI Hydronic Engineering International SA

Route de Crassier 19, Lake Geneva Business Park, 1262, Eysins, Switzerland

IMI Hydronic Englnsering Limited

Unit 3 Nimbus Park, Porz Avenue, Dunstable, Becfordshire, LUS SWZ, United Kingdom

IMI Hydronic Engineering Ltda

Ay Fagundas Filho, 134 ¢j 43, S. Judas, Sao Paulo, 04304-010, Brazil

IMI Hydronic Engineering OY

Robert Huberin tie 7, Vaniaa 1510, Finland

IMI Hydronic Engineering Pte Ltd

223 Mounitbatien Road #03-01, Singapore 398008, Singapore

M| Hydronk: Engineering S.A.

9. rue des 3 Cantons, Windhof, |.-8398, Luxembourg

I Hydronic Engineering {Spain) SAL

Complejo Ewropa Empresarial, C/Rozabetia, 6, Las Rozas, 28200, Madrid, Spain

MI Hydronic Enginesring s.r.l.

Via dei Martinit 3 cap, 20146, Milan, aly

iMI Hydronic Engineering UAB

AuJuozepaviciaus 27-5, Kaunas, LT - 45258, Lithuania

M International Co Sd

28 Chiparosulyi Street, 2nd Floor, District 3, Bucharest, 031122, Romania

MI Intemational d.o.0

Alpska cesta 37b, Lesce, 4248, Slovenla

M internations! d.0.0.

Slavonska avenga 17, Zagmeb, 10040, Croatia

I irdarmational d.0.0. Beograd

Milutina Milankovica 1b, Nowi Beograd, 11070, Serbla

IMI Internationa) Kit.

Kunigunda Utia 80, Budapest, HU-1037, Hungary

IMI Intarnational LLC

Leninskaya Street 12 b2, 115280, Moscow, Russian Federation

IMI International s.r.0.

Central Trade Park D1, c.p.1573, Humpolec, 396 (1, Czech Republic

IM! Intarnational Sp. 2.0.0.

Olewin 50 A, PL-32300 , Olkusz, Poland

IMt Norgren Herion PYT Limited

A-82, Sector - 3. Noida, Utiar Pradash 201301, India

IMI Norgren Limited

137a Sianay Cloge, Dublin industrial Estate, Glasnevin, Dublin 11, lreland

IMI Norgren Pneumatics {Shanghai) Co Limited

18t Floor , No 71 Buliding, 1088 Quinzhou North Road, Chaohejing Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai,
200233, China

IMI Norgren SA (Sociedad Unipersonal)

Calls Colom, 381, 2 Edif. Tecno, 08223, Temassa, Spain

IMI Norgren Terracco S.L.

Corsell de Cant 57, 08227, Terrasss, Spain

IMI Watson Smith Limited

One Snowhill, Snowhill Queensway, Birmingham, West Midlands, B4 6GH, United Kingdom

IMI Webber Limited City Business Park, Easton Road, Easton, Bristol, BSS OSF, United Kingdom

Industria Mecanique Pour Les Fluides SA 15 Avenue des Cures, 95580, Andily, France

Interativa Indlistria, Avarida Garabed Gananian, 386 Bairmo Aparecidinha, Sorocaba, S0 Paulo, 18.087-340, Brazil
Comércio e Representacdes Lida

Kynoch Sweden Holding AB ¢/o IMI Hydronic Engineering AB, 52 480 Ljung, Sweden

Liquick 213 Limited Pinsent Masons, 2 Cornwall Strest, Birmingham, West Midlands, B3 2DL, United Kingdom
Newman Hattersley Limited 151 Superior Bivd, Mississauga ON L5T 216, Canada

Norgren A/S Vesterundva] 18, DK-2730, Herlev, Denmark

Norgren AS

Karhaugvelan 89, Oslo, 1086, Norway




152 IMI ple

Subsidiary undertakings

]
(cont’d)
Norgren BV Netherlands Transistorsiraat 2, 1322, Aimars, Netherlands
Norgren Co Limited 120v/34 M.12, Rachedewa, Bangplee, Samutprakam, 10540, Thailand

Norgren European Logistics Company Limited

Norgren Fnland OY

Huopalahdentie 24, A-talo FI-00350 Helsinkd, Finland

Norgren Ges.m.b.H Industriezentrum No Sud, Strasse 2, Wianer Neudorf, 2355, Austria

Norgren GT Development Corporation CT Corporation System, 508 Union Ave SE, Suite 120, Olympia WA 88501, United States
Norgren Limited 6/F Banson Tower, 74 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Norgren Limited 154 Viestey Drive, Aucikland, 1060, New Zealand

Norgren Limited Blanheim Way, Fraciey Park, Lichfield, Staffordshire, WS13 85Y, United Kingdom
Norgren Ltda Av. Eng. Alberto de Zagottis, 696-B, Sao Paulo SP, Brazil

Norgren NV F Walravenssireat 84, B.1651 Lot. Beigium

Norgren Pte. Limied 16 Tuas Street, Singapore 638453, Singapone

Norgren SAS 4 Boulevard Michael Faraday, 77700 Seris, France

Norgren SDN BHD Level 22, Axiata Tower No 9, Jalan Sentrat 5, 50470 Kuala Lumngur, Malaysia
Norgren SpA Via tieste 16, Vimercete, 20871, Milan, italy

Norgren Sweden AB Box 14001, Ventigatan 6, S-200 24 Maimo, Sweden

Norgren Taiwan Co Limited 3F, No. 540 Sec. 1, Minsheng N. Rd.,, Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City , 333, Taiwan
Pneumatex GmbH Planiger Str 34, Halle 53, 55543, Bad reuznach, Germany

Quanta Dialysis Technologies Limited (23%)

Tything Road, Alcesier, Warwickshing, B48 6EU, United Kingdom

SAIC CCl vaive Co Ltd (449)

Block B, 123 Chongming Xiushan Road, Chongming County, Shanghal, China

Shanghai CCt Power Corrol Equipment Co Lid (T0%)

2200 Yang Shu Pu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai, 200080, China

Stainless Steel Fasteners Limited Broombank Road, Sheepbridge, Chesterfield, Darbyshire, $41 9Q4, United Kingdomn
STisrl Via dei Caraveggi 15, 24040, Levats (BG), aly

TA Hydronics LLC str. Pymonenko 13-K, Kyiv, 04050, Ukrgine

TA Regulator d.o.0. Orliska Ulica13, Brezice, $1-8250, Siovenia

TH Jansan Amaturen GmbH Otto-Kaiser Str. 6, 86386, Sankt Ingbert, Garmany

Thompson Valves Limitad 17 Balena Close, Creekmaoor, Poole, Dorset, BH17 7EF, United Kingdom

Tndfo Rona S.A. 3a avenus, 16, Parc Industrial des Hauts Sarts, 4040 Herstal, Beigium

Z & J High Temperature Equipment (Shanghai} Co Ltd

810 Yinchun Road, Minhang District, Shanghal, 201108, China

Subsidiary audit exemptions

IMI pkc has Issued guarantees over the kabilities over the following companies at 31 December 2016 under Section 479C of Companies Act 2006 and these entilies
are exermnpt from the requinements of the Act relating to the audtt of individus! accounts by virtue of Section 475A of the Act:

Company name Company number Company name Coémpany number
Commtaech Limited 01524025 IMI Refinars Limited 00148305

FCX North America Limited 03430451 IMI Scotiand Limited SC378424

Holford Estates Limited 01181408 IMI Sweden Finance Limited 07272731

M| Deutschiand Limited 07843551 IMI Vision Limited 04421176

IMI Euro Finance Limited 07920408 Pramier Profiles Limited 02547749

I Fluid Controls (Finance} Limited 08528502 The Commtech Group Limited 03331461

IMI Germany Limited 07843576 Tnufto Group Limitad 04430846

IMI Lakaside One Limited 00518526 Trufio International Limited 00164822

IMI Marston Limited 00155087 Truflo Irvestrants Limited 04430827
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Geographic distribution of employees

The following table shows the geographic distribution of employees as at 31 DeoerrbeZbWWisnotreqmredtobaaﬂted.

United Kingdom 1,368
Continental Europe 6,021
Americas 2,075
Asia Pacific 1,229
Rest of World 210

Totad 10,901
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Five year summary

Reported revenue £m Reported profit before tax® £m Group revenue by geography 2016
Rest of the
World

— : — " 5%

! - L § B 3

1

~ » - ] - » - [ ] -
B g i B 3 H R i - &
* Before exceptional items.

Income statement

2012 2013 2014 2015 208

fm £m £m om [>]

Statutory revenue 1,684 1,743 1,692 1,567 1,657
Reported revenue* 1,696 1,744 1,686 1,557 1,649
Operating profit* 300.1 321.8 295.5 236.9 224.2
Reported profit before tax* 274.8 2971.7 2781 218.7 208.0
Special pension events 10.9 - 7.0 8.1 28
Restructuring costs (18.9) 14.2) . (8.6) @7.1) (16.8)
Acquired intangible amortisation and impairment 29.8) 21.9 {80.4) {32.2) {25.5)
Acquisition and disposal costs (8.3} {9.9) (1.8} - -
(Loss)/gain on disposat of subsidiaries - - 342 (8.4) -
Financial instruments excluding economic hedge contract gaing/osses {1.0} {2.4) (2.8} 28 {1.2)
Profit bafore tax from continuing operationa 2299 249.3 245.7 182.7 165.3
EBMTDA? 318 332 37 263 263
* Before exceptional items.
t Eamings before intarest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and iImpalment.
Group revenue by geography

2012 2013 2074 2015 2016

m £m Bm fm &m

7.4 101 104 88 90 75
Westem Europe 694 686 644 5683 630
North America 308 238 318 334 344
Emerging Markats 482 504 544 505 §20
Rest of Wortd 133 112 82 65 80
Reported Revenue 1,606 1,744 1,686 1,557 1,649
Reversal of net economic hegige contract losses/{gains) {2) (1) ;] 10 8

qum 1.694 1,743 1,692 1,567 1,657
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Eamings and dividends
2012 203 2014 2016 2016
Reported basic samings par share B84.7p 72.6p 78.0p B82.2p 50.8p
Stahuory basic eamings per share (continuing) 53.9p 60.4p 69.2p 44.7p 48.3p
Ordinary dividend per share 32.5p 35.3p 37.6p 38.4p 3B.7p
Balance sheest
2012 2003 2014 mns 2018
£m £m £m £m £m
Segmental net assets
Continuing 906 897 849 926 1,041
Discontinued 169 196 - - -
Other net non-operating liablities excluding borrowings {gross) 267) - (246) 95) {100} (175)
Net debt
Continuing (180) (226) {200 {230 (283)
Discontinued (16) 27 - - -
Net assets 684 6848 554 589 583
Statistics
2 2012 2014 05 206
Segrnenta! gperating profil as a percentage of segmental revenue 17.7% 18.4% 17.5% 15.4% 13.6%
Segrnental operating profil as & percentage of segmental net assets 33.1% 35.9% 34.8% 25.9% 21.9%
ENective tax rate on adjusted profit bafore tax 24.0% 22.0% 22.0% 22.0% 21.0%
Net assets per share {excluding treasury and EBT shares) 214.0p 210.0p 218.4p 217.3p 25.1p
Net debt a3 a percentage of shareholders’ funds 23.4% 34.9% 36.1% 40.2% 48.5%
Net debt: EBITDA* 05 0.7 0.6 09 10

EBITDA®: Inerest

18

21

23

15

16

* EBITDA before exceptional items.
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Shareholder and general information

Announcemen! of trading results

The trading results for the Group for the first half
of 2017 wikt be announced on 28 July 2017.

The trading resuits for the full year ending 31
December 2017 will be announced in early 2018.
Interim management statements will be issued in
May and November 2017.

Dividend payments in 2017
Final: 19 May 2017
Interim: September 2017

Share prices and capital gains tax

Fhe closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
on the London Stock Exchange on 31 December
2016 was 1,040.00p {2015: B62.00p). The markst
value of the Company’s ordinary shanes on

31 March 1982, as calculated for capital gains
tax purposes, was 53.5p per share.

The Company’s SEAQ number is 51443,

Enquiries aboust shareholdings

For enquines conceming shareholders' personal
holdings, please contact the Company's Registrar:
Equiniti [contact detalls appear to the right).

Plaase remember to tell Equinti if you move house,
change bank details or if thers is any cther change
to your account information.

Managing your sharas onling

Sharehoiders can manage their holdings onling

by registering with Shareview, the internet based

platform provided by Equinit!. Registration is 8

straightforward process and aflows shareholdars to:

+ help us 1o reduce print, paper and postage
costs and the associated ervironmental impact
of these;

« cast your AGM vote electronically;

« receive an emall alert when important sharehoider
documents are available online such as Annual
Reports and Notices of General Meetings;

* acoess details of your individual shareholding
quickly end securely;

= sgt up a dividend mandate onfine; and

* changa your ragestered postal address o your
dividend mandate details.

To find out more information about the senvices

offered by Shareview and to register, please visit

www.shareview.Co.uk.

Corporate website

The IMi pic website provides a weafth of useful
informattion for sharehoidears and should be your
first port of call for general queries relating to the
Comperty and your shares. As wel as providing share
background information about the Company.
Shareholders are also encouraged 10 sign up 10
raceive news alerts by email in the investors section
of the website. These inciude all of the financial
news releases from throughout the year that are
not sent to shareholdars by post. You can access
the corporate website at www.imipic.com.

Annual General Mesting 2017

This year's AGM will be held at the Hitton
Birmingham Metropole, National Exhibition Centre,
Birmingham, B40 1PP on Thursday 4 May 2017 at
10am. For further information, pleass refer to the
Notice of Meeting which is on the corporate website.

American Depository Receipts

IMI pic has an American Depositary Receipt (ADR}
programme that trades on the Over-The-Counter
{'OTC") market in tha USA, using the symbol IMIAY.
ADR enquiries should be directed to Citibank
Sharehokder Services, PO Box 43077, Providence,
R 02940-3077, USA. Toll-free number in the USA
is 1-877-CM-ADR (877-248-4237) and from outside
the USA s 1-781-575-4555. You can also email
citivank@shareholders-online.com.

Headquarters and registored office
Lakeside

Solihud Parloway

Birmingham Business Park
Birmingharm

B3r 7XZ

Telephone: +44 121 717 3700

IM) plc is registered in England No.714275

Individuat Ssvings Account (ISA)

IMi‘s ordinary shares can be held in an ISA.

For information about the ISA operated by our
Registrar, Equiniti, please call the Equiniti ISA
heipline on 0345 300 0430. Lines are open from
8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday, excluding
UK public halidays.

Registrars

Equiniti

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

Wast Sussex

BNE9 6DA

Telephone: G371 384 2918 or from overseas
+44 121 4157047

Share dealing service

Managed by Equiniti, the Company’s registrar, the
IMI pic Shera dealing service provides sharehoiders
with a simple way of buying and sefiing IMI ordinary
sharas. Telephone: 0345 603 7037. Full written
details can be obtained from Equiniti {contact
details appear to the right),

Lines are apen 8.30am to 5.30pm, Manday 1o
Friday (exchuding UK public holidays)

Stockbrokers

JPMorgan Cazenove
Bank of Amedca Mertill Lynch

Share fraud
Share fraud includas scams where investors are

called out of the blua and offered shares that often ..

tum out to be worthiess or non-existent, or an

from fraudsters operaling in ‘boller rooms’ that are
mostly based abroad. Further information onhow

nislreg
4. 2Oy eﬁrﬂ*m

lospolsrarefraudorreponascamcanbefound
on our corporate website.
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